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In the opinion of Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing law and assuming, among other mat-
ters, compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income
tax purposes under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Interest on the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds is not a specific preference item for
purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, and interest on the Series A Bonds is not included in adjusted current
earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to the treatment of interest on
the Series B Bonds when determining adjusted current earnings for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations. In
the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, interest on the Series C Bonds and the Series D Bonds is included in gross income of the owners
thereof for federal income tax purposes under the Code. Under existing law, interest on all of the Bonds is exempt from Massachusetts personal
income taxes, and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other
tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds. See *““Tax Exemption” herein.

CiTy oF BostoN, MASSACHUSETTS

$39,995,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BoONDS

2010 SERrIES A

$68,345,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BoNDs

2010 SerIEs B

$30,905,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BonDs

2010 Series C

(BUILD AMERICA BONDS- FEDERALLY TAXABLE-DIRECT PAYMENT )

$16,685,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BoNDs

2010 SeriEs D

(RECOVERY ZONE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BONDS- FEDERALLY TAXABLE -DIRECT PAYMENT)

Dated: Date of Delivery
Due: As shown on pages (ii) and (iii) hereof

The Bonds will be issued by means of a book entry system evidencing ownership and transfer of the Bonds on the records of The Depository
Trust Company and its participants. Details of payment of the Bonds are set forth in this Official Statement. Interest on the Bonds will be payable
on October 1, 2010 and semiannually on each April 1 and October 1 thereafter until maturity or redemption prior to maturity. The Bonds will be
subject to redemption as more fully described herein.

The Bonds will be valid general obligations of the City for the payment of the principal of and interest on which all taxable
property in the City is subject to the levy of ad valorem taxes without limit as to rate or amount as more fully described herein under
“Security for the Bonds.”

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of this issue. Investors must read the entire
Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.

The Bonds were sold by the City after competitive bidding pursuant to the Official Notice of Sale dated March 10, 2010, and are offered
subject to the final approving opinion of Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, Bond Counsel to the City, and to certain
other conditions described in the Official Notice of Sale. Public Financial Management, Inc., Boston, Massachusetts, serves as Financial Advisor
to the City. The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Boston, Massachusetts, will act as paying agent for the Bonds.

March 18, 2010

T See “Credit Ratings.”



CiTy oF BostoN, MASSACHUSETTS

$39,995,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
2010 SERrIES A

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: April 1, as shown below
Principal Interest Principal Interest
Maturity Amount Rate Yield CusIp* Maturity ~ Amount Rate Yield CUSIP*
2011 $5,005,000 2.000% 0.380% 100853JX9 2021 $145,000 3.000%  3.060%  100853KH2
2012 5,105,000 3.000 0.620  100853JY7 2022 150,000  3.000 3.150 100853KJ8
2013 5,255,000 4.000 0.860 100853JZ4 2023 150,000  3.250 3.240 100853K K5 t
2014 5,465,000 4.000 1.140  100853KA7 2024 155,000  3.250 3.340 100853K L3
2015 5,685,000 5.000 1490 100853KB5 2025 160,000  3.250 3.440 100853KM1
2016 2,240,000 4.000 1.920 100853KC3 2026 105,000  3.500 3.530 100853KN9
2017 2,330,000 4.000 2.240  100853KD1 2027 105,000  3.500 3.620 100853K P4
2018 2,425,000 4.000 2,520 100853KE9 2028 110,000 3.500 3.710 100853KQ2
2019 2,520,000 5.000 2.700  100853KF6 2029 115,000 3.500 3.800 100853KR0
2020 2,650,000 5.000 2.870  100853KG4 2030 120,000  3.750 3.880 100853K S8
Tt Priced to the April 1, 2020 optional redemption date. See “The Bonds—Redemption Prior to Maturity—Optional
Redemption.
$68,345,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BoNDs
2010 SerIEs B
Dated: Date of Delivery Due: April 1, as shown below
Principal Interest
Maturity Amount Rate Yield CUSIP*
2011 $ 240,000 2.000% 0.400% 100853KT6
2012 240,000 3.000 0.600 100853KU3
2013 250,000 3.000 0.810 100853KV1

2014 4,760,000 3.000 1.100  100853KW9
2015 6,605,000 3.000 1.450  100853KX7
2016 6,705,000 4.000 1.890 100853KY5
2017 9,835,000 4.000 2.200  100853KZz2
2018 3,335,000 4.000 2.500 100853LA6
2019 9,350,000 4.000 2.700  100853LB4
2020 13,715,000 4.000 2.850  100853LC2
2021 4,570,000 4.000 3.000  100853LDO
2022 4,755,000 3.000 3.200  100853LE8
2023 3,985,000 3.000 3.300  100853LF5

*  Copyright, American Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein are provided by Standard & Poor’s, CUSIP Service Bu-

reau, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. The CUSIP numbers listed above are being provided solely for
the convenience of bondholders only at the time of issuance of the Bonds and the City does not make any representation
with respect to such numbers or undertake any responsibility for their accuracy now or at any time in the future.



CiTy oF BostoN, MASSACHUSETTS

$30,905,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
2010 Series C

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: April 1, as shown below

Principal Interest
Maturity Amount Rate Yield CuUsIp*

2025 $3,250,000 4.750% 4.760% 100853LHI1
2026 2,915,000 4.950 4960 100853LJ7
2027 3,005,000 5.050 5.060 100853LK4
2028 3,105,000 5.150 5.160 100853LL2
2029 3,210,000 5.250 5.260  100853LMO
2030 3,320,000 5.350 5.360  100853LN8

$12,100,000 4.500% Term Bonds due April 1, 2024 @ 4.53%, CUSIP* 100853LG3.

$16,685,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
2010 Series D

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: April 1, as shown below

Principal Interest
Maturity Amount Rate Yield CUSIP*

2016 $2,200,000 3.250% 3.260% 100853LP3
2017 2,235,000 3.700 3.710  100853LQ1
2018 2,280,000 3.900 3.910 100853LR9
2019 2,335,000 4.000 4.010 100853LS7
2020 2,385,000 4.100 4160 100853LT5

2021 610,000 4.350 4.360  100853LU2
2022 625,000 4.500 4510 100853LVO0
2023 645,000 4.650 4.660  100853LW8
2024 660,000 4.750 4.760  100853LX6
2025 670,000 4.850 4.860 100853LY4
2026 385,000 4.950 4960 100853LZ1
2027 395,000 5.050 5.060  100853MA5
2028 410,000 5.150 5.160  100853MB3
2029 420,000 5.250 5.260  100853MC1
2030 430,000 5.350 5.360 100853MD9

*  Copyright, American Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein are provided by Standard & Poor’s, CUSIP Service Bu-
reau, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. The CUSIP numbers listed above are being provided solely for
the convenience of bondholders only at the time of issuance of the Bonds and the City does not make any representation
with respect to such numbers or undertake any responsibility for their accuracy now or at any time in the future.



No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the City of Boston or the underwriter of the Bonds to give any
information or to make any representations in connection with the Bonds or the matters described herein, other than those contained in
this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been
authorized by the foregoing. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall
there be any sale of the Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or
sale. The information contained herein has been furnished by the City and certain information has been obtained from other sources
which are believed to be reliable, but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness and is not to be construed as a representation of
the underwriter of the Bonds or, as to information from other sources, of the City. This Official Statement is submitted in connection
with the sale of the Bonds and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose.

Table of Contents

THE CITY o 1
SECURITY FOR THE BONDS........ccccoviiiiriicieinineanene 1
THE BONDS

DESCRIPTION .....ociiiiiiiie e
AUTHORIZATION AND PURPOSE ..........cccovvnnane.
REDEMPTION PRIOR TO MATURITY.....
BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER SYSTEM ......
PLAN OF REFUNDING..........cooiiiiiiiiiee
DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS.................
RATE OF PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT ......
LITIGATION ..ottt
TAX MATTERS .....cciiiiii
SERIES A BONDS AND SERIES B BONDS....
SERIES C BONDS AND SERIES D BONDS
CIRCULAR 230 DISCLAIMER........ccoeiiiiiie
CREDIT RATINGS
COMPETITIVE SALE OF BONDS ..o 12

LEGAL MATTERS. ... 12
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS........ccoccvviiiiriinne .13
FINANCIAL ADVISOR. .......ccvviiiiiiiin .. 13
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE........cccoeoiniiiiiiiiiie, 13

New Hampshire Residents:

MISCELLANEQUS..........ooo e 13
APPENDIX A—INFORMATION STATEMENT OF THE
CITY OF BOSTON DATED MARCH 1, 2010 ...... A-1
EXHIBIT I—REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS: AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2009 ..ot A-l
EXHIBIT II—COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
AND STATEMENTS OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, OPERATING TRANSFERS AND
FUND EQUITY FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED
JUNE 30, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006, AND 2005 ....... A-ll
EXHIBIT I1Il— CITY OF BOSTON—SELECTED
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC
INFORMATION ..o A-ll1
APPENDIX B— PROPOSED FORM OF OPINIONS
OF BOND COUNSEL......cccoiiiiiieee e B-I
APPENDIX C— PROPOSED FORM OF CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE........cccoviiiviiin, C-1

In making an investment decision investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the
terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These securities have not been recommended by
any federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, the foregoing authorities have
not confirmed the accuracy or determined the adequacy of this document. Any representation to the contrary is

a criminal offense.



OFFICIAL STATEMENT
of the
CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
relating to
$39,995,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2010 SERIES A
$68,345,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2010 SERIES B
$30,905,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2010 SERIES C
(BUILD AMERICA BONDS — FEDERALLY TAXABLE - DIRECT PAYMENT)
and
$16,685,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2010 SERIES D
(RECOVERY ZONE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BONDS - FEDERALLY TAXABLE - DIRECT PAYMENT)

This Official Statement (which includes the cover page and Appendices hereto) provides information
concerning the City of Boston, Massachusetts (the “City”), and the $39,995,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2010
Series A (the “Series A Bonds™), $68,345,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2010 Series B (the “Series B Bonds”),
$30,905,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2010 Series C (Build America Bonds — Federally Taxable — Direct
Payment) (the “Series C Bonds™), and the $16,685,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2010 Series D (Recovery Zone
Economic Development Bonds — Federally Taxable — Direct Payment)(the “Series D Bonds,” and, together with the
Series A Bonds, the Series B Bonds and the Series C Bonds, the “Bonds”), to be issued by the City as described
herein. Certain credit factors concerning the Bonds are described throughout this Official Statement, which should
be read in its entirety. This Official Statement speaks only as of its date and the information contained herein is
subject to change after this date.

THE CITY

The City of Boston, incorporated as a town in 1630 and as a city in 1822, is the largest city in Massachusetts
and the capital of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the “Commonwealth”). The City and its component
governmental units are responsible for the provision of a wide range of government services, including education,
public safety, public health, urban planning and development and the maintenance of the City’s infrastructure, and
for funding certain employee benefits, state authority assessments and debt service requirements. Its primary sources
of revenue are property taxes, state aid and certain excises. Management of the City’s finances includes preparation
of annual operating and capital budgets, the exercise of expenditure controls and cash management. For a full
discussion concerning the City and its finances, see “Appendix A—City of Boston, Massachusetts, Information
Statement Dated March 1, 2010 (the “Information Statement”).

As the economic hub of New England, Boston is a center for professional, financial, higher educational and
medical services, and the focus of tourist and convention travel in New England. For a description of certain
demographic and economic information about the City, see “Appendix A—Exhibit 111—City of Boston—Selected
Demographic and Economic Information.”

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS

The Bonds will be valid general obligations of the City, for the payment of the principal of and interest on
which the full faith and credit of the City will be pledged. To the extent not paid from other legally available
revenues of the City, the Bonds are payable from ad valorem taxes which may be levied upon all taxable property in
the City without limit as to rate or amount.

Chapter 643 of the Acts of 1983 of the Commonwealth, as amended (the “Bond Procedure Act of 1983”),
requires that the debt and interest charges on all general obligation indebtedness of the City (including the Bonds), if
not otherwise provided for, be included in the City’s annual tax levy. The Bond Procedure Act of 1983 also
mandates assessment of taxes in excess of the levy limits imposed by the statewide property tax limit (“Proposition
2%") to the extent that the debt service on City obligations is not otherwise provided for in the tax levy or from other
sources, with no allowance made for any other expenditures of the City. See “City Revenues—Property Taxes—
Proposition 2%” in the Information Statement. Holders of City obligations do not have a statutory priority with
respect to or a security interest in the portion of the tax levy attributable to such obligations. See “City
Indebtedness—Classification of City Debt” in the Information Statement.

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, the City is subject to suit on the Bonds, and courts of competent jurisdiction
have power in appropriate proceedings to order payment of a judgment on the Bonds from available funds or, in the
absence of available funds, to order the inclusion of the required amount in the next annual tax levy. In exercising
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their discretion as to whether to enter such an order, the courts could take into account all relevant factors, including
the current operating needs of the City and the availability and adequacy of other remedies. The Massachusetts
Supreme Judicial Court has stated in the past that a judgment against a municipality can be enforced by the taking
and sale of property of any inhabitant. There has been no judicial determination, however, as to whether the remedy
is constitutional under current due process and equal protection standards.

Payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds is not secured by or limited to a pledge of any particular
revenue source of the City. Chapter 190 of the Acts of 1982 of the Commonwealth (the “1982 Funding Loan Act”)
and the Bond Procedure Act of 1983 authorize the City to pledge to the payment of any of its general obligation
notes or bonds all or any part of the revenues of the City derived from any tax, fee, distribution or reimbursement
payable to the City (except distributions and reimbursements required by law to be specifically used for statutorily
defined purposes), including state aid distributions and the proceeds of the City’s annual property tax levy. No
obligations are currently outstanding which are secured by such a pledge. The Bond Procedure Act of 1983 also
authorizes the City to issue special obligation bonds payable solely from the revenues of a revenue-producing
facility, and Chapter 152 of the Acts of 1997, as amended (the “Convention Center Act”), authorizes the City to
pledge certain excise receipts and other revenues of the City to the payment of bonds of the City issued under the
authority of the Convention Center Act. The only special obligation indebtedness of the City outstanding as of
March 1, 2010 was $97.1 million of the City’s Convention Center Loan, Act of 1997, Special Obligation Bonds,
Series A, and $80.6 million of the City’s Special Obligation Refunding Bonds, Boston City Hospital Issue. See
“City Indebtedness—Special Obligation Debt” in the Information Statement. To the extent required for the payment
of any such secured indebtedness, the revenues pledged to their payment would not be available to pay the Bonds.

Except to the extent specifically pledged to the payment of certain indebtedness, state aid distributions to the
City are generally available for the payment of bonds or notes of the City, but, under certain circumstances, they
may be unavailable to the extent such distributions are applied to the payment of “qualified bonds” issued by the
City (none of which bonds have been issued), or to the extent that such distributions may be applied under state law
to the satisfaction of unpaid assessments due the Commonwealth from the City for debt issued by the Massachusetts
Bay Transportation Authority, or for obligations of the City or of the Boston Water and Sewer Commission issued to
the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust. See “City Indebtedness—Classification of City Debt” in the
Information Statement.

State statutes also provide that certain parking meter receipts may be used only for parking and related
purposes and, accordingly, monies derived from this source may be unavailable to pay general obligation bonds and
notes issued for other purposes. In addition, subject to certain limits, the City may annually authorize the
establishment of one or more revolving funds in connection with the use of certain revenues for programs that
produce those revenues. If it accepts certain statutory provisions, the City may also establish enterprise funds for
certain purposes, including for a health care, solid waste, recreational or transportation facility, and for police or fire
services. Under those provisions any surplus in the fund is restricted to use for capital expenditures or reduction of
user charges. The City has not established any such revolving funds or enterprise funds.

Section 19A of Chapter 44 of the General Laws provides, in part, that if the City is or is likely to be unable to
pay principal of or interest on any of its bonds or notes when due, it shall notify the state Commissioner of Revenue.
The Commissioner shall certify such inability to the State Treasurer. The State Treasurer shall pay the due or
overdue amount by the later of three days after the certification or one business day prior to the due date. This
payment is limited, however, to the estimated amounts distributable by the Commonwealth to the City during the
remainder of the fiscal year. If, for any reason, any portion of the certified sum has not been paid at the end of the
fiscal year, the State Treasurer shall pay it as soon as practicable in the next fiscal year to the extent of the estimated
distributions for such fiscal year. The sums so paid shall be charged with interest and administrative costs against the
distributions to the City. The foregoing provisions are not a pledge of the faith and credit of the Commonwealth. The
Commonwealth has not agreed to maintain existing levels of state distributions and the law requiring the
Commonwealth to use estimated distributions to pay debt service may be subject to repeal by future legislation.
Moreover, adoption of the state’s annual appropriation act is often delayed beyond the beginning of the fiscal year,
and estimated distributions which are subject to appropriation may be unavailable to pay local debt service until they
are appropriated.

The rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of payment of the Bonds may be subject to
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights heretofore or
hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable and their enforcement may also be subject to the exercise
of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. Massachusetts municipalities are not currently authorized by the
Massachusetts General Laws to file a petition for bankruptcy under Federal Bankruptcy laws.



THE BONDS

Description

The Bonds will be dated the date of delivery and will mature on April 1 of the years, and in the amounts, and
will bear interest calculated on the basis of 30-day months and a 360-day year at the rates, shown on the inside front
cover of this Official Statement. Interest on the Bonds will be payable on October 1, 2010 and semiannually
thereafter on each April 1 and October 1, provided that if such day is not a business day, interest will be payable on
the next business day.

The Bonds will be issued by means of a book-entry system, with bond certificates immobilized at The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”). Bond certificates will not be available for distribution
to the public and will evidence ownership of the Bonds in principal amounts of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof,
with transfers of ownership effected on the records of DTC and its participants pursuant to rules and procedures
established by DTC and its participants. Interest on the Bonds will be paid on the interest payment dates or upon
redemption, and principal of the Bonds will be paid at maturity or upon redemption, to DTC or its nominee as
registered owner of the Bonds. Transfer of principal or redemption price and interest payments to participants of
DTC will be the responsibility of DTC; transfer of principal or redemption price and interest payments to beneficial
owners by participants of DTC will be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of beneficial
owners. The record date for principal or redemption price and interest payments will be the fifteenth day of the
month next preceding a debt service payment date or, if such day is not a business day, the next succeeding business
day. The City will not be responsible or liable for maintaining, supervising or reviewing the records maintained by
DTC, its participants or persons acting through such participants.

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Boston, Massachusetts, will act as paying agent for the
Bonds (the “Paying Agent”).

Authorization and Purpose

The Bonds will be issued pursuant to Chapter 643 of the Acts of 1983 of the Commonwealth, as amended, and
various loan orders of the City Council approved by the Mayor. The Series A Bonds, the Series C Bonds and the
Series D will be issued to finance various capital projects of the City. The Series B Bonds will be issued for the
purpose of advance refunding certain outstanding general obligation bonds of the City more fully described under
“Plan of Refunding,” below.

Build America Bonds and Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds

The City intends to elect to treat the Series C Bonds as “Build America Bonds” and the Series D Bonds as
“Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds” for purposes of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009, enacted February 17, 2009 (“ARRA™), and to receive cash subsidies from the United States Treasury
(“Interest Subsidy Payments”) in connection therewith. As a result of such elections, interest on the Series C Bonds
and the Series D Bonds will be included in the gross income of holders thereof for federal income tax purposes, and
the holders will not be entitled to any federal tax credits otherwise applicable to Build America Bonds or Recovery
Zone Economic Development Bonds in connection with their holding of the Series C Bonds and the Series D Bonds.
Pursuant to ARRA, the City will be entitled to receive Interest Subsidy Payments equal to 35% of the interest
payable on the Series C Bonds and 45% of the interest payable on the Series D Bonds provided that the City makes
certain required filings in accordance with applicable federal rules pertaining to the Interest Subsidy Payments.
Interest Subsidy Payments are treated as overpayments of tax, and accordingly are subject to offset against certain
amounts that may be owed by the City to the federal government or its agencies. In addition, it is possible that the
Interest Subsidy Payments could be reduced or eliminated or the timing of the payment thereof altered as a result of
a change in federal law. The Interest Subsidy Payments received by the City are not pledged to pay the Series C
Bonds or the Series D Bonds, nor are their receipt a condition of payment of any portion of the principal of or
interest on the Series C Bonds or the Series D Bonds. Federal tax law imposes certain requirements for qualification
of the Series C Bonds as Build America Bonds and the Series D Bonds as Recovery Zone Economic Development
Bonds. There can be no assurance that the Series C Bonds will qualify as Build America Bonds or that the Series D
Bonds will qualify as Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds or as to the receipt, or timing of receipt, of
Interest Subsidy Payments. The City is obligated to make payments of the principal of and interest on the Series C
Bonds and the Series D Bonds whether or not it receives Interest Subsidy Payments.



Redemption Prior To Maturity

Optional Redemption

The Series A Bonds and the Series D Bonds maturing on or before April 1, 2020 will not be subject to
redemption prior to maturity. The Series A Bonds, the Series C Bonds, and the Series D Bonds maturing after April
1, 2020 will be subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the City, on or after April 1, 2020, as a whole
or in part at any time, in such order of maturity as the City may determine and by lot within each maturity as
selected by DTC and its participants, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Series A Bonds to be
redeemed, plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

The Series B Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to their stated dates of maturity.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption

The Series C Bonds maturing on April 1, 2024 are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on April 1 in
each of the years and at each of the principal amounts set forth below, plus accrued interest to the redemption date,
as follows:

Year Amount

2021 $2,900,000
2022 2,980,000
2023 3,065,000
20247 3,155,000

f Final maturity.

Book-Entry Transfer System

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities
registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of each
series of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of that maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity, corporate and
municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct
Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales
and other securities transactions, in deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and
pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities
certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust
companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The
Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC, is the holding company for DTC, National, and
Securities Clearing Corporation, and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing
agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated securities. Access to the DTC system is also available to
others as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations
that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly
(“Indirect Participants”). DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its
Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at
www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive
a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial
Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive
written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written
confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or
Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership
interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting
on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership
interests in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

4


http://www.dtcc.com/
http://www.dtc.org/

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the
name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of the Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such
other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts
such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will
remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity of a series are being
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such
maturity to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds
unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI procedures. Under its usual procedures,
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede
& Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the
record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal or redemption price and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct
Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the City or the
Paying Agent on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments
by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the
case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC or, its nominee, the Paying Agent, or the City, subject to any
statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal or redemption price
and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is
the responsibility of the City or the Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of
Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by
giving reasonable notice to the City or the Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor
securities depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered to DTC.

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from
sources that the City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.



PLAN OF REFUNDING

The Series B Bonds are being issued to advance refund, at par, the outstanding general obligation bonds of the
City described below (collectively, the “Refunded Bonds™):

Principal
Maturity Amount to be Redemption
Bond Series Date Interest Rate Refunded Date CUSIP*
2002 Series A 2/1/2014 4.375% $4,500,000 2/1/2012 1008523V2
2003 Series A 2/1/2015 4.000 6,345,000 2/1/2013 1008525U2
2/1/2016 5.000 6,500,000 2/1/2013 1008525V0
2/1/2017 4.250 6,685,000 2/1/2013 1008525W8
2/1/2019 5.000 6,120,000 2/1/2013 1008525Y4
2/1/2020 4.500 6,340,000 2/1/2013 100852571
2005 Series A 1/1/2017 5.000 2,995,000 1/1/2015 1008527U0
2006 Series A 1/1/2018 5.000 3,130,000 1/1/2016 100853BM1
1/1/2019 5.000 3,130,000 1/1/2016 100853BN9
1/1/2020 5.000 3,130,000 1/1/2016 100853BP4
2007 Series A 3/1/2020 5.000 4,230,000 3/1/2017 100853CJ7
3/1/2021 5.000 4,440,000 3/1/2017 100853CK4
3/1/2022 5.000 4,665,000 3/1/2017 100853CL2
3/1/2023 5.000 3,985,000 3/1/2017 100853CMO0

*  Copyright, American Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein are provided by Standard & Poor’s, CUSIP Service Bureau, a division of The McGraw-
Hill Companies, Inc. The CUSIP numbers listed above are being provided solely for the convenience of bondholders only at the time of issuance of the
Bonds and the City does not make any representation with respect to such numbers or undertake any responsibility for their accuracy now or at any
time in the future.

Upon delivery of the Series B Bonds, the City will enter into a Refunding Escrow Agreement (the “Escrow
Agreement”) with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Boston, Massachusetts, as escrow agent
(the “Escrow Agent”) to provide for the refunding of the Refunded Bonds. Upon receipt of the proceeds of the
Series B Bonds, the City will transfer a portion of such proceeds to the Escrow Agent for deposit in a Refunding
Escrow Fund established under the Refunding Escrow Agreement. The Escrow Agent will invest such amount in
direct obligations of the United States of America or obligations unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of
America (“Governmental Obligations”) maturing in amounts and on dates, and bearing interest at rates, sufficient
without reinvestment to pay when due the interest on, and upon redemption, the outstanding principal of, the
Refunded Bonds. The Refunding Escrow Fund, including the interest earnings on the Government Obligations, is
pledged for the benefit of the holders of the Refunded Bonds.

Verification of Mathematical Accuracy

Robert Thomas CPA, LLC will verify from information provided to them the mathematical accuracy as of the
date of the closing on the Series B Bonds of (i) the computation contained in the provided schedules to determine
that the anticipated receipts from the Government Obligations and cash deposits, to be held in escrow, will be
sufficient to pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds, and (ii) the computation of yield on
the Government Obligations contained in provided schedules used by Bond Counsel in its determination that the
interest on the Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.
Robert Thomas CPA, LLC will express no opinion on the assumptions provided to them, nor as to the exemption
from taxation of the interest on the Series A Bonds or the Series B Bonds.

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

Simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds, the City expects to issue its $17,415,000" General Obligation
Bonds, 2010 Series E (Qualified School Construction Bonds) (the “Series E Bonds” and, together with the Bonds,
the “2010 Bonds™). The Series E Bonds will be issued for the purpose of paying costs of capital projects for City
schools.

“ Preliminary; subject to change.



The following table sets forth the gross debt service requirements for the City’s outstanding general obligation
bonds as of March 1, 2010, the gross debt service requirements on the 2010 Bonds, the portion of such gross debt
service requirements that are related to the Refunded Bonds, and the resulting net gross debt service requirements on
the general obligation bonds of the City following the issuance of the 2010 Bonds.

Schedule of Debt Service Payments
($ in thousands)*

Total
Bonds/Notes Outstanding Principal
As of March 2010 @ The 2010 Bonds @ The Refunded Bonds and

Fiscal Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Interest @
2010 $17,815 $ 5,789 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 23,604
2011 87,832 37,426 5,245 6,260 - (3,136) 133,627
2012 85,595 33,464 5,345 6,155 - (3,136) 127,423
2013 80,175 29,776 5,505 5,995 - (3,136) 118,315
2014 71,670 26,306 10,225 5,777 (4,500) (3.136) 106,341
2015 65,645 23,030 12,290 5,416 (6,345) (2,939) 97,096
2016 62,060 20,141 11,145 4,934 (6,500) (2,686) 89,093
2017 58,290 17,318 14,400 4,504 (9,680) (2,361) 82,472
2018 54,065 14,582 8,040 3,935 (3.130) (1,927) 75,565
2019 48,775 12,204 14,205 3,616 (9,250) (1,770) 67,779
2020 42,670 9,964 18,750 3,022 (13,700) (1,308) 59,398
2021 38,535 8,029 8,225 2,243 (4,440) (655) 51,937
2022 35,010 6,255 8,510 1,899 (4,665) (433) 46,576
2023 30,850 5,235 7,845 1,590 (3,985) (199) 41,336
2024 23,530 4,024 3,970 1,297 - - 32,821
2025 19,719 3,065 4,080 1,119 - - 27,982
2026 17,335 2,213 3,405 927 - - 23,880
2027 15,470 1,454 3,505 760 - - 21,189
2028 11,295 773 3,625 585 - - 16,278
2029 4,740 225 3,745 400 - - 9,110
2030 - - 3,870 205 - - 4,075
Totals $871,070 $261,275 $155,930 $60,640 $ (66,195) $ (26,822) $1,255,897

* Rows and columns may not add due to rounding.

(1) Includes sinking fund payments with respect to the City’s outstanding $20,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series A (Qualified
School Construction Bonds), which mature on September 15, 2024, and principal and interest payments with respect to the Refunded
Bonds.

(2)  Does not include principal and interest payable with respect to the Series E Bonds.

Source: City of Boston Auditing Department.

Rate of Principal Retirement

The City will retire the following amounts of its outstanding general obligation bonds over the following
respective periods. This table is stated in two ways, with scheduled principal retirement prior to the issuance of the
2010 Bonds, and then subsequent to the issuance of the 2010 Bonds. In the case of the City’s $20,000,000 General
Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series A (Qualified School Construction Bonds) maturing September 15, 2024, sinking
fund payments for the retirement of such bonds have been credited toward such retirement on the dates such
payments are scheduled to be made under the respective paying agent agreements for such bonds.

Debt Outstanding Percentage of Debt Outstanding Percentage of Debt
as of March 1, 2010 Debt Outstanding After Issuance of the Outstanding After
to be Retired as of March 1, 2010 2010 Bonds to be Retired Issuance of the
Term of Retirement (in thousands)- to be Retired (in thousands) 2010 Bonds to be Retired
Fiscal 2010-2015 $408,730 46.9% $436,495 45.4%
Fiscal 2016-2020 265,858 30.5 290,138 30.2
Fiscal 2021-2025 147,642 17.0 167,182 175
Fiscal 2026-2030 48,840 _56 66,990 6.9
Total $871,070 100.0% $960,805 100.0%

Source: City of Boston Auditing Department



LITIGATION

No litigation is pending or, to the knowledge of the City’s Corporation Counsel, threatened (a) seeking to
restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Bonds, (b) contesting or affecting any authority for or the validity of
the Bonds, (c) contesting the power of the City to issue the Bonds or the power of the City to offer and sell the
Bonds to the Underwriter, (d) contesting the power of the City to levy and collect taxes to pay the Bonds (e)
contesting the corporate existence or boundaries of the City, or (f) contesting the title of officials of the City who
have acted with respect to the proceedings for the issuance and sale of the Bonds to their respective offices.

There are pending in courts within the Commonwealth various suits in which the City is a defendant. No
litigation is pending or threatened which is likely to result, either individually or in the aggregate, in final judgments
against the City which would affect materially its ability to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due
or which would affect materially its financial condition.

TAX MATTERS

Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds

In the opinion of Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel to the City (“Bond Counsel”), based
upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters,
compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code™). Bond
Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds is not a specific
preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, and that interest on
the Series A Bonds is not included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum
taxable income. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to the treatment of interest on the Series B Bonds when
determining adjusted current earnings for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed in corporations,
and expresses no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the ownership or
disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds.

The Code imposes various requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax
purposes of interest on obligations such as the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds. Failure to comply with these
requirements may result in interest on the Series A Bonds or the Series B Bonds being included in gross income for
federal income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Series A Bonds and the Series B
Bonds. The City has covenanted to comply with such requirements to ensure that interest on the Series A Bonds and
the Series B Bonds will not be included in federal gross income. The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance
with these requirements.

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Series A Bonds and the Series B
Bonds is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes, and the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds are
exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes. Bond Counsel has not opined as to other Massachusetts tax
consequences arising with respect to the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds. Prospective Bondholders should be
aware, however, that the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds are included in the measure of Massachusetts estate
and inheritance taxes, and the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds and the interest thereon are included in the
measure of certain Massachusetts corporate excise and franchise taxes. Bond Counsel has not opined as to the
taxability of the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws of any state other
than Massachusetts.

A complete copy of the proposed form of the opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the Series A Bonds and
the Series B Bonds is set forth in Appendix B hereto.

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Series A Bonds or the Series B Bonds is less than the
amount to be paid at maturity of such Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually
over the term of such Bonds), the difference constitutes “original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent
properly allocable to each owner thereof, is treated as interest on such Bonds which is excluded from gross income
for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes. For this purpose, the issue
price of a particular maturity of the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds is the first price at which a substantial
amount of such maturity of such Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or
organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers). The original issue discount
with respect to any maturity of the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds accrues daily over the term to maturity of
such Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-line interpolations
between compounding dates). The accruing original issue discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to
determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition (including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bonds.
Bondholders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Series A
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Bonds or the Series B Bonds with original issue discount, including the treatment of purchasers who do not purchase
such Bonds in the original offering to the public at the first price at which a substantial amount of such Bonds is sold
to the public.

Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount
greater than the stated principal amount to be paid at maturity of such Bonds, or, in some cases, at the earlier
redemption date of such Bonds (“Premium Bonds”), will be treated as having amortizable bond premium for federal
income tax purposes and Massachusetts personal income tax purposes. No deduction is allowable for the
amortizable bond premium in the case of obligations, such as the Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded
from gross income for federal income tax purposes. However, a Bondholder’s basis in a Premium Bond will be
reduced by the amount of amortizable bond premium properly allocable to such Bondholder. Holders of Premium
Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable bond premium in
their particular circumstances.

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not
taken) or events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds
may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, such Bonds. Further, no assurance can be given
that pending or future legislation, including amendments to the Code, if enacted into law, or any proposed
legislation, including amendments to the Code, or any future judicial, regulatory or administrative interpretation or
development with respect to existing law, will not adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the
Series A Bonds or the Series B Bonds. Prospective Bondholders are urged to consult their own tax advisors with
respect to proposals to restructure the federal income tax.

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds is
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income
taxes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series A Bonds and the Series B
Bonds may otherwise affect the federal or state tax liability of a Bondholder. Among other possible consequences of
ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds, the
Code requires recipients of certain social security and certain railroad retirement benefits to take into account
receipts or accruals of interest on such Bonds in determining the portion of such benefits that are included in gross
income. The nature and extent of all such other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status of the
Bondholder or the Bondholder’s other items of income or deduction. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding
any such other tax consequences and Bondholders should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to such
consequences.

Series C Bonds and Series D Bonds

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, interest on the Series C Bonds and the Series D Bonds is
included in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes under the Code. Bond Counsel
expresses no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or
accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series C Bonds and the Series D Bonds.

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Series C Bonds and the Series D
Bonds is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes, and the Series C Bonds and the Series D Bonds are
exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes. Bond Counsel has not opined as to any other Massachusetts tax
consequences arising with respect to the Series C Bonds and the Series D Bonds. Prospective Bondholders should be
aware, however, that the Series C Bonds and the Series D Bonds are included in the income of Massachusetts estate
and inheritance taxes, and the Series C Bonds and the Series D Bonds and the interest thereon are included in the
measure of certain Massachusetts corporate excise and franchise taxes. Bond Counsel has not opined as to the
taxability of the Series C Bonds and the Series D Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws of any state other
than Massachusetts.

A complete copy of the proposed opinion of Bond Counsel with the respects to the Series C Bonds and the
Series D Bonds is set forth in Appendix B hereto.

The following discussion summarizes certain U.S. federal tax considerations generally applicable to beneficial
owners of the Series C Bonds and the Series D Bonds that acquire their Bonds in the initial offering. The discussion
below is based upon laws, regulations, rulings, and decisions in effect and available on the date hereof, all of which
are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. Prospective investors should note that no rulings have been or
are expected to be sought from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) with respect to any of the U.S. federal income
tax consequences discussed below, and no assurance can be given that the IRS will not take contrary positions.
Further, the following discussion does not deal with all U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to any
given investor, nor does it address the U.S. federal income tax considerations applicable to investors who may be
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subject to special taxing rules (regardless of whether or not such persons constitute U.S. Holders), such as certain
U.S. expatriates, banks, real estate investment trusts, regulated investment companies, insurance companies, tax-
exempt organizations, dealers or traders in securities or currencies, partnerships, S corporations, estates and trusts,
investors who hold their Series C Bonds or Series D Bonds as part of a hedge, straddle or an integrated or
conversion transaction, or investors whose “functional currency” is not the U.S. dollar. Furthermore, the following
discussion does not address (i) alternative minimum tax consequences or (ii) the indirect effects on persons who
hold equity interests in a beneficial owner of Series C Bonds or Series D Bonds. In addition, this summary generally
is limited to investors who become beneficial owners of Series C Bonds or Series D Bonds pursuant to the initial
offering for the issue price that is applicable to such Bonds (i.e., the price at which a substantial amount of such
Bonds is first sold to the public) and who will hold their Bonds as “capital assets” within the meaning of the Code.

As used herein, “U.S. Holder” means a beneficial owner of a Series C Bonds or Series D Bond who for U.S.
federal income tax purposes is an individual citizen or resident of the United States, a corporation or other entity
taxable as a corporation created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or any state thereof (including
the District of Columbia), an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its
source or a trust with respect to which a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over
the administration of the trust and one or more United States persons (as defined in the Code) have the authority to
control all substantial decisions of the trust (or a trust that has made a valid election under Treasury Regulations to
be treated as a domestic trust). As used herein, “Non-U.S. Holder” generally means a beneficial owner of a Series C
Bonds or Series D Bond (other than a partnership) who is not a U.S. Holder. If an entity classified as a partnership
for U.S. federal income tax purposes is a beneficial owner of Bonds, the tax treatment of a partner in such
partnership generally will depend upon the status of the partner and upon the activities of the partnership. Partners in
such partnerships should consult their own tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of an investment in the
Series C Bonds or the Series D Bonds (including their status as U.S. Holders or Non-U.S. Holders).

U.S. Holders

Interest. Stated interest on the Series C Bonds and the Series D Bonds generally will be taxable to a U.S.
Holder as ordinary interest income at the time such amounts are accrued or received, in accordance with the U.S.
Holder’s method of accounting for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

“Original issue discount” will arise for U.S. federal income tax purposes in respect of any Series C Bonds or
Series D Bond if its stated redemption price at maturity exceeds its issue price by more than a de minimis amount
(as determined for tax purposes). For any Series C Bonds or Series D Bonds issued with original issue discount, the
excess of the stated redemption price at maturity of that Bond over its issue price will constitute original issue
discount for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The stated redemption price at maturity of a Series C Bond or Series
D Bond is the sum of all scheduled amounts payable on such Bond other than qualified stated interest. U.S. Holders
of Series C Bonds and Series D Bonds generally will be required to include any original issue discount in income for
U.S. federal income tax purposes as it accrues, in accordance with a constant yield method based on a compounding
of interest (which may be before the receipt of cash payments attributable to such income). Under this method, U.S.
Holders of Series C Bonds and Series D Bonds issued with original issue discount generally will be required to
include in income increasingly greater amounts of original issue discount in successive accrual periods.

“Premium” generally will arise for U.S. federal income tax purposes in respect of any Series C Bonds and
Series D Bonds to the extent its issue price exceeds its stated principal amount. A U.S. Holder of a Series C Bonds
or Series D Bond issued at a premium may make an election, applicable to all debt securities purchased at a
premium by such U.S. Holder, to amortize such premium, using a constant yield method over the term of such
Bond.

Disposition of the Series C Bonds and Series D Bonds. Unless a nonrecognition provision of the Code applies,
the sale, exchange, redemption, retirement (including pursuant to an offer by the City), reissuance or other
disposition of a Series C Bond or Series D Bond will be a taxable event for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In
such event, a U.S. Holder of a Series C Bond or Series D Bond generally will recognize gain or loss equal to the
difference between (i) the amount of cash plus the fair market value of property received (except to the extent
attributable to accrued but unpaid interest on the Bond which will be taxed in the manner described above under
“Interest”) and (ii) the U.S. Holder’s adjusted tax basis in the Bond (generally, the purchase price paid by the U.S.
Holder for the Bond, increased by the amount of any original issue discount previously included in income by such
U.S. Holder with respect to such Bond and decreased by any payments previously made on such Bond, other than
payments of qualified stated interest, or decreased by any amortized premium). Any such gain or loss generally will
be capital gain or loss. A material modification of the terms of any Series C Bond or Series D Bond may result in a
deemed reissuance thereof, in which event a beneficial owner of the modified Bonds generally will recognize
taxable gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount realized from the sale, exchange or retirement (less
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any accrued qualified stated interest which will be taxable as such) and the beneficial owner’s adjusted tax basis in
the Bond.

In the case of a non-corporate U.S. Holder of a Series C Bond or Series D Bond, the maximum marginal U.S.
federal income tax rate applicable to any such gain may be lower than the maximum marginal U.S. federal income
tax rate applicable to ordinary income if such U.S. holder’s holding period for the Bond exceeds one year. The
deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.

Non-U.S. Holders

The following discussion applies only to non-U.S. Holders. This discussion does not address all aspects of
U.S. federal income taxation that may be relevant to non-U.S. Holders in light of their particular circumstances. For
example, special rules may apply to a non-U.S. Holder that is a “controlled foreign corporation” or a “passive
foreign investment company,” and, accordingly, non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors to
determine the United States federal, state, local and other tax consequences of holding the Series C Bonds or the
Series D Bonds that may be relevant to them.

Interest. Subject to the discussion below under the heading “Information Reporting and Backup Withholding,”
payments of principal of, and interest on, any Series C Bond or Series D Bond to a Non-U.S. Holder, other than a
bank which acquires such Bond in consideration of an extension of credit made pursuant to a loan agreement entered
into in the ordinary course of business, generally will not be subject to any U.S. withholding tax provided that the
beneficial owner of the Bond provides a certification completed in compliance with applicable statutory and
regulatory requirements, which requirements are discussed below under the heading “Information Reporting and
Backup Withholding,” or an exemption is otherwise established.

Disposition of Series C Bonds or Series D Bonds. Subject to the discussion below under the heading
“Information Reporting and Backup Withholding,” any gain realized by a Non-U.S. Holder upon the sale, exchange,
redemption, retirement (including pursuant to an offer by the Commonwealth) or other disposition of a Series C
Bond or Series D Bond generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax, unless (i) such gain is effectively
connected with the conduct by such Non-U.S. Holder of a trade or business within the United States; or (ii) in the
case of any gain realized by an individual Non-U.S. Holder, such holder is present in the United States for 183 days
or more in the taxable year of such sale, exchange, redemption, retirement (including pursuant to an offer by the
State) or other disposition and certain other conditions are met.

U.S. Federal Estate Tax. A Series C Bond or Series D Bond that is held by an individual who at the time of
death is not a citizen or resident of the United States will not be subject to U.S. federal estate tax as a result of such
individual’s death, provided that at the time of such individual’s death, payments of interest with respect to such
Bond would not have been effectively connected with the conduct by such individual of a trade or business within
the United States.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding—U.S. Holders and non-U.S. Holders

Interest on, and proceeds received from the sale of, a Series C Bond or Series D Bond generally will be
reported to U.S. Holders, other than certain exempt recipients, such as corporations, on IRS Form 1099. In addition,
a backup withholding tax may apply to payments with respect to the Series C Bonds and Series D Bonds if the U.S.
Holder fails to furnish the payor with a correct taxpayer identification number or other required certification or fails
to report interest or dividends required to be shown on the U.S. Holder’s federal income tax returns.

In general, a non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to backup withholding with respect to interest payments on
the Series C Bond and Series D Bonds if such non-U.S. Holder has certified to the payor under penalties of perjury
(i) the name and address of such non-U.S. Holder and (ii) that such non-U.S. Holder is not a United States person,
or, in the case of an individual, that such non-U.S. Holder is neither a citizen nor a resident of the United States, and
the payor does not know or have reason to know that such certifications are false. However, information reporting
on IRS Form 1042-S may still apply to interest payments on the Series C Bonds and Series D Bonds made to non-
U.S. Holders not subject to backup withholding. In addition, a non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to backup
withholding with respect to the proceeds of the sale of a Series C Bond or Series D Bond made within the United
States or conducted through certain U.S. financial intermediaries if the payor receives the certifications described
above and the payor does not know or have reason to know that such certifications are false, or if the non-U.S.
Holder otherwise establishes an exemption. Non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the
application of information reporting and backup withholding in their particular circumstances, the availability of
exemptions and the procedure for obtaining such exemptions, if available.
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Backup withholding is not an additional tax, and amounts withheld as backup withholding are allowed as a
refund or credit against a holder’s federal income tax liability, provided that the required information as to
withholding is furnished to the IRS.

The foregoing summary is included herein for general information only and does not discuss all aspects of
U.S. federal income taxation that may be relevant to a particular holder of Series C Bonds or Series D Bonds in light
of the holder’s particular circumstances and income tax situation. Prospective investors are urged to consult their
own tax advisors as to any tax consequences to them from the purchase, ownership and disposition of Bonds,
including the application and effect of state, local, foreign and other tax laws.

Circular 230 Disclaimer

The preceding tax matters discussion related to the Bonds is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be
used, for the purpose of avoiding penalties that may be imposed under federal tax law in connection with the Bonds.
Such discussion was written to support the promotion or marketing of the Bonds. Each purchaser of the Bonds
should seek advice based on such purchaser’s particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

CREDIT RATINGS

Moody’s Investors Service Inc., (“Moody’s”), 7 World Trade Center at 250 Greenwich Street, New York,
New York, and Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, a division of the McGraw-Hill companies (“Standard &
Poor’s”), 55 Water Street, New York, New York, have assigned the ratings of “Aal” and “AA+,” respectively, to
the Bonds, reflecting the City’s capacity to pay debt service. Such ratings reflect only the views of such
organizations and any desired explanation of the significance of such ratings should be obtained from the rating
agency furnishing the same. Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on the information and materials furnished to
it and on investigations, studies and assumptions of it own. There is no assurance that any such ratings will continue
for any given period of time or that such ratings will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating
agency concerned, if in the judgment of such rating agency, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision
or withdrawal of any such ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.

COMPETITIVE SALE OF BONDS

The Bonds were offered for sale by the City on March 18, 2010, in accordance with the Official Notice of Sale
dated March 11, 2010 (the “Official Notice of Sale”).

Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (“Merrill Lynch”) was the successful bidder for the Series
A Bonds. Information provided by Merrill Lynch regarding the interest rates and reoffering yields of the Series A
Bonds is set forth on page ii of this Official Statement. The Series A Bonds are being purchased from the City by
Merrill Lynch at an aggregate price of $43,950,221.08, reflecting the principal amount of $39,995,000, plus net
original issue premium of $4,090,916.12, less underwriter’s discount of $135,695.04.

J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. (“JPMorgan™) was the successful bidder for the Series B Bonds. Information
provided by JPMorgan regarding the interest rates and reoffering yields of the Series B Bonds is also set forth on
page ii of this Official Statement. The Series B Bonds are being purchased from the City by JPMorgan at an
aggregate price of $73,738,647.45, reflecting the principal amount of $68,345,000, plus net original issue premium
of $5,713,720.75, less underwriter’s discount of $320,073.30.

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. (“Citigroup”) was the successful bidder for the Series C Bonds and the Series D
Bonds. Information provided by Citigroup regarding the interest rates and reoffering yields of the Series C Bonds
and the Series D Bonds is set forth on page iii of this Official Statement. The Series C Bonds are being purchased
from the City by Citigroup at an aggregate price of $30,629,631.05, reflecting the principal amount of $30,905,000
less original issue discount equal to $59,033.95, and less underwriters discount of $216,335.00. The Series D Bonds
are being purchased from the City by Citigroup at an aggregate price of $16,563,860.25, reflecting the principal
amount of $16,685,000 less original issue discount equal to $23,031.95, and less underwriter’s discount of
$98,107.80.

Merrill Lynch, JPMorgan, and Citigroup, and any of their respective associates underwriting the Bonds, may
offer to sell the Bonds to certain dealers and others at prices other than the initial offering prices, and the public
offering prices may be changed from time to time by the underwriters.

LEGAL MATTERS

All legal matters incidental to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds are subject to the approval of
Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, Bond Counsel to the City. Reference should be
made to the form of opinions of Bond Counsel set forth in Appendix B for the matters to be covered therein. In
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addition, Corporation Counsel of the City will certify as to the accuracy of the statements contained in the first
paragraph under the caption “Litigation.”

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The financial statements of the City of Boston included as Exhibit | to Appendix A of this Official Statement
have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent certified public accountants, to the extent and for the period
indicated in their report thereon.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

Public Financial Management, Inc. (“PFM”) has served as financial advisor to the City for the issuance of the
Bonds. PFM is not obligated to undertake, and has not undertaken, either to make an independent verification of or
to assume responsibility for, the accuracy, completeness, or fairness of the information contained in this Official
Statement. PFM is an independent financial advisory firm and is not engaged in the business of underwriting,
trading, or distributing securities or other public securities.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the underwriter in complying with Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Rule™), the City will covenant for the benefit of owners of the Bonds to provide certain financial
information and operating data relating to the City by not later than 365 days after the end of each fiscal year (the
“Annual Report™), and to provide notices of occurrence of certain enumerated events, if material. The covenants will
be contained in a Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the proposed form of which is provided in Appendix D (the
“Certificate”). The Certificate will be executed on the delivery date of the Bonds and incorporated by reference in
the Bonds. The City has executed previous undertakings to provide annual reports or notices of material events in
accordance with the Rule and has never failed to comply in all material respects with any such undertaking, except
that, due to an administrative oversight, the annual reports required to be filed for fiscal years 2002, 2003 and 2004
were not filed within the time periods required under certain of such undertakings. The City has since filed a report
to comply with such continuing disclosure undertakings, and it has implemented procedures to ensure timely filing
of all future annual reports and notices of material events required thereunder.

In order to assist the City in carrying out its obligations under the Certificate and under its other continuing
disclosure undertakings, the City has entered into an agreement with Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C.
(“DAC”) pursuant to which DAC serves as dissemination agent for the City with respect to the continuing disclosure
filings required to satisfy such obligations.

MISCELLANEOUS

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the City and the purchasers
or holders of any of the Bonds. Any statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion are
intended merely as opinion and not as representation of fact. The information and expressions of opinion herein are
subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale of the Bonds shall,
under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the City, or its
agencies and authorities, since the date hereof.

CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

By: /s/ Lisa Calise Signori
Director of Administration and Finance and Collector-Treasurer

Dated: March 18, 2010
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APPENDIX A

CITY OF
BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

INFORMATION STATEMENT
Dated March 1, 2010

This Information Statement contains certain general and financial information concerning the City of
Boston, Massachusetts (the “City”). The information is authorized by the City to be distributed to
prospective purchasers in connection with bonds or notes offered for sale by the City, and to the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board through the Electronic Municipal Market Access System (EMMA) for
purposes of its Rule 15¢2-12. This Information Statement may not be reproduced or used in whole or in
part for any other purpose without the express written consent of Lisa Calise Signori, Director of
Administration and Finance and Collector-Treasurer, Boston, Massachusetts.



Any statements in this Information Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly
so stated, are intended merely as opinion and not as representations of fact. The information and
expressions of opinions herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this
Information Statement nor any sale made pursuant to any official statement or offering memorandum to
which it is appended, in which it is included by reference or with which it is distributed shall, under any
circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the City since the date
hereof.

This Information Statement contains forecasts, projections and estimates that are based on
expectations and assumptions which existed at the time such forecasts, projections and estimates were
prepared. In light of the important factors that may materially affect economic conditions of the City, the
inclusion in this Information Statement of such forecasts, projections and estimates should not be regarded
as a representation of the City that such forecasts, projections and estimates will occur. Such forecasts,
projections and estimates are not intended as representations of fact or guarantees of results.

If and when included in this Information Statement, the word “expects,” “forecasts,” “projects,”
“intends,” “anticipates,” “estimates” and analogous expressions are intended to identify forward-looking
statements and any such statements inherently are subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those projected. Such risks and uncertainties include, among
others, general economic and business conditions, changes in political, social and economic conditions,
regulatory initiatives and compliance with governmental regulations, litigation and various other events,
conditions and circumstances, many of which are beyond the control of the City. These forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date of this Information Statement. The City disclaims any obligation or
undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein
to reflect any change in the City’s expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or
circumstances on which any such statement is based.
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THE CITY

The City, incorporated as a town in 1630 and as a city in 1822, exists under Chapter 486 of the Acts of 1909
and Chapter 452 of the Acts of 1948 of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the “Commonwealth”) which, as
amended, constitute the City’s Charter.

The Mayor is the chief executive officer of the City. Thomas M. Menino, the Mayor of the City, was reelected
to serve a fifth four-year term from January 2010 through January 2014. The Mayor has general supervision of and
control over the City’s boards, commissions, officers, and departments. The portion of the City budget covering
appropriations for all departments and operations of the City, except the School Department and the Boston Public
Health Commission, is prepared under the direction of the Mayor. Prior to his service as Mayor, the Mayor served
on the City Council. He served as Chairman of the City Council’s Ways and Means Committee from 1988 to 1992,
and was elected President of the City Council in 1993.

The legislative body of the City is the thirteen-member City Council. The City Council enacts ordinances and
adopts orders, which the Mayor may either approve or veto. Ordinances and orders, except for orders for the
borrowing or appropriation of money and the reorganization of City departments, may be enacted by the City
Council over the Mayor’s veto by a two-thirds vote. The City Council may reject or reduce a budget submitted to it
by the Mayor, but the City Council may not increase a budget. For a description of the budget process, see
“Financial Operations—Budget Process” herein.

The members of the City Council, all of whose current terms will end in January 2014, are set forth below.

Michael P. R0OSS (PreSIdent) .........cccvevieeieiiiiiie e sre e District 8
= LD T AN 1 (0 TSRS At Large
JONN R, CONNOINY ... At Large
Stephen J. MUIPNY ..o At Large
AYANNA PIESSIBY ....vvieiiiciieiee ettt sttt nre e enees At Large
Salvatore J. LAMAttiNg .......ccoovevieiieiese e District 1
William P. LINENAN ...coveiiiicccc e District 2
MaUIEEN E. FEENEBY.......cciiiiiiieiie it District 3
CharleS C. YANCRY ....couiiiiieieieieiieiie ettt ettt District 4
RODErt J. CONSAIVO .....c.viiiiiiiiiie e s District 5
JONN ML TODIN e District 6
Charles H. TUIMET ..ot District 7
Mark B. CIOMMO ..ot District 9

Organization of City Government

Mayor Menino established a cabinet form of government to recognize the major functional responsibilities of
City government, to facilitate improvements in the conduct of the executive and administrative business of the City,
and to eliminate duplication and waste.

The structure of the Mayor’s cabinet is set forth in the organizational chart on the following page.
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ORGANIZATION OF CiITY GOVERNMENT

CiTizens oF BosTon

Mavor
Office of the Mayor
Chief of Staff
Chief of Programs & Partnerships @
Corporation Counsel ©

Office of Emergency Preparedness

Chief of Policy & Planning
Intergovernmental Relations
Neighborhood Services

Office of New Bostonians

Public Information

NoN-MAYoRrAL

City Council
(elected positions)

City Clerk
(appointed by City Council)

Finance Commission
(appointed by Governor)

Licensing Board
(appointed by Governor)

DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE

Assessing Human Resources  Boston Public Library
Auditing Labor Relations Registry Division CHIer INFORMATION OFFICER
> Budget Retirement Boardt Graphic Arts Management Information Services
) Treasury Purchasing
ECoNOMIC PusLIC WORKS & BosTon HousINg ENVIRONMENT & PusLIc HEALTH HousinG &
EpucaTion PuBLIc SAFETY D PuBLIc PROPERTY TRANSPORTATION ENERGY HumAN SERvICES NEIGHBORHOOD
EVELOPMENT AUTHORITYT Commission T DEVELOPMENT
Boston Public . i Centers for Neighborhood
Fire BRA/EDIC Property & i Environment Boston Centers
Schools t Construction Public Works Youth & Families Development
Management
Police Boston Residents ) ) Open Space Women’s
Job Policy Office Parks & Recreation Transportation Planning @ Commission
Small & Local_ (fAOff;Sme;f Inspectional Elderly
Business Enterprise \ aII‘S_ Services Commission
Office Licensing
Civil Rights
Arts, Tourism &
Special Events
Emergency
Shelter

Voter Mobilization

1 Foradescription of the activities of the Retirement Board, see “Retirement Systems,” herein.
The Boston Redevelopment Authority, Economic Development Industrial Corporation,
Boston Housing Authority and Boston Public Health Commission are bodies politic and corporate and
political subdivisions of the Commonwealth. For a description of such entities,
see “City Indebtedness — Debt of Agencies Related to the City.”
(1) Has cabinet rank.
(2) Programmatically within this cabinet; financially in Parks & Recreation.

Veterans’ Services

Youth Fund




With the exception of the Superintendent of Schools, the City officials profiled below serve at the
pleasure of the Mayor.

Chief of Staff

Mitchell Weiss was appointed Chief of Staff in January 2010. From 2006 to 2009, Mr. Weiss was
Executive Director of the Tobin Project, a virtual research center based in Cambridge, Massachusetts.
Before joining the Tobin Project in 2006, Mr. Weiss was a Service Leadership Fellow in Mayor Menino’s
office. Prior to his transition to the public sector, Mr. Weiss worked at Merrill Lynch & Co. where he
focused primarily on mergers and acquisitions for many well-recognized food companies. The Chief of
Staff is a member of the Mayor's cabinet, and has an advisory role over all operations of City government.
The Chief of Staff is also charged with supervising and directing the operations of the Mayor's office,
including scheduling, security, policy and planning, press, constituent services and intergovernmental
relations.

Chief of Policy and Planning

Michael J. Kineavy was appointed Chief of Policy and Planning in August 2004. Prior to his
appointment, Mr. Kineavy served as Director of the Mayor’s Office of Neighborhood Services. The Chief
of Policy and Planning oversees the development and implementation of all policy initiatives for the City.

Chief Information Officer

William G. Oates was appointed Chief Information Officer in June 2006. Prior to his appointment
Mr. Oates served as Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer of Starwood Hotels and Resorts,
Worldwide, Inc. The Chief Information Officer oversees the Management and Information Services
Department, which is responsible for leveraging the use of technology and information, as well as working
to improve the business of government and delivery of service.

Director of Administration and Finance and Collector-Treasurer

Lisa Calise Signori was named Director of Administration & Finance in July 2007. She is a member
of the Mayor’s Cabinet and is responsible for the City’s human and financial resources, including Human
Resources, Labor Relations, Treasury, Assessing, Auditing, Budget, Purchasing, and the State-Boston
Retirement Board. Ms. Signori continues to hold her previous title of Collector-Treasurer.

Serving with the City of Boston since 1994, Ms. Signori served as Budget Director from 1999 to
2003. In October 2003, Ms. Signori was appointed Chief Financial Officer and Collector-Treasurer. In
addition to her other duties, the Collector-Treasurer is custodian of approximately 300 City trust funds,
serving as trustee of nearly half of them. Ms. Signori is also an ex officio member of the Massachusetts
Convention Center Authority.

The City officials with principal responsibility for its finances, subject to the approval of the
Collector-Treasurer, are as follows:

Budget Director

Karen A. Connor was appointed Budget Director in December 2005. Prior to her appointment, Ms.
Connor served, respectively, as Acting Budget Director and as a Deputy Budget Director. The Budget
Director is responsible for the supervision of the Office of Budget Management (“OBM?”), which develops
and oversees the operating budget for all departments and operations of the City except the School
Department. OBM is also responsible for the City’s Capital Plan. OBM prepares and monitors the City’s
capital budget and coordinates strategic and long-range capital planning for City departments.

City Auditor

Sally D. Glora was appointed Acting City Auditor in March 1990 and City Auditor in December
1990. Prior to her appointment as Acting City Auditor, Ms. Glora served as the Deputy City Auditor. The
Auditor is responsible for monitoring the internal controls, managing grant funds, providing financial
reports, maintaining the books and records for the City, and for approving all payments made by the City.
Ms. Glora is an ex officio member of the State-Boston Retirement Board.

Commissioner of Assessing

Ronald W. Rakow was appointed Commissioner of Assessing in March 1993. Prior to his
appointment, Mr. Rakow served as the Acting Commissioner of Assessing from September 1992 to March
1993. Prior to his appointment as the Acting Commissioner of Assessing, Mr. Rakow served as the Director
of Research and Standards for the City’s Assessing Department. The Commissioner of Assessing is
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responsible for supervision of the City’s Assessing Department and the valuation for purposes of the tax
levy of real and personal property located in the City.

Chief Economic Development Officer

John F. Palmieri was appointed Chief Economic Development Officer and Director of the Boston
Redevelopment Authority (the “BRA”) in September 2007. Prior to his appointment, Mr. Palmieri served
as Director of Development Services in Hartford, Connecticut. The Chief Economic Development Officer
is responsible for planning, zoning, and economic development for the City. The Economic Development
Cabinet is comprised of the BRA, the Economic Development and Industrial Corporation (“EDIC”),
including the EDIC’s office of Jobs and Community Services, the Office of Small and Local Business
Enterprises, and the Office of Boston Residents Job Policy.

Chief of Education

Dr. Carol R. Johnson was named Superintendent of the Boston Public Schools by the Boston School
Committee in June 2007, and her term extends to June 2012. Prior to her appointment by the Boston School
Committee, Dr. Johnson served as Superintendent of the Memphis City Schools in Memphis, Tennessee,
the largest district in the state. Dr. Johnson previously served as Superintendent of the Minneapolis Public
Schools, where she was named Minnesota Superintendent of the Year. The Education Cabinet is
responsible for managing the Boston Public Schools. Among the Education Cabinet’s responsibilities is the
development of a plan for schools and other City and non-City agencies to develop cooperative programs to
guarantee that the best possible resources are available to Boston’s children. For a description of the student
population, staffing, curricula, and governance of the Boston Public Schools, see “The City—Principal
Government Services—Schools” below.

Chiefs of Public Safety

Edward F. Davis, Ill, the City’s Police Commissioner, and Roderick J. Fraser, Jr., the City’s Fire
Commissioner, are the Chiefs of the Public Safety Cabinet. Commissioner Davis, a veteran with more than
30 years of law enforcement experience, was appointed Police Commissioner in October 2006.
Commissioner Fraser, a 20-year Navy veteran finishing as the Commanding Officer of the USS
Underwood, and who had also served as Director of Engineering, Damage Control and Firefighting
Training at the Surface Warfare Officers School Command in Newport, Rhode Island, was appointed Fire
Commissioner in September 2006. The City’s Police and Fire Departments provide and promote public
safety and protection services, firefighting and fire prevention services. For a description of Police and Fire
Department resources and personnel see “The City—Principal Governmental Services—Public Safety”
below.

Director of the Office of Emergency Preparedness

Donald E. McGough was appointed Director of the City's Office of Emergency Preparedness in
January 2008. Prior to his appointment Mr. McGough was employed as a Senior Homeland Security
Consultant at the Public Consulting Group, Inc. Mr. McGough previously served as Assistant Chief of the
Bureau of Administration and Technology for the Police Department, and as Chief of Staff to the Police
Commissioner. The Office of Emergency Preparedness is responsible for obtaining, allocating and
managing state and federal funds designated for Emergency Preparedness initiatives, and to facilitate
communication and cooperation across towns and cities in specific disciplines, such as law enforcement,
fire service, emergency management, emergency medical services, public health, healthcare, and
government administration.

Chief of Programs and Partnerships

Judith Kurland was appointed Chief of Programs and Partnerships in December 2009. Ms. Kurland
previously served as Chief of Staff to Mayor Menino. Prior to her appointment as Chief of Staff Ms.
Kurland worked as a Senior Consultant to DCABoston, a management consulting firm dedicated to social
progress and community change, as Regional Director of the United States Department of Health and
Human Services, and as Commissioner of the City’s former Department of Health and Hospitals. The Chief
of Programs and Partnerships will work in building enduring partnerships to sustain programs, mutually
beneficial collaborations with colleges and universities, foundations and corporations, community-based
institutions, organizations and advocates. The Chief of Programs and Partnerships is also charged with
work as chief policy advisor to the Mayor, program initiator including interdepartmental collaboration and
coordination.
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Chief of Human Services

J. Larry Mayes was appointed Chief of Human Services in September 2004. The Human Services
Cabinet is responsible for providing human and other support services for all of Boston’s residents through
its seven departments: Boston Centers for Youth and Families, the Boston Youth Fund, the Elderly
Commission, the Emergency Shelter Commission, the Women’s Commission, the Veteran’s Services
Department, and the Office of Civil Rights, which is comprised of the Fair Housing Commission, the
Commission for People with Disabilities, and the Human Rights Commission.

Chief of Public Health

Dr. Barbara Ferrer was named Executive Director of the Boston Public Health Commission by its
Board in March 2007. In that capacity, Dr. Ferrer joined the Mayor’s cabinet as the Chief of Public Health.
Prior to her appointment Dr. Ferrer served for five years as the Commission’s Deputy Director where she
played a key role in developing strategies to improve Boston’s infant mortality rate and end racial and
ethnic health disparities. The Commission, an independent agency, is a body politic and corporate and
political subdivision of the Commonwealth. The Commission is responsible for the implementation of
public health programs in the City and serves as the board of health of the City. The Commission is divided
into six programmatic areas, including: the Emergency Medical Service, which includes the City’s
ambulances, EMTs and paramedics responding to the “911” emergency system; Homeless Services;
Communicable Disease Control; Substance Abuse Services; Community Health; and Child and Family
Health. For additional information concerning the Boston Public Health Commission see “The City—
Principal Government Services—Public Health” below.

Chief of Public Property

Michael Galvin was appointed Chief of Public Property in August 1994. Prior to his appointment,
Mr. Galvin was employed by NYNEX and had previously served as the City’s first “Executive on Loan.”
The Public Property Cabinet consists of the Parks and Recreation Department (except for the department’s
planning function, which falls under the Environmental and Energy Services Cabinet), the Election
Department, the Office of Arts, Tourism and Special Events, the Office of Consumer Affairs and
Licensing, and the Property and Construction Management Department, of which Mr. Galvin is
Commissioner and Director of Public Facilities, and which includes Capital Construction, the Animal
Control Unit, and Building Maintenance and Systems. The Cabinet’s charge includes investigating
opportunities to apply technological innovations to reduce costs or improve the delivery of basic services.

Chief of Environmental and Energy Services

James W. Hunt, |11, was appointed Chief of Environmental and Energy Services in March 2005. Prior
to his appointment, Mr. Hunt served as Assistant Secretary for the Commonwealth’s Executive Office of
Environmental Affairs and was responsible for administering the Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act.
The Chief of Environmental and Energy Services is responsible for environmental and energy policies for
the City and serves as chair of the City’s Energy Management Board. The Environmental and Energy
Services Cabinet is comprised of the Environment Department, Inspectional Services Department, the
Parks and Recreation Department’s Open Space Planning, Olmsted Park Revitalization, and Boston’s
Recycling Program. The Chief of Environmental and Energy Services also serves as a liaison to the Boston
Water and Sewer Commission, and as a Board member of the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority,
the Boston Groundwater Trust and the Boston Harbor Islands Partnership.

Chief of Housing and Neighborhood Development

Evelyn Friedman was appointed Chief of Housing in February 2008. Prior to her appointment, Ms.
Friedman served for seventeen years as the Executive Director of Nuestra Comunidad Development
Corporation of Roxbury. In her capacity as Chief of Housing, Ms. Friedman is the Director of the
Department of Neighborhood Development and is responsible for overseeing the Rental Housing Resource
Center (“RHRC”). The Department of Neighborhood Development is responsible for business
development, homeowner/homebuyer programs, housing development, surplus land and building
management and disposition, and certain City capital construction projects. The RHRC provides a variety
of services to tenants and owners of the City’s residential housing stock.

Chief of Public Housing

William E. McGonagle was appointed Chief of Public Housing by virtue of his appointment by
Mayor Menino as Interim Administrator of the Boston Housing Authority (the “BHA”) in June 2009.
Mayor Menino elevated the position of Administrator of the BHA to the level of a cabinet post in
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December 1996. Prior to his appointment as Interim Administrator of the BHA, Mr. McGonagle has been
an employee of the BHA since 1970 in increasingly responsible positions including that of Housing
Manager, Area Director for Operations, and Deputy Administrator. The BHA is a public body established
under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. It is responsible for the financing, construction,
operation, and management of public housing for low-income families and individuals.

Corporation Counsel

William F. Sinnott was appointed Corporation Counsel in March 2006. Prior to his appointment Mr.
Sinnott served as an Assistant U.S. Attorney, and had been assigned to the District of Massachusetts in
Boston. The Corporation Counsel has supervisory authority over all City attorneys and legal affairs. The
Law Department provides a comprehensive array of legal services including formal and informal opinions
and advice to the Mayor, the City Council, the Boston School Committee and other officials in matters
relating to their official duties, and also represents all of the foregoing entities and individuals in litigation
of all types. In addition, the Law Department reviews all City contracts, pursues claims on behalf of the
City through affirmative litigation, and pursues foreclosure proceedings on tax delinquent property.

Chief of Public Works and Transportation

Joanne Massaro was appointed Interim Commissioner of Public Works in January 2010 upon the
resignation of the Chief of Public Works and Transportation. Prior to her appointment as Interim
Commissioner of Public Works, Ms. Massaro served as Special Projects Director for the City's Office of
Administration and Finance. The Public Works and Transportation Cabinet includes the Public Works
Department, the Transportation Department, Central Fleet Maintenance and Snow Removal. For additional
information concerning the Public Works Department, see “The City—Principal Government Services—
Public Works,” below.

Principal Government Services

The following table shows the distribution of the City’s fiscal 2010 appropriations by primary
government functions and departments.

Purposes of City Appropriations—Fiscal 2010
(Budgetary Accounting Basis)
(% in thousands)
Percent of Total

Amount Appropriations

General GOVEINMENL .........ccevvevevieiir i, $ 105,411 4.4%
PUblic Safety ..o 476,773 19.8
PUBIIC WOTKS ..o 101,520 4.2
Property and Development.........cccccooeieienenenienn. 27,651 1.2
Parks and ReCreation ..........ccccocveeeveeieeeeneeccvee e 16,414 0.7
LiDrary ..o 29,715 1.2
HUMAN SEIVICES......cccviivieirieitie et 28,784 1.2
SCHOOIS ...t 817,882 34.0
Boston Public Health Commission.............cccu..... 70,000 2.9
Judgments and Claims.........ccccovvevereneninninninieenens 3,500 0.1
Employee Benefits .........ccoveriiiiiieiineiicics 205,189 8.5
Current Period Retirement Contributions............... 239,035 9.9
Debt ReqUIrEMENtS .......cccvvvveieieie e 130,957 5.4
State and District ASSESSMENTS.......c.ccevvvervveerreeennen. 150,228 _ 6.3

TOtAl.coeeieeececce e $2,403,059 100.0%

(1) Represents the fiscal 2010 Budget amended by Mayoral Reallocations through March 1, 2010.
(2) See “Financial Operations — Operating Budgets” for a definition of budgetary accounting basis.

Source:  City of Boston Auditing Department and Office of Budget Management.
A description of certain City principal governmental services follows:

Schools

The City’s School Department provides both basic education and college preparatory curricula as
well as specialized vocational educational programs. The school system enrolled 56,387 students for the
2008-2009 school year, a decrease of approximately 137 students from the preceding school year.

Pursuant to Chapter 108 of the Acts of 1992, the City’s public schools are under the control of a
School Committee, which consists of seven members appointed by the Mayor. Members of the School
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Committee have staggered four-year terms. In addition to appointing the Superintendent of Schools, the
Boston School Committee approves the School Department budget for submission to the Mayor, and by
and through the Superintendent, determines educational policy, makes all contracts for the purchase of
materials for the operations of the schools, and maintains and operates school properties. The
Superintendent of Schools has exclusive authority to make appointments and promotions for all teachers
and other School Department personnel except for the positions of Community Superintendent, Chairman,
Secretary, or Treasurer of the School Committee, School Committee Administrative Assistants, and Special
Assistant Corporation Counsels. The School Committee appoints these excepted positions.

Public Safety

The Public Safety Cabinet is continuing to improve citywide service-delivery through consolidated
and shared resources to provide more effective and efficient public safety services to Boston’s
communities.

The Police Department maintains eleven neighborhood police stations and one headquarters building.
It also maintains nine support programs, consisting of the Police Academy, Firearms Training Range,
Harbor Patrol Unit, Fleet Management Unit, Telecommunications Unit, Evidence and Property
Management Facility, Special Operations Division, Stress Support Unit and Sexual Assault Unit.

The Fire Department maintains 40 facilities consisting of 34 neighborhood fire stations, one marine
unit, a training academy, a fire prevention division, a fire alarm division, headquarters/maintenance
division/fire investigation building, and a high-pressure pumping station.

The Mayor’s Office of Emergency Preparedness coordinates and directs Boston’s interdepartmental
and multi-jurisdictional homeland security activities by advising the Mayor on issues and obtaining and
managing outside funding. See “Director of the Office of Emergency Preparedness,” above.

Public Health

The Boston Public Health Commission, successor to the City’s Department of Health and Hospitals,
is a body politic and corporate separate from the City created in 1996 when the operations of the City’s
former acute-care hospital, Boston City Hospital, were consolidated with the operations of Boston
University Medical Center Hospital under the control of the Boston Medical Center Corporation
(*“BMCC”), a private, Massachusetts non-profit corporation. The Commission is governed by a seven-
member board, six of whom are appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City Council, and
one of whom, as the chief executive officer of BMCC, serves ex-officio. The Commission functions as the
City’s board of health and operates a wide range of public health programs throughout the City funded
from public and private grants and City appropriations. The Commission is a discretely presented
component unit for GAAP reporting purposes in the City’s annual audited financial statements. See “City
Indebtedness—Debt of Agencies Related to the City—Boston Public Health Commission.”

Public Works

The Public Works Department constructs and maintains highways, sidewalks, street lighting and
bridges, and oversees snow removal, street cleaning, refuse removal and recycling. The City extended two
existing contracts and advertised, awarded, and executed two new contracts for the provision of sanitation,
solids waste collection and disposal services, all for terms ending June 30, 2014. The recycling contract is
currently being rebid and will start July 1, 2010. The Boston Water and Sewer Commission (“BWSC”), an
independent agency, is responsible for the operation and maintenance of the City’s water, sewer, and storm
water drainage systems, the construction of improvements to those systems, and the collection of user
charges for its services. See “City Indebtedness—Debt of Agencies Related to the City—Boston Water and
Sewer Commission” below.

Other Services

The Boston Public Library Department operates a central library, 26 neighborhood branch libraries,
and two service buildings. The Parks and Recreation Department manages approximately 2,200 acres of
active, passive and historic parkland. The 2,200 acres of land include 272 parks, playgrounds, squares,
malls, plazas, and other miscellaneous sites; 16 historic and three active cemeteries; one greenhouse
facility; and approximately 38,000 street trees.

Suffolk County

While existing state law provides that the Mayor and City Council serve as the Commissioners of
Suffolk County, which includes the Cities of Boston, Chelsea and Revere and the Town of Winthrop, all of
the functions and costs of county government, (including the county courts, registry of deeds and the Office
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of the Suffolk County Sheriff) have been assumed by the Commonwealth, other than an annual assessment
by the Commonwealth for the purpose of funding the unfunded portion of pension liability for retirees of
the Office of the Suffolk County Sheriff who retired prior to January 1, 2010. This annual assessment can
be no greater than the City’s fiscal 2009 appropriation to support the Office of the Suffolk County Sheriff
of approximately $4.0 million, and will terminate when the pension liability of these retirees is fully
funded.

City Employees

The following table shows the number of full-time equivalent City employees by department as of
January 1 of each of the indicated years.

Full-Time Equivalent .
City Employees by Department

2008 2009 2010
City Funded:
2
PUBIC SAFEY oo 4723 4686 4431
PUBTIC WOIKS......vie it 415 408 378
3
Other City Departments( e 2,769 2,833 2,712
4

Boston Public Health Commission( e 752 820 797
SUDLOLAL ... 8,659 8,747 8,318
SCNOOIS et 8,476 8,572 8,211
Total City FUNAE ......cocvevieiceee e 17,135 17,319 16,529

Grant Funded:
SCNOOIS ettt 912 755 754

5
All Others( i 1,384 1,427 378
QLI ] £ R 19,431 19,501 17,661

(1) All data are as of January 1 in the year stated. The methodology used in compiling these data was established jointly by the City
and the Boston Municipal Research Bureau.

(2) Public Safety includes both the Police Department and the Fire Department.

(3) Includes State-Boston Retirement System employees.

(4) Boston Public Health Commission employees are funded by the City, but are not employees of the City.

(5) All Others includes the Office of the Suffolk County Sheriff in 2008 and 2009. Employees of the Office of the Suffolk County
Sheriff were transferred to the Commonwealth as of January 1, 2010. (See “Suffolk County” above.)

Source:  City of Boston Office of Budget Management.

Employee Relations

Under Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 150E, most municipal employees in the Commonwealth
enjoy the right to join labor unions and bargain collectively over wages and other terms and conditions of
employment. The Office of Labor Relations represents the Mayor and the City in all collective bargaining
matters with all unions of City employees except School Department employee unions. The School
Department’s labor relations personnel similarly represent the School Committee and consult with the
Office of Labor Relations regarding contract negotiations and other general labor matters. Additionally, the
Office of Labor Relations has actively assisted the Boston Public Health Commission in collective
bargaining negotiations with its 11 bargaining units and regularly interfaces with the Boston Public Health
Commission on labor and employment matters.

Nearly all of the City’s non-school department employees are organized into bargaining units
represented by various unions. Most of these unions are affiliated with the AFL-CIO. Three large unions,
the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (“AFSCME™) Council 93 (laborer
employees), the Service Employees International Union (“SEIU”) Local 285 (clerical employees), and the
Salaried Employees of North America (“SENA”) Local 9158 (middle manager employees) represent the
majority of City’s non-public safety employees.

Police officers are represented by four distinct unions, the Boston Police Patrolmen’s Association
(“BPPA”), the Boston Police Superior Officers Federation (“Federation”), the Boston Police Detectives
Benevolent Society (“Detectives”) and the Boston Police Detectives Benevolent Society, Superior Officers
Unit (“Detective Superiors™). Firefighters and Fire Chiefs are divided into two bargaining units represented
by a single union: the International Association of Firefighters (“IAFF”) Local 718.

Boston teachers, teacher aides, school nurses, and substitutes are in a collective bargaining unit
represented by the Boston Teachers Union (“BTU”), an affiliate of the AFL-CIO.
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The table below represents a summary of the bargaining units representing City employees, the
number of City employees represented by each bargaining unit, and the status of the City’s contract with
each bargaining unit.

Collective Bargaining Units (City and Schools)

Number of Contract
Employees Expiration

Union Department Represented ® Date
Boston Patrolmen's Association Police 1,527 6/30/10
Boston Police Superior Officers Police 226 6/30/10
Boston Police Detectives Benevolent Society Police 267 6/30/10
Superior Detective Benevolent Society Police 133 6/30/10
Forensic Group (BPD) Police 20 9/30/10
Police Cadet Association Police 4 6/30/10
School Traffic Supervisors Assoc. Police 203 8/31/10
International Association of Firefighters, Local 718 Fire 1,480 6/30/06
Municipal Police Patrolmen's Association Property & Construction Mgmt 53 6/30/10
Municipal Police Superior Officers Association Property & Construction Mgmt 7 6/30/10
SEIU, Local 888 Citywide 1,121 9/30/10
SENA, Locals 9158 and 9158E Citywide 667 9/30/10
AFSCME C93 (Citywide & various locals) Citywide 1,203 6/30/10
AFSCME Local 1526 Library 268 6/30/10
Professional Staff Association (BPL) Library 137 9/30/10
Park Rangers?® Parks 11 N/A
Graphic Communications, Local 600 Graphic Arts 5 6/30/10
Other Graphic Arts Unions Graphic Arts and Police 13 9/30/10
OPEIU AFL-CIO L16 (Housing Inspectors) Inspectional Services 22 6/30/10
Other City Unions Inspectional Services and Property &

Construction Mgmt 16 6/30/10
Boston Teachers Union School 7,531 8/31/10
BASAS (School Administrators & Supervisors) School 243 8/31/10
Administrative Guild School 354 8/31/10
Planning & Engineering School 34 8/31/10
Boston School Police School 52 8/31/10
School Police Superior Officers Assoc. School 22 6/30/10
School Custodians Local 1952, Painters & Allied
Trades District Council #35 School 473 8/31/10
Plant Administrators Association School 12 8/31/10
School Bus Monitors USWA Local 8751 School 380 6/30/10
Lunch Hour Monitors Association School 365 8/31/10
AFSCME C93, Local 230 Cafeteria Workers School 391 8/31/10
AFSCME C93, Storekeepers & Deliverymen School _ 9 8/31/10

17,249

(1) Number of members (not Full-Time Equivalents) as of January 1, 2010.
(2) New association; an initial contract has not been agreed to at this time.

Source:  Office of Budget Management, Boston Administrative Systems/Human Resources Management System (BAIS/HRMS)
and Boston School Department.

All of the collective bargaining agreements between the City and the unions have been successfully
re-negotiated except for the International Association of Firefighters, Local 718. The new contracts will
remain in effect until various dates in 2010. The Boston Teacher's Union and the four public safety unions
that have concluded negotiations agreed to roughly a 14% wage package over a four year period. The City
was able to secure meaningful language reforms with each of these unions in exchange for this wage
pattern. All other civilian contracts that the City has settled included roughly an 11% wage increase over a
four year period. Each of the contracts that have been settled has included a modest increase in the
employee contribution to health insurance premiums. Prior to the new contract period, employees paid 10%
of the cost of health insurance premiums; by the end of the new contract period the employee contribution
will be 15%. In the case of the firefighters union, the parties are coming to the end of an arbitration process.
Avrbitration hearings were completed February 5, 2010; final briefs are due on April 5, 2010. An arbitration
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award is expected at the beginning of May, 2010. The award will be binding on the Firefighters Union and
on the Mayor. The funding of an arbitration award is subject to the approval of the City Council.

FINANCIAL OPERATIONS
Budget Process

Program-Based Budgeting

The City of Boston maintains a program-based budgeting system to track expenditures and service
levels by major functions or “programs.” This budgeting system complies with the standards of the
Government Finance Officers Association, which has consistently recognized the City’s efforts with its
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award.

The City’s fiscal year begins July 1 and ends on June 30 of the following calendar year. Pursuant to
state law, the Mayor must submit an operating budget to the City Council by the second Wednesday in
April for its review and approval. Proposed appropriations for all departments and operations of the City
(except for the public schools and public health services) are prepared under the direction of the Mayor in
the Office of Budget Management (“OBM?”). The Superintendent of Schools must submit a budget to the
School Committee by the first Wednesday in February. The School Committee must approve a budget by
the fourth Wednesday in March and forward this budget to the Mayor who may approve or reduce the total
recommended budget. The Mayor then submits the school budget to the City Council for appropriation by
the second Wednesday in May. In practice, the School Department appropriation request has been
presented to the City Council in coordination with the Mayor’s operating budget request in April. The
Boston Public Health Commission must submit a revenue and expenditure budget for public health services
to the Mayor by the second Wednesday in March. If the proposed budget provides for expenditures in
excess of the Commission’s projected revenues from non-City sources, the Mayor may either approve or
reject the budget. If the Mayor accepts the budget, the amount required to fund the revenue deficiency (the
“net cost of public health services”) is included in the annual budget for the City submitted to the City
Council in April of each year. The Commission must adopt its public health services budget by the second
Wednesday in June.

The City Council may reduce or reject any item in the Mayor’s budget but may not, except upon the
recommendation of the Mayor, increase or add an item. After approval of the budget and until the property
tax rate is officially determined in mid-December, the Mayor may submit to the City Council such
supplementary appropriation requests as are deemed necessary, including supplemental amounts for the
School Department and the Boston Public Health Commission. The Mayor may also submit to the City
Council supplementary appropriation requests subsequent to the setting of the property tax rate. Under
certain circumstances, the Mayor may, by executive order, require expenditures to be limited to an amount
less than the appropriated level.

In the event that the City enters a fiscal year without an approved operating budget, the City
continues departmental operations on a “one-twelfth” budget, as provided in the City Charter. Under the
one-twelfth budget process, (a) payrolls for regular employees cannot exceed the average monthly
expenditure of the last three months of the preceding fiscal year, (b) total liabilities incurred in any month
cannot exceed amounts spent for similar purposes during any one month of the preceding fiscal year, and
(c) monthly expenditures for new departments cannot exceed one-twelfth of their current fiscal year’s
estimated costs.

The City, Boston Public Health Commission and School Department operating budgets for fiscal
2010 were approved by the City Council on June 24, 2009. See “Financial Operations—Fiscal 2010
Budget.” The Mayor also initiates loan orders for City Council consideration, based on an annual update of
the Five-Year Capital Plan. There is no statutory time frame for requesting or approving such orders. New
authorizations related to the fiscal 2010 portion of the Five-Year Capital Plan were submitted to the City
Council on April 8, 2009; one authorization was approved by the City Council on June 3, 2009, and all
other authorizations were approved by the City Council on June 24, 2009.

By law, the City must establish its property tax rate each year so that the resulting property tax levy
complies with the requirements of Proposition 2%. (For a discussion of Proposition 2%, see “City
Revenues—Property Taxes—Proposition 2%.”) The amount raised in the tax levy equals the sum of (a) the
aggregate of all amounts appropriated, granted or lawfully expended since the last annual tax levy and not
provided for, plus (b) all debt and interest charges on general obligation debt of the City maturing during
the fiscal year and not otherwise provided for, plus (c) all amounts necessary to satisfy final judgments,
plus (d) provision for certain prior years’ deficits, less (e) the aggregate of all non-property tax revenues
projected to be received in the City’s General Fund in amounts certified or approved by the Commonwealth
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for tax rate purposes. In general, the City is required to raise in the tax levy a deficit incurred on a statutory
accounting basis in the prior year’s operating budget, or a deficit incurred in the property tax abatement
reserves.

Capital Budgeting

The Capital Budgeting Program (“CBP”) is a program of the Office of Budget and Management
used for managing the capital budget of the City, including evaluating the condition of the City’s
capital assets, forecasting the timing and financial requirements of new construction and
rehabilitation, and assessing the allocation of current and future resources to meet the City’s
infrastructure and capital requirements. Through the CBP, the City evaluates and refines its capital
needs and resources as it moves through each fiscal year. This process is documented by an annually
updated five-year capital plan. In April 2009, Mayor Menino released the fiscal 2010-2014 capital
plan. In addition to its use in planning, the CBP is also used for ongoing project oversight during the
implementation phase of capital projects. The City reviews and approves all capital contracts and
monitors project costs and schedules to ensure the adequacy of available funding sources in
accordance with the CBP.

Summary and Comparison of Operating Results (Budgetary Basis)—Fiscal 2006-2009 and Fiscal
2010 Budget

The table below shows the City’s General Fund budget for fiscal 2010, together with budgetary actual
results for fiscal 2006 through 2009. In accordance with state law and regulations, the City’s General Fund
budget as shown below is prepared on a “budgetary basis” instead of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). Among the key differences between these two sets of
accounting principles are that “budgetary” records property tax as it is levied while GAAP records it as it
becomes susceptible to accrual, “budgetary” records certain activities and transactions in the General Fund
that GAAP records in separate funds, and “budgetary” records as an expenditure any amount raised to
cover a prior year deficit, and as a revenue any available funds raised from prior year surpluses, while
GAAP ignores these impacts from prior years. The difference in accounting principles inevitably leads to
varying results in excess or deficiency of revenues over expenditures.
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Fiscal 2010 Budget Compared to
Fiscal 2006, Fiscal 2007, Fiscal, 2008 and Fiscal 2009 Actual Results
General Fund—Budgetary Basis
($ in millions)*

Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2009
Actual Actual Actual Actual Fiscal 2010
Results Results Results Results Budget
Revenues:
Recurring Revenue
Property Taxes $ 1,2082 $ 1,2708 $ 13346  $ 1,400.7 $ 1,465.1
Overlay Reserve® (40.8) (46.6) (39.1) (35.4) (35.7)
Excises 89.7 80.2 92.3 106.9 81.3
Fines 68.0 67.4 67.7 70.4 73.4
Interest on Investments 30.0 435 39.5 17.8 6.5
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 321 324 314 34.0 34.3
Urban Redevelopment Chapter 121A 65.1 63.9 64.5 65.5 66.1
Misc. Department Revenue 44.5 53.6 59.5 71.6 59.8
Licenses and Permits 38.8 41.4 47.6 41.0 31.3
Penalties & Interest 9.2 8.7 8.5 7.8 8.0
Available Funds 31 3.2 12.1 14.2 17.1
State Aid 464.6 483.0 493.3 454.4 418.3
Teachers' Pension Reimbursement © 85.2 93.3 105.4 118.8 126.9
Total Recurring Revenue $ 2,0976 $ 21947 3% 23174 % 2,367.6 $ 2,352.1
Non-Recurring Revenue ¢ 6.7 75 25.7 35.0 51.0
Total Revenues $ 2,1043 $ 2,2022 $ 23431  $ 2,4026 $ 2,403.1
Expenditures:
Departmental Expenditures
City Departments $ 8919 $ 936.7 $ 9790 $ 1,0024 $ 962.6
Boston Public Health Commission 61.3 63.8 68.2 69.4 70.0
School Department 717.8 747.5 795.5 810.0 817.9
Collective Bargaining Reserve - 10.0 11.8 16.9 16.1
OPEB Stabilization Fund/Trust ® - - 20.0 25.0 20.0
Total Department Expenditures ~ $ 16710 $ 1,7580 $ 18745 $ 19237 % 1,886.5
Fixed Costs
Pensions © $ 1863 $ 1929 $ 2029 $ 2132 $ 234.8
Debt Service © 112.8 109.6 115.9 119.4 131.5
State Assessments 114.3 119.9 128.3 137.7 145.8
Suffolk County Sheriff 4.5 44 4.5 43 45
Reserve 1.5 2.2 1.1 0.0 0.0
Total Fixed Costs $ 4194  $ 4290 $ 4527 % 4747  $ 516.5
Total Recurring Expenditures $ 2,094 $ 2,187.0 $ 23273  $ 23985 $ 2,403.1
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures $ 139 % 152  $ 158 $ 41 % 0.0

* Columns may not add due to rounding.

(1) Represents the budget at the time of the approval of the tax rate on December 15, 2009, plus any supplemental appropriations.

(2) If the City's reserves for abatements prove at the end of the fiscal year to be insufficient to cover the City's abatement liability,
the City is required to raise in the following year's tax rate an amount sufficient to generate additional reserves to cover the
shortfall. In fiscal 2010, the City has reserved 2.5% of the net levy for abatements.

(3) Legislation is currently pending which, if enacted, would substantially modify the City’s expenditures and reimbursement for
teacher pensions. See “Employee Benefits — Retirement Systems.”

(4) Non-recurring revenue in fiscal 2008 and 2010 represent a portion of the proceeds from the Surplus Property Fund ($5.7 million
and $6.0 million) and in 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009, and 2010 Budgetary Fund Balance ($6.7 million, $7.5 million, $20.0 million,
$35.0 million, and $45.0 million, respectively).

(5) See “Employee Benefits—Other Post Employment Benefits.”

(6) The debt service amount is derived from principal and interest, less certain offsetting revenues. The revenues utilized to offset
debt for budgetary and tax rate setting purposes vary from those used in the table “Debt Service Requirements — Fiscal 2005-
2009.” See “City Indebtedness — Debt Service Requirements.”

Source:  City of Boston Office of Budget Management and Auditing Department.

Fiscal 2006-2009 Actual Results

During the period of fiscal 2006 to 2008, the City had budget surpluses in each year. Revenues grew
steadily through the period. Net state aid (state aid net of state assessments) to the City increased during the
fiscal 2006 through fiscal 2008 period, but never returned to levels attained in fiscal 2002, due to reductions
during the last recession and thereafter. Employee benefits and pension costs increased during the period.
Deteriorating economic conditions in fiscal 2009 caused substantial and sudden decreases in state revenues.
As a result, the Commonwealth reduced state aid mid-year. In addition, the City continued to experience
increases in employee benefit and pension costs in fiscal 2009. Despite these cost increases and reductions
in state aid, the City was able to maintain a balanced budget and produce a small operating surplus in fiscal
2009. (For discussion of state aid from the Commonwealth, see “City Revenues—State Aid”).
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Fiscal 2010 Budget

The following is a summary of the City’s fiscal 2010 budget on a budgetary accounting basis. The
figures cited are from the fiscal 2010 tax rate budget at the time of certification of both the aggregate
amount of and the rates of tax for the City’s fiscal 2010 property tax levy by the Massachusetts Department
of Revenue, plus supplemental appropriations. This certification was completed on December 15, 2009.

Expenditures

In fiscal 2010, the City’s budgeted expenditures total $2.40 billion including direct expenditures for
departmental services and fixed expenses, representing an increase of $4.6 million or 0.2% from fiscal
2009 actual expenditures. Budgeted fiscal 2010 departmental expenditures compare with actual fiscal 2009
expenditures as follows: City Departments decreased $39.9 million or 4.0%; the Public Health Commission
increased $0.6 million or 0.8%; and the School Department increased $7.9 million or 1.0%; Collective
Bargaining Reserve decreased $0.8 million or 4.5%; and the appropriation to the OPEB Stabilization Fund
decreased $5.0 million or 20.0%. Budgeted fixed expenses for fiscal 2010 compare with fiscal 2009 actual
expenses as follows: Pensions increased $21.6 million or 10.1%; Debt Service increased $12.0 million or
10.1%; and State Assessments increased $8.1 million or 5.9%.

Despite inflationary factors contributing to cost increases in City Departments including health
insurance, utilities and trash removal, overall the cost reductions scheduled for fiscal year 2010 were
achieved through a mix of position eliminations, wage deferral agreements, the strategic use of external
grant resources largely provided by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act and deferrals of
spending for equipment and supplies. The increases in the School Department and Public Health
Commission are largely reflective of health insurance increases and transportation costs at the School
Department.

The increase in pension expenses is mandated by the City’s pension funding schedule as approved by
the state actuary and is a legal obligation of the City. The City’s current pension schedule fully funds the
system by the end of fiscal 2023, seven years earlier than required by law. State Assessments are also
mandatory; the amounts are determined by the Commonwealth. All but a small portion of the increase in
State Assessments is the result of increases in the assessment to the City for Massachusetts Bay
Transportation Authority (“MBTA”) service and for charter school tuition.

Revenues

Budgeted revenues for fiscal 2010 equal $2.40 billion, an increase of $0.5 million or 0.02% from
fiscal 2009 actual revenues. Selected fiscal 2010 budgeted revenues compare with fiscal 2009 actual
revenues as follows: the Gross Property Tax Levy (including new growth) increased $64.4 million or 4.6%;
Excises decreased $25.6 million or 23.9%; Interest on Investments decreased $11.3 million or 63.6%;
Licenses and Permits decreased $9.7 million or 23.8%; Available Funds from parking meter and cemetery
fees increased $2.9 million or 20.4%; State Aid decreased $36.2 million or 8.0%; and Non-Recurring
Revenue increased by $16.0 million or 45.7%.

The Property Tax, the City’s largest source of revenue, has become increasingly important to the
City’s recent revenue growth given the minimal growth of the City’s second largest source of revenue:
State Aid. Property tax revenues are expected to increase $64.4 million or 4.6% in fiscal 2010 after having
increased by an average of $62 million or 5.1%, in each fiscal year between 2006 and 2009. The near term
outlook for the City’s property tax levy is one of continued stable growth.

The decrease in Excises is due to expected declines in all excise tax revenues as the economy remains
weak. Lower demand for new automobiles and an increasing average age of vehicles registered in Boston
will serve to drive down motor vehicle excise tax collections while reduced demand for travel and lodging
will do the same for hotel and jet fuel excises. The latter had been achieving record revenues for the City
due to higher than average fuel prices which more recently have declined. The decrease in Miscellaneous
Departmental Revenue is due to one-time revenue in fiscal 2009 from a prior year insurance claim and the
transfer of receipts for some past Public Works administrative fees. In addition, the City took in
reimbursement for Medicare Part D for the first time in fiscal 2009. Those receipts are expected to be
ongoing.

The City adopted a new 0.75% excise on the sale of prepared food and beverages originating in the
City (“meals excise”) and increased its local option room occupancy excise from 4.0% to 6.0% in 2009,
following the enactment of legislation by the Commonwealth authorizing these additional sources of
revenue to municipalities by local option. Receipts from the City’s room occupancy excise are pledged to
the payment of certain special obligations of the City related to the Boston Convention and Exhibition
Center. See “City Indebtedness—Special Obligation Debt.” The Massachusetts Department of Revenue is
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responsible for collecting and remitting meals excise and local option room occupancy excise receipts to
the City on a quarterly basis. Together, the new revenues are expected to amount to between $15.4 million
and $17.6 million for the partial year in fiscal 2010. Because the acceptance of these new sources of
revenue occurred after the City budget was adopted by the City Council in June, 2009, the City has not
budgeted any of this new revenue for fiscal 2010. See “City Revenues—EXxcise Revenues.”

The decrease in Interest on Investment is based on the continued action of the Federal Reserve to
maintain its target federal funds rate at between 0.0% and .25% and thus limiting returns on the City’s
conservative investments. The decrease in Licenses & Permits is due to expected lower building permit
activity associated with a slow real estate market. The increase in Available Funds is due to projected
increased Parking Meter receipts. The decrease in State Aid is due to decreases in education aid and
unrestricted general government aid. The increase in Non-Recurring Revenue is due to the use of $6.0
million in Surplus Property Disposition funds for housing programs that was not used in the prior year. A
portion of the Budgetary Fund Balance is budgeted for use in the OPEB Trust Fund (for a discussion of
OPEB, see “Employee Benefits—Other Post Employment Benefits”). Budgetary Fund Balance is available
for appropriation after certification of its value by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue. Fiscal 2010
becomes the sixth year of use of this source of funds since fiscal 1992.

Financial Statements

The City engages independent certified public accountants to audit and report on its financial
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. An
external Audit Committee, appointed by the Mayor, monitors the progress of the annual audit, reviews the
recommendations of the firm and reports the Committee’s activities and recommendations to the Mayor
and the City Council.

The City’s audited financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, (“GAAP”). The accounts of the City are organized on
the basis of funds. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, net assets/fund balance, revenues and expenditures/expenses. For a
discussion of the significant accounting policies employed in preparing the City’s fiscal 2009 audited
financial statements, see Note 2 of such audited financial statements, which are attached hereto as Exhibit I.
The City’s fiscal 2009 financial statements received an unqualified opinion.

GAAP accounting differs from the “statutory” accounting or “budgetary” accounting basis prescribed
by the Bureau of Accounts of the Commonwealth, for the annual budget and property tax certification
process. The major differences are explained in Note 4 of the fiscal 2009 audited financial statements,
attached hereto as Exhibit I.

Attached hereto as Exhibit 1l are Comparative Balance Sheets and Statements of Revenues,
Expenditures, Transfers and Equity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
which have been prepared by the City’s Auditing Department based on information taken from the City’s
audited financial statements for those fiscal years.

Summary and Comparison of Operating Results (GAAP Basis)—Fiscal 2005-2009

The following table is a summary of the City’s General Fund operating results as derived from the
City’s audited financial statements for fiscal years 2005 through 2009, prepared by the City and audited by
KPMG LLP, an independent certified public accounting firm, in accordance with the GAAP basis of
accounting.
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Summary of Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Financing Sources
and Changes in Fund Equity Fiscal Years 2005-2009 (GAAP Basis)
(% in millions)*

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

TOtal FEVENUES.......cviviieiiiieieieee e $1,912.7 $2,108.3  $2,116.3 $2,213.2 $2,230.7
Total expenditures...........ccooeieiereieieienc e 1,895.4 1,987.3 2,068.8 2,184.0 2,245.2
Excess (deficiencies) of revenues

over (under) expenditures ..........cceeveeverveeane. 17.3 120.9 475 29.2 (14.6)
Total other financing (USES) SOUrCES .........cccvrvennee. 22.5 (72.6) 23.1 40.8 41.2

Excess of revenues and other

financing sources over expenditures and

other financing USeS ........ccocvverereieenesene 39.8 48.4 70.7 70.0 26.6
Fund balance, beginning of year as previously

=T 010 1 C=To USSP 573.3 613.0 661.4 732.0 802.0

1

Fund balance, end of year R $ 613.0 $ 6614 $ 732.0 $ 802.0 $ 828.7

* Columns may not add due to rounding.
(1) The undesignated fund balances for the General Fund for fiscal 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 were $415.2 million, $438.7
million, $495.3 million, $553.1 million and $550.3 million, respectively.

Source:  City of Boston Auditing Department.

The following is a summary analysis of the City’s financial operations on a GAAP basis over the
period fiscal 2007 through fiscal 2009. The figures appearing in this section for the period are derived from
the annual financial statements. The analyses of revenues and expenditures in the text that follows are
stated using data derived from the audited financial statements. For an explanation of the differences
between the GAAP basis and Budgetary basis of accounting, see the audited financial statements at Exhibit
I, Note 4, “Budgetary Data.”

The City’s major recurring revenue sources during this period were real and personal property taxes,
state aid, payments in lieu of taxes (“PILOTSs”), local excise taxes and departmental revenues, and other
intergovernmental sources. The principal expenditures were for public safety, debt requirements, retirement
costs, and the School Department. Reference is made to Exhibits | and Il attached hereto for a detailed
presentation of the City’s financial operations.

Fiscal 2007

During fiscal year 2007, the City’s revenues increased by 0.4% from fiscal year 2006. The City’s
largest sources of revenues were property taxes, state aid, excise taxes, and payment in lieu of taxes totaling
$1.41 billion (66.9% of total revenue). Property taxes increased $68.5 million, an increase of 5.8% from
fiscal 2006. Departmental and other increased by $13.7 million, representing a 26.3% change from fiscal
2006. The main factors were: an increase in municipal Medicaid reimbursement of $4.9 million, an
increase in fringe retirement reimbursement from grants of $4.6 million and an increase in street cut
permits and fees of $2.4 million. Investment income totaled $43.1 million, a 33.1% increase from fiscal
2006. The primary factor for the increases in investment income was higher investment rates.

The increase in revenues allowed for an increase in expense categories. The City's expenses covered
a range of services. The largest expenses were for schools ($743.8 million), public safety ($477.4 million),
other employee benefits ($175.9 million), state and district assessments ($124.2 million), debt service
($113.2 million), public works ($97.9 million), and retirement costs ($92.9 million). Public safety realized
a $30.6 million increase. The driving force behind the increased expenses for schools and public safety
were increases in salaries. Even though public works represented a rather large expense, this category
realized a decrease primarily due to less spending on snow removal. State and district assessments realized
a nearly 5.0% increase due to increases in Commonwealth assessments for tuition payments to charter
schools and MBTA assessments. Debt service expenses increased due to increases in scheduled principal
and interest payments. Retirement costs expenses increased due to an increase in the City’s actuarially
required contribution.

The General Fund’s equity balance as of June 30, 2007 was $732.0 million, as compared to $661.4
million in fiscal 2006. The increase of $70.6 million or 10.7% is primarily due to a continued increase in
receipts from property and excise taxes. Please refer to the statements of General Fund activity in the
Comparative Balance Sheets and Statements of Revenues and Expenditures (Exhibit 11 to this Appendix A),
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and Note 2 in Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Exhibit | to this Appendix A) for a more in-depth
explanation of these entries and the manner in which they impact the Fund equity balance calculation.

Fiscal 2008

During fiscal year 2008, the City’s revenues increased by 4.6% from fiscal year 2007. The City’s
largest sources of revenues were property taxes, state aid, excise taxes, and payment in lieu of taxes totaling
$1.49 billion (67.3% of total revenue). Property taxes increased $57.9 million, an increase of 4.6% from the
previous year. Departmental and other increased by $13.4 million, representing a 20.4% change from fiscal
2007. The main factors were: an increase in fringe retirement reimbursement from grants of $1.1 million,
an increase in pension and annuities of $5.4 million. Licenses and permits totaled $46.0 million, a 13.0%
increase from fiscal 2007. The primary factor was a $3.9 million increase in building permit revenues.

The increase in revenues allowed for an increase in expense categories. The City's expenses covered
a range of services. The largest expenses were for schools ($782.5 million), public safety ($509.3 million),
other employee benefits ($190.2 million), state and district assessments ($132.8 million), debt service
($115.8 million), public works ($108.8 million), and retirement costs ($95.2 million). Schools realized a
$38.7 million (5.2%) increase while public safety realized an expenditure increase of $31.9 million (6.7%).
The driving force behind the increased expenses for schools and public safety were increases in salaries and
employer charges. The rise of the cost of health care was the main proponent for other employee benefits
increasing by $14.3 million. Public works represented a $10.9 million increase primarily due to snow
removal costs. State and district assessments realized a nearly 7.0% increase due to increases in
Commonwealth assessments for charter school tuition and MBTA assessments. Debt service expenses
increased due to increases in scheduled principal and interest payments. Retirement costs expenses
increased due to an increase in the City’s actuarially required contribution.

The General Fund’s equity balance as of June 30, 2008 was $802.0 million, as compared to $732.0
million in fiscal 2007. The increase of $70.0 million or 9.6% is primarily due to a continued increase in
receipts from property and excise taxes.

Fiscal 2009

During fiscal year 2009, the City’s revenues increased by 0.8% from fiscal year 2008. The City’s
largest sources of revenue were property taxes, excise taxes and fines totaling $1.58 billion, or 70.7% of
total revenue. Property taxes increased $76.6 million, representing a positive change of 5.8% from fiscal
year 2008. Departmental and other revenue increased by $3.1 million, or 3.9% from the prior fiscal year.
This growth was primarily caused by an increase in Medicaid part D and an increase in affirmative
recovery receipts from the law department. Revenues from investment income and licenses and permits
totaled $59.1 million, a combined decrease of $24.7 million from fiscal year 2008. The primary factor for
the decrease in investment income was lower returns on the City’s investments. The decrease in licenses
and permits was due to a decline in the amount of building permits issued, a side effect of the slow real
estate market.

In fiscal year 2009, expenditures increased by a total of $61.2 million, or 2.8% from fiscal year
2008. The City’s largest expenses were for schools ($818.3 million), public safety ($521.9 million), other
employee benefits ($191.6 million), state and district assessments ($142.1 million), debt service ($119.3
million), public works ($112.2 million), and retirement costs ($82.3 million). Schools experienced an
expenditure increase of $35.8 million (4.6%) while public safety realized an increase of $12.6 million
(2.5%). The cause of the increase in both schools and public safety was due to a continued growth in
payroll and payroll related costs. State and district assessments realized a $9.3 million (7.0%) increase due
to Commonwealth assessments for charter school tuition and MBTA assessments. The $3.3 million (3.1%)
increase in public works expenditures was primarily due to snow removal costs.

The General Fund’s equity balance as of June 30, 2009 was $828.7 million, as compared to $802.0
million in fiscal 2008. The increase of $26.7 million, or 3.3%, was primarily due to continued increases in
Real and Personal Property Tax revenues.

Cash Balances

The following table represents the end-of-month unaudited cash balances for the City’s General Fund
commencing with fiscal 2007 and ending with the most recent month for which data is available.

The cash balances presented do not necessarily reconcile with revenue and expenditures for similar
accounts calculated on a budgetary accounting basis or on a GAAP basis.
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General Fund End-of-Month Cash Balances for Fiscal 2007-2010
($ in thousands)

2007 2008 2009 2010

$872,949 $964,125 $914,382 $1,055,772

860,760 931,790 873,859 1,037,852

823,615 906,303 870,116 966,445

868,799 950,603 809,804 977,341

947,222 867,062 842,027 927,851

855,483 786,370 896,395 781,347

January ............. 879,069 876,276 901,785 902,410

February 830,317 827,375 929,254 982,327
MAICH o 871,122 858,115 929,342
ADI s 873,483 942,479 1,029,689
MY ..o 946,108 915,466 1,036,455
JUNE e 936,891 924,644 998,855

Source:  City of Boston Treasury Department.

Financial Administration

Pursuant to state law mandates and policy initiatives, the City has established a system of internal
management controls. These controls are designed to maximize revenue collections, monitor operating and
capital spending, evaluate infrastructure needs, and enhance the City’s internal control in business
procedures. Major components of the City’s system of financial management controls include:

Revenue Collections

The City has implemented a comprehensive accounts receivable management program that
coordinates the collection of departmental revenues. The City has afforded taxpayers the ability to remit
payment for licenses, permits, fees, and fines with credit and debit cards and has given taxpayers an
alternative choice in paying real estate taxes by use of online direct debit. The City secures its statutory lien
for delinquent real estate taxes with instruments recorded at the Suffolk County Registry of Deeds (“tax
takings™). For more information concerning tax takings and collection of delinquent real estate taxes, see
“City Revenues—Property Taxes—Delinquent Taxes and Tax Title.”

Debt Management

The City uses a comprehensive, interactive debt capacity model that assists debt management
administrators in evaluating the potential impact of debt issues on cash flow, credit and statutory debt
capacity.

The Treasury Department manages all City borrowings. The Treasury Department focuses on the
timing of borrowings to take advantage of favorable market conditions and manages the City’s cash flows
to help obviate the need for short-term borrowings for operating purposes. The Treasury Department has
established a series of debt management guidelines and has instituted a debt policy that direct the City’s
approach toward its debt management activities, including rapid debt repayment, the use of a debt capacity
model for establishing debt affordability, limitations on the level of variable rate debt the City will employ,
maintenance of the relationship between debt and repayment sources, target savings for refundings, and
reporting and liaison with the financial community and the rating agencies.

Financial Management

Financial management is supported through the use of the Boston Administrative Information
Systems (BAIS). BAIS is an integrated financial and human resources management system that is designed
to track and control daily activities and report the financial position of the City. BAIS performs the
specialized functions of encumbrance control, budget control, position management, payroll allotment
reporting, fund accounting, and capital project and grant management. Real time edits prohibit excessive
commitments and overspending, while on-line access to information, including monthly revenue and
expenditure reports, allows department managers to evaluate directly the financial status of individual
programs and the entire department. The utilization of these systems supports the rigorous monitoring and
reporting requirements enforced by the City.

The City of Boston has consistently received unqualified opinions on the audit of its Basic Financial
Statements and has been presented with a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
from the Government Finance Officers Association for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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Investment Policy

The City has enacted and annually reviews and updates its investment policy statement that dictates
the types of investments made by the City Treasury. The policy also focuses on the appropriate balance of
liquidity and the rate of return on investments. Bond proceeds, in conformance with the City’s policy, are
invested in highly liquid, fully collateralized investments.

Performance Management and Program Evaluation

Boston About Results (BAR) is the City’s performance management and evaluation program. At its
core, BAR aims to create a sustainable and reliable performance management system which captures the
core functions of City departments and citywide strategic goals, assists in the decision-making process,
identifies areas of improvement, and effectively communicates performance results to a broad range of
stakeholders.

Using performance management as its foundation, BAR encourages organization changes and
operational improvements that increase the effectiveness and productivity of City departments. The
program does this by providing reliable, objective, and independent information and reports to City
managers about department performance and operations.

Risk Management

The City of Boston’s Risk Management Program focuses on a planned strategy of self-insurance
supported by strong prevention and cost reduction efforts, financial reserves and catastrophic insurance.

The citywide program first focuses on limiting unnecessary asset losses due, for example, to third
party legal liability claims, property losses, workplace injuries, employee healthcare and unemployment
compensation. The City’s Corporation Counsel defends the City in any lawsuits that arise from the normal
course of operations. Assets and losses are tracked and quantified and areas are targeted for improvement
efforts.

The City budgets for and funds the costs described above through the general fund, except for self-
insured healthcare costs, which are managed by Blue Cross Blue Shield, and financed through an
employee/employer trust fund established in compliance with Section 3A of Chapter 32B of the General
Laws.

To protect the City’s assets from adverse loss, commercial insurance is purchased strategically for
certain exposures. A catastrophic property insurance policy provides $100 million all risk protection after a
$10 million deductible; boiler and machinery losses are insured up to $10 million, and 75% of the City’s
healthcare costs are insured through HMOs.

For unexpected large losses, the City maintains a catastrophic risk reserve, the available balance of
which equaled $12.6 million at the end of fiscal 2009.

Energy Management

The Mayor’s Energy Management Board is charged with making decisions regarding the City’s
procurement, use, and conservation of energy as well as the minimization of the impact of fossil fuel
consumption on public health. The Energy Management Board is comprised of the City's Director of
Administration and Finance and Collector-Treasurer, Chief of Environmental and Energy Services, Chief
of Public Property, and Chief of Public Health.

The Energy Management Board commissioned an Integrated Energy Management Plan that is
intended to assure progress toward the fulfillment of its mission. The Integrated Energy Management Plan
was finalized in fiscal 2006.

The first project identified for the Integrated Energy Management Plan, lighting controls in City Hall,
was completed in 2009. Planning for the second project, a comprehensive energy management project at
the main branch of the Boston Public Library, is currently underway. In addition, a second phase of the
efficiency project for City Hall is planned for 2010.

Since March 2005, the City has independently contracted with third party electricity suppliers to meet
all of the City's electricity supply requirements. To date, the supply costs the City has paid to its third party
electricity supplier have been less than the default supply costs offered by the City's local electricity
distribution company, NSTAR - Boston Edison Company.
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CITY REVENUES

The principal sources of City revenue available to meet operating expenditures are property taxes,
state aid, excise revenues, departmental revenues, and federal and state grants, all of which are described
below. Except as specifically noted, all amounts are stated on a budgetary accounting basis. References to
fiscal 2010 are unaudited.

Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are the largest single source of the City’s revenue. The City’s gross
property tax levy for fiscal 2010 equals $1.46 billion, or 61.0% of City General Fund revenues for such
period. Certain properties are subject to arrangements that suspend the imposition of real property taxes at
normal rates in order to encourage development. See “City Revenues—Property Taxes—Revenues from
Chapter 121A Properties” below.

As discussed below, Proposition 2% limits the level of property taxation in the City. In fiscal 2010,
the City will again levy taxes below the 2.5% ceiling on the overall effective tax rate. The City is not
expected to reach the levy ceiling in the foreseeable future due to previous growth in the real estate market.

Proposition 2%,

Proposition 2% is a statewide tax limitation subject to amendment or repeal by the legislature that
imposes two separate limits on the annual tax levy of a city or town. The primary limitation of Proposition
2% is that the property tax levy in any city or town in the Commonwealth cannot exceed 2.5% of the full
and fair cash valuation of the taxable real estate and personal property in that city or town (the “2%
ceiling”). The only exception is the temporary exclusion of debt service or capital costs from the levy
ceiling restrictions, as described below.

Within the limits of the 2% ceiling, the Growth Levy Limit is a secondary limitation imposed by
Proposition 2%. The Growth Levy Limit prohibits the levy in a fiscal year from exceeding an amount equal
to 102.5% of the maximum allowable limit for the preceding year, subject to exceptions for the following:
property newly added to the tax rolls and valuation increases other than as a result of a general revaluation
(“new growth™); temporary exclusions from the tax levy limitation to pay for capital costs or debt service
on indebtedness; and “overrides,” which are permanent increases in the tax levy for general expenditures of
the city or town. Exclusions and overrides must be approved by a referendum of the voters of the city or
town. The levy is permanently increased by the addition of new growth and overrides, except that any
override to fund a stabilization fund will not be taken into account in calculating the maximum levy limit in
subsequent fiscal years unless the City Council votes to appropriate such increased amount in such
subsequent year to the stabilization fund. The exclusion of debt service by referendum temporarily
increases the levy amount and the duration of the specific debt excluded. The Growth Levy Limit may be
exceeded by an override in any year by a majority vote of the voters. An increase in the Growth Levy Limit
under this procedure, however, does not permit a tax levy in excess of the 2% ceiling, since the two
limitations apply independently. The applicable tax limits may also be reduced in any year by a majority
vote of the voters. The City’s gross levy in fiscal 2010 equals $1.46 billion. In fiscal 2010, the allowable
2.5% increase is $35.0 million, and “new growth” is $29.2 million.

In order to mitigate its adverse impact on local government revenues, Proposition 2% limits the
annual rate of increase of aggregate, statewide assessments made upon cities and towns by the
Commonwealth and certain of its governmental entities, such as assessments made upon the City and
certain other cities and towns for the MBTA, to 2.5% of the prior year’s assessment. Proposition 2% also
limits the motor vehicle excise tax rate to 2.5%.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Proposition 2 ¥ described above, the City’s Bond Procedure Act
of 1983 mandates assessment of taxes in excess of the Proposition 2% levy limits to the extent that the debt
service on City obligations is not otherwise provided for in the tax levy or from other sources, with no
allowance made for any other expenditures of the City. See “City Indebtedness—Classification of City
Debt.”
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Proposition 2% Property Tax Levy Limits, Fiscal 2006-2010V
($ in thousands)

‘ 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Total Assessed Valuation $74,738,001 $86,516,106 $90,067,297 $90,387,171 $87,256,532
Growth Levy Limit @ 1,207,764 1,271,017 1,334,309 1,400,631 1,465,230
Levy Ceiling 1,868,450 2,162,903 2,251,682 2,259,679 2,181,413
Tax Levy @ 1,207,620 1,270,260 1,334,278 1,400,015 1,465,058
Under Levy Ceiling 660,830 892,643 917,404 859,664 716,355

(1) Represents amounts assessed on January 1, and subsequently certified by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue in
December of each fiscal year and does not include Omitted Assessments.
(2) The Growth Levy Limit is the maximum allowable levy as determined by Proposition 2%.

(3) For each fiscal year, the amount of the actual tax levy is the largest amount possible. The Growth Levy Limit would be exceeded
if the tax rate were raised an additional cent ($0.01).

Source:  City of Boston Assessing Department.

Revaluation

State law mandates a revaluation of all taxable property every three years. These revaluations are
reviewed and certified by the Commonwealth. In the years between revaluations, the Commonwealth
permits municipalities to establish new values on the basis of market changes, using the most recent
revaluation as a basis. The City has adjusted certified property values in accordance with this procedure in
years when market conditions indicated such adjustment was necessary.

In November 2009, the City concluded work on its tenth triennial revaluation for fiscal 2010, with an
assessment date of January 1, 2009. For fiscal 2010, assessments were based on market activity leading up
to the assessment date. Assessments for most residential properties have declined. As was the case in fiscal
2009, the magnitude of the reduction was once again dependent on local real estate market conditions. In
some areas, residential values remained stable or declined slightly. In other neighborhoods, including those
impacted by foreclosure activity, there were more significant value declines. As of the assessment date, the
commercial market experienced moderate decline in total value. See “City Revenues—Property Taxation—
Taxes by Use; Tax Rates.”

Certified Triennial Revaluations

Assessment Date Real and Personal Property Value Applicable Years

January 1, 2009 $87.26 billion fiscal 2010 through 2012
January 1, 2006 86.52 billion fiscal 2007 through 2009
January 1, 2003 66.14 billion fiscal 2004 through 2006
January 1, 2000 50.49 billion fiscal 2001 through 2003

Source:  City of Boston Assessing Department.
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Taxation by Use; Tax Rates

The property tax base in the City consists of personal property and classes of real estate. The
following table shows the classes of taxable real property assessed as of January 1, 2009. The fiscal 2010
tax rates were applied to the January 1, 2009 valuation to determine levy and tax liability for fiscal 2010.

Assessed Valuation of Taxable Real Property by
Real Estate Classes, Assessment Dated January 1, 2009

Land Area
Real Estate Classes (Square feet) Land Valuation Building Valuation Total Valuation
Apartments 33,085,185 $1,253,805,680 $3,094,062,186 $4,347,867,866
Agricultural 546,757 61,900 181,100 243,000
Commercial 75,638,790 5,321,797,572 15,980,646,279 21,302,443,851
Commercial Condominium 9,995,886 3,035,900 2,034,734,600 2,037,770,500
Residential Condominium 58,108,963 - 23,110,559,593 23,110,559,593
Commercial Land 27,778,695 464,888,937 317,685,075 782,574,012
Condominium Main @ 56,843,570 - - -
Condominium Parking 406,663 1,025,300 92,173,900 93,199,200
Industrial 42,879,904 609,457,272 687,563,950 1,297,021,222
Residential & Commercial 18,771,590 1,263,220,959 3,038,086,152 4,301,307,111
Residential Land 32,614,607 242,401,995 11,200,448 253,602,443
1-Family 156,179,447 4,195,261,186 7,132,670,653 11,327,931,839
2-Family 86,839,042 2,335,988,373 4,359,405,105 6,695,393,478
3-Family 52,603,421 1,675,519,205 3,961,385,260 5,636,904,465
4-Family (4-6 units) 9,328,784 570,209,416 1,252,385,581 1,822,594,997
TOTAL 661,621,304 $17,936,673,695 $65,072,739,882 $83,009,413,577
(1) Condominium Main represents the total land area of all residential and commercial condominiums and condominium-parking
units.
Source:  City of Boston Assessing Department.
Tax Rates, Fiscal 2006-2010
(per $1,000 of assessed value)
Commercial,
Industrial and
Personal Residential
Fiscal Year Property Property
2000 $29.38 $11.88
2000 e 27.11 10.63
2008, .. e e, 25.92 10.97
2007 e e 26.87 10.99
200, .. e, 30.70 11.12
Source:  City of Boston Assessing Department.

The City utilizes five classes of property for taxation purposes: (i) residential real property, (ii) open
space land, and (iii) commercial, (iv) industrial and (v) personal property. Within limits under state law, the
City may determine the share of the annual levy to be borne by each of the categories. Under these
statutory limits, the residential tax rate cannot be given a discount greater than 50%, while the business tax
rate cannot exceed 175% of the overall effective tax rate.

The City may also exempt a portion of the assessed valuation of residential real property when used
as the taxpayer's principal residence. The amount of the residential exemption can equal up to 30% of the
average assessed value of all residential property in the City. In fiscal 2010, qualifying residents who
receive the residential exemption have their taxable assessed values reduced by $125,090. The residential
exemption has no impact on the overall tax rate.

Tax Base

The following table shows, for purposes of year-to-year comparison, the assessed valuations with
respect to all property in the City subject to taxation, used for determining the tax levies and tax rates in
fiscal years 2006 through 2010.
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Assessed Valuations—Fiscal Years 2006-2010%
($ in thousands)*

Total Value Value of Total
Value of Value of Taxable Taxable Assessed
Fiscal Taxable Taxable Land and Personal Taxable
Years Land Buildings Buildings Property Value
2010 $17,936,674 $65,072,740 $83,009,414 $4,247,118 $87,256,532
. 19,412,075 67,060,992 86,473,068 3,914,103 90,387,171
18,745,434 67,529,364 86,274,798 3,792,499 90,067,297
18,931,722 64,068,735 83,000,457 3,515,648 86,516,106
12,513,403 58,897,095 71,410,498 3,327,508 74,738,001

* Rows may not add due to rounding.
(1)  Represents assessed values determined as of January 1 in the prior fiscal year. For example, fiscal 2009 assessed values are as
of January 1, 2009.

Source:  City of Boston Assessing Department.

The following table is a list of all of the taxpayers in the City that had an aggregate tax liability in
excess of $10.0 million for fiscal 2010. Assessed valuations and fiscal 2010 taxes reflect the valuation of
property as of January 1, 2009 and the tax liability using applicable tax rates.

Largest Taxpayers: City of Boston, Fiscal 2010 @

Fiscal

Total 2010

Personal Real Assessed Tax

Name Property @ Property Value Liability

Blackstone Real Estate Partners © $ 1,033,050 $ 2,818,083,500 $ 2,819,116,550 $ 82,825,644
NSTAR / Boston Edison Company 1,561,371,900 63,690,701 1,625,062,601 47,744,339
Boston Properties 4,570,330 1,311,653,600 1,316,223,930 38,538,543
Tishman Speyer Properties 287,240 969,354,500 969,641,740 28,488,074
Fort Hill Associates 20,170 749,859,500 749,879,670 22,031,465
Brookfield Properties Corporation 217,220 723,746,500 723,963,720 21,270,054
Broadway Real Estate Partners @ - 681,009,700 681,009,700 20,008,065
Teachers Insurance And Annuity Association - 622,803,500 622,803,500 18,297,967
John Hancock Financial Services® 3,049,000 480,960,400 484,009,400 14,220,196
One Hundred Federal Street, LPS 7,635,190 460,016,500 467,651,690 13,739,607
UIDC Of Massachusetts, Inc. 406,050 461,943,500 462,349,550 13,583,830
Fortis Property Group 342,690 431,105,400 431,448,090 12,675,945
Dewey Square Tower Associates 422,860 425,862,500 426,285,360 12,524,264
National Grid, Inc. 354,024,150 35,486,000 389,510,150 11,443,808
$1,933,379,850  $10,235,575,801 $12,168,955,651 $357,391,801

(1) The methodology used in creating the table involves the search of the title holder, or holders, of all major parcels of property in
the City. This methodology does not necessarily locate all parcels owned by affiliates nor does it differentiate between
percentage ownership in a particular parcel.

(2) Pursuant to Chapter 59 of the General Laws, Section 4, personal property consists of movable physical items not permanently
attached to real estate. Many items of personal property are exempt from taxation in Massachusetts. Examples of taxable
personal property include equipment owned by businesses, poles, wires and machinery of utility companies, and aircraft.

(3) InFebruary 2007, the Blackstone Group LP completed the acquisition of office space held by Equity Office Properties.

(4) Broadway Partners’ real estate figure includes the Hancock Tower, which was sold at auction due to loan default after the
assessment date.

(5) In prior years, properties owned by John Hancock Life Insurance were attributed to Manulife Financial, a related corporate
entity.

Source:  City of Boston Assessing and Treasury Departments.

Real Estate Tax Levies and Collections

The following table shows the level of property tax levies, tax levies net of budgeted reserves for
abatements (“Net % Gross™), the gross amount and proportion of each levy collected during the year of
levy, the cumulative amount (net of refunds) and proportion of each levy collected as of June 30, 2009 and
the total amount (net of refunds) of taxes (current and all prior levies) collected during fiscal 2005 through
2008. Excluded from the following table are receipts from PILOTs and receipts on account of Chapter
121A corporations.
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Tax Collections In Relation To Property Tax Levies Fiscal 2005-2009
(Statutory Accounting Basis)
($ in millions)

Tax Levy Tax Levy Net of Refunds

Collected Collected as of

Tax Levy Within Year of Levy June 30, 2009
% % % %
Net % Gross Gross Net Net Gross Net
Fiscal Year Gross @ Net Gross Amount Levy Levy Amount  Levy  Levy
$1,400.7 $1,365.3 97.5% $1,392.7 99.4% 102.0%  $1,383.2 98.8%  101.3%

1,334.6 1,295.5 97.1 1,338.8 100.3 103.3 1,3175 98.7 101.7
1,270.8 1,223.9 96.3 1,260.2 99.2 103.0 1,252.6 98.6 102.3
1,208.2 1,167.0 96.6 1,202.2 99.5 103.0 1,192.5 98.7 102.2
1,150.1 1,105.2 96.1 1,142.1 99.3 103.3 1,136.1 98.8 102.8

(1) Includes additional assessments billed in June of each fiscal year, as well as subsequently deducted residential exemptions.
Source:  City of Boston Treasury Department.

The City’s property tax bills are mailed quarterly in July, October, December, and April. The bills
mailed in July and October represent preliminary tax bills each equal to one quarter of the previous fiscal
year’s liability. The fair cash value of the property or assessment for the purpose of determining the new
fiscal year tax liability is reflected in the third and fourth quarter bills, which are mailed in December and
April. See “City Revenues—Property Taxes—Taxation by Use; Tax Rates.”

Delinquent Taxes and Tax Titles

Real and personal property taxes (not including motor vehicle, the room occupancy and the aircraft
fuel excises) are based on values established by the Assessing Department as of each January 1, and are due
in quarterly payments every August, November, February and May. Delinquent real estate and personal
property taxes are subject to a 14% per annum interest charge. Subsequent to the end of the fiscal year in
which real estate taxes become delinquent, the City secures its lien for such taxes by taking legal title to all
delinquent properties, subject to the owners’ right of redemption. After this process, known as a “tax
taking,” is complete, interest accrues on outstanding amounts of delinquent real estate taxes at the rate of
16% per annum. If the taxes remain unpaid for a period of six months from the tax taking, the City may
petition the Land Court to foreclose the equity owner’s right of redemption. Upon foreclosure, the City may
then sell the property in order to liquidate the tax liability. The City estimates that the value of the
properties to which such tax titles are attached is substantially less than the amount of delinquent taxes,
charges, and interest owed.

Tax title receipts were $12.3 million, $16.9 million and $16.2 million, respectively, in fiscal 2007,
2008 and 2009.

Revenues from Chapter 121A Corporations

A local government in cooperation with its redevelopment authorities may suspend the imposition of
real property taxes at normal levels on properties determined to be “blighted” in order to encourage
redevelopment of such properties by special corporations organized under Chapter 121A (“Chapter 121A
Corporations™). The City receives three forms of revenue from Chapter 121A Corporations. The first
consists of excise PILOTSs for each Chapter 121A Corporation that are collected by the Commonwealth and
distributed to the City. The second form of revenue is contract payments resulting from agreements that
may be entered into between the Chapter 121A Corporation and the City relating to City services available
to the development. A third form of revenue does not generate significant payments.

Revenue received by the City from Chapter 121A Corporations for the last three fiscal years are
shown in the following table.

Revenues to the City from Chapter 121A Corporations
($ in thousands)

Excise Payments Contracts

In Lieu of Taxes Payments
Eiscal Year Ended June 30 (Section 10) (Section 6A) @ Total
2009 ..o $42,923 $22,541 $65,464
2008 ..ot 39,292 25,250 64,542
2007 1ot 40,069 23,783 63,852

(1) Contract Payments (Section 6A) include Chapter 121B, Section 16 payments.
Source:  Office of Budget Management.

A-23



State Aid

State aid from the Commonwealth comprises the second largest revenue source to the City’s General
Fund. The recession has had a substantially negative effect on state revenues and the Commonwealth has
reduced its expenditures and drawn substantially on its reserves to address its resulting budget shortfalls.
Among these measures, the Commonwealth reduced state aid to municipalities mid-year in fiscal 2009 and
in fiscal 2010. The City incurred reductions in budgeted state aid totaling $43.3 million, or 9.2% in mid-
year fiscal 2009, and an additional $36.2 million, or 8.0% in fiscal year 2010.

In fiscal 2011, the Commonwealth projects a budget shortfall of approximately $2.75 billion. The
Governor’s fiscal 2011 budget proposal addressed the shortfall through spending reductions and the use of
non-recurring revenues from federal and state stabilization funds. In the Governor’s proposed budget, the
major categories of local aid to municipalities were not reduced compared with fiscal 2010 levels.
However, the Legislature has not yet released its budget proposals and has not acted on the Governor’s
plan. Therefore, no assurance can be given that state aid to municipalities will not be further reduced as the
state budget process continues.

Under the Massachusetts Constitution and state finance law, the State Treasurer has the authority to
delay the allotment of state aid appropriations under certain circumstances. In addition, the statute
governing the distribution of school aid provides that such payments are due only to the extent that
sufficient funds are available. The State Treasurer is also empowered to deduct from state aid amounts
appropriated to the City the amount of “charges” or “assessments.” The largest of these assessments are
those for MBTA service and tuition for students attending charter schools.

Assessments also include smaller charges for various state-provided services, which may include debt
service paid by the Commonwealth on “qualified bonds™ and any sums allocable to the Boston Water and
Sewer Commission or the City that are due and unpaid on debt issued to the Massachusetts Water Pollution
Abatement Trust (“MWPAT?”). The City has no “qualified bonds” outstanding and has never been assessed
for unpaid amounts due the MWPAT.

Total state assessments are expected to amount to $145.8 million in fiscal 2010. State assessments
totaled $128.3 million and $137.7 million in fiscal years 2008 and 2009, respectively. Total state aid net of
assessments, or “net state aid,” is expected to decrease $44.3 million, or 14.0%, to $272.5 million to the
City in fiscal 2010. Net state aid totaled $316.7 million in fiscal 2009 and $365.0 million in fiscal 2008.
The City’s net state aid remains $155.9 million below its fiscal 2002 peak distribution.

In addition to direct state aid, the City also receives reimbursement for the cost of teachers’ pensions.
Legislation is currently pending that would eliminate the teachers’ pension appropriation and
reimbursement and would transfer responsibility for managing Boston teachers’ pension fund assets to the
Commonwealth. See “Employee Benefits—Retirement Systems.” The City received $105.4 million, $118.8
million, and $126.9 million respectively, in fiscal 2008, 2009 and 2010. The City also receives cost of
living adjustments approved prior to fiscal 1998 by the legislature for municipal employees. See “The
City— Retirement Systems.”

State School Building Assistance

Under its school building assistance program, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts provides grants
to cities, towns and regional school districts for school construction projects. Until July 26, 2004, the State
Board of Education was responsible for approving grants for school projects and otherwise administering
the program. Grant amounts ranged from 50% to 90% of approved project costs. Municipalities generally
issued bonds to finance the entire project cost, and the Commonwealth disbursed the grants in equal annual
installments over the term of the related bonds. Approved project costs included the interest expense
incurred on debt issued by a municipality to finance the school project.

Due to demand for school building assistance grants far exceeding available funds, the state
legislature created the Massachusetts School Building Authority (the “MSBA”) in 2004 to finance and
administer the school building assistance program. The MSBA has assumed all powers and obligations of
the State Board of Education with respect to the program. In addition to certain other amounts, the
legislation dedicates a portion of Commonwealth sales tax receipts to the MSBA to finance the program.

Projects previously approved for grants by the State Board of Education are entitled to receive grant
payments from the MSBA based on the approved project cost and reimbursement rate applicable under the
prior law. As of March 1, 2010, the City had approximately $36.2 million of bonds outstanding for school
projects approved for grants under the prior law at a reimbursement rate of 90% of approved project costs.
The MSBA has paid and is expected to continue to pay the remaining amounts of the grants for such
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projects in annual installments to reimburse debt service on bonds issued by the City to finance such
projects.

Projects on the State Board of Education’s project priority waiting list as of July 1, 2004 are also
entitled to receive grant payments from the MSBA based on the eligible project costs and reimbursement
rates applicable under the prior law. In 2005, the MSBA approved grants at a reimbursement rate of 90% of
approved project costs for three City projects on the priority waiting list as of July 1, 2004. In January
2009, the City and the MSBA executed a project funding agreement for Burke High School, the last City
school project on the priority waiting list as of July 1, 2004, that will provide up to $42.4 million in State
support for the project. As of March, 2010, the City has received approximately $39.8 million.

The MSBA in 2008 promulgated regulations with respect to the application and approval process for
new projects. The range of reimbursement rates for such projects has been reduced to between 40% and
80% of approved project costs. In addition, the MSBA expects to pay grants for such projects as project
costs are incurred pursuant to a project funding agreement between the MSBA and the municipality. In
most cases, the receipt of these progress payments from the MSBA will eliminate the need for the
municipality to borrow on a temporary basis to finance the MSBA’s share of project costs. However, none
of the interest expense incurred on debt issued by municipalities to finance their portion of the costs of new
projects will be included in the approved project costs eligible for reimbursement.

Currently, two City school projects have been approved by the MSBA to move into the
feasibility study phase to determine the most appropriate, cost effective solution for the projects.
During the feasibility stage of each project, the City will be reimbursed by the MSBA for 75% of
feasibility study costs. The ongoing analysis and consideration of the City’s project proposal by the
MSBA does not represent or imply a commitment by the MSBA to fund the project. The MSBA’s
financial commitment to a project is only determined through the project funding agreement after
careful analysis and the development of architectural and engineering documents.

Excise Revenues

In addition to the major sources of revenue described above, the City receives various other types of
revenues. See “Financial Operations—Summary and Comparison of Operating Results (Budgetary
Basis)—Fiscal 2006-2009 and Fiscal 2010 Budget” above. In fiscal 2010 the City gained one new
significant excise revenue source (meals excise) and expanded an existing source (room occupancy excise).
The following is a description of those and other significant excise revenue sources of the City.

Room Occupancy Excise

In accordance with state law, the City historically imposed a 4.0% local room occupancy excise upon
the transfer of occupancy of any room in a hotel, lodging house or motel. The Commonwealth granted
authority to municipalities in 2009 to increase the local option room occupancy excise to 6.0%. The City
adopted the increased local option room occupancy excise of 6.0%, effective October 1, 2009. The
Massachusetts Department of Revenue is responsible for collecting and remitting local option room
occupancy excise receipts to the City on a quarterly basis in arrears. The City’s room occupancy excise
receipts totaled $35.1 million, $40.3 million, and $36.6 million respectively, in fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009.
See “Summary and Comparison of Operating Results (Budgetary Basis) - Fiscal 2006-2009 and Fiscal
2010 Budget—Fiscal 2010 Budget—Revenues.”

Pursuant to Chapter 152 of the Acts of 1997, as amended (the “Convention Center Act”), the City
established the City of Boston Room Occupancy Excise Fund (the “Excise Fund”), which is pledged to the
payment of the principal of and interest on indebtedness issued by the City to fund the City’s share of costs
of the Boston Convention and Exhibition Center Project (the “BCEC Project”). See “City Indebtedness—
Special Obligation Debt.” Of the $36.6 million in room occupancy excise taxes collected in fiscal 2009,
$9.6 million was retained in the Excise Fund, and $27.0 million was transferred into the General Fund as
authorized by the Convention Center Act. In fiscal 2008, $17.3 million of the $40.3 million in room
occupancy excise taxes collected was retained in the Excise Fund and $23.0 million was transferred into the
General Fund. In fiscal 2007, $15.1 million of the $35.1 million in room occupancy excise taxes collected
was retained in the Excise Fund and $20.0 million was transferred into the General Fund.

Aircraft Fuel Excise

The City also assesses an aircraft fuel excise upon the sale of jet fuel. The Commonwealth collects
this tax and distributes it to the City quarterly. The City’s aircraft fuel excise receipts totaled $24.3 million,
$18.8 million, and $34.5 million respectively, in fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009. It should be noted that the
City received only three quarterly excise payments in fiscal 2008, and received a payment attributable to

A-25



the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 in fiscal 2009. In fiscal 2009, the City received three quarterly payments
attributable to fiscal 2009 plus one quarterly payment attributable to fiscal 2008. The City expects this
collection pattern to be repeated in fiscal 2010. See “Summary and Comparison of Operating Results
(Budgetary Basis) - Fiscal 2006-2009 and Fiscal 2010 Budget.”

Motor Vehicle Excise

The Commonwealth assesses an excise on the registration of motor vehicles, the proceeds of which
are received by the municipality where the vehicle is principally garaged. The excise is a uniform rate of
$25 per $1,000 of vehicle valuation. The City’s annual motor vehicle excise receipts totaled $34.5 million,
$49.6 million, and $44.7 million respectively, in fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009. See “Summary and
Comparison of Operating Results (Budgetary Basis) - Fiscal 2006-2009 and Fiscal 2010 Budget.”

Meals Excise

The Commonwealth granted authority to municipalities in 2009 to levy a meals excise on locally sold
prepared food and beverages at local option. The Massachusetts Department of Revenue is responsible for
collecting and remitting meals excise receipts to the City on a quarterly basis. See “Summary and
Comparison of Operating Results (Budgetary Basis) - Fiscal 2006-2009 and Fiscal 2010 Budget—TFiscal
2010 Budget—Revenues.”

Vehicular Rental Surcharge

The Commonwealth imposes a $10 surcharge on each vehicular rental transaction contract in the
City. One dollar of each surcharge is paid to the City for deposit in the City’s Excise Fund and is pledged to
the payment of the principal of and interest on indebtedness issued by the City to fund the City’s share of
costs of the BCEC Project. The City’s annual share of vehicular rental surcharges totaled $1.2 million, $1.2
million, and $1.1 million respectively, in fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009. See “City Indebtedness—Special
Obligation Debt.”

Departmental Revenues
Several City departments generate significant revenues from fees and charges.

Parking Fines

The City’s annual parking fine receipts totaled $62.8 million, $63.3 million, and $65.9 million
respectively, in fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009.

Building Permit Fees

The Inspectional Services Department performs a variety of functions for which fees are imposed
such as the granting of building permits. The City’s annual building permit fees totaled $27.9 million,
$31.7 million and $27.0 million respectively, in fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009.

Municipal Medicaid Reimbursement

The Office of Budget Management oversees a vendor contract to collect federal reimbursements for
Medicaid eligible services provided through the Boston Public Schools. The City’s annual municipal
Medicaid reimbursement revenue totaled $18.4 million, $15.8 million and $14.7 million respectively, in
fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009.

Other Available Revenues

Under state law, proceeds of the sale of City facilities must be applied to the Surplus Property
Disposition Fund to be used to finance capital projects, unless the City Council, with the approval of the
Mayor, votes to credit to the General Fund the difference between the sale proceeds and the amount of debt
(both principal and interest) incurred in acquiring or improving the sold facility. As of June 30, 2009, there
was $30.1 million remaining in the Surplus Property Disposition Fund.

Grants
The City receives both federal and state grant funds, some of which are determined according to
formulas, and others that are awarded competitively. These monies are recorded in special revenue funds.
Federal Grants

Major sources of federal grant funds for City programs exclusive of City schools in fiscal 2009
included: the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program award of $19.8 million;
the Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME) award of $8.0 million; the Housing Opportunities for
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Persons with AIDS Program (HOPWA) award of $1.7 million; the Supportive Housing Program award of
$14.0 million; Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) award of $4.2 million; and the Shelter Plus Care
Program award of $6.6 million.

Major sources of federal grant funds for programs of the Boston Public Schools in fiscal 2009
included: The Title | Elementary & Secondary Education Act of 1965 award of $44.7 million; Special
Education Entitlement Grant awards of $21.0 million; the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009 (ARRA) State Stabilization Program award of $23.3 million; and the School Lunch Program awards
of $23.4 million. The Boston Public Schools were also awarded $19.3 million from a variety of other
federal grants sources during the 2009 fiscal year. Homeland Security grants awards totaled $25.5 million.

State Grants

In addition to State Aid, the City receives state grants. In fiscal 2009, the Police Department received
Community Services grant awards that totaled $7.7 million from the Commonwealth’s Office of Public
Safety. The Fire Department also received Firefighter grant awards that totaled $1.2 million from the Office
of Public Safety. The Boston Public Schools were awarded approximately $9.9 million. In addition, three
major programs were supported by state education grants including the Special Education Student 50/50
Grant totaling $11.8 million, the Community Partnership Grants totaling $5.8 million and the Quality Full-
Day Kindergarten Grant totaling $2.8 million.

CITY INDEBTEDNESS

Classification of City Debt

Direct general obligation debt of the City is debt for which the City’s full faith and credit are pledged
and for the payment of which all taxable property in the City is subject to ad valorem taxation without limit
as to rate or amount. General obligation bonds of the City may also be secured in certain circumstances by
a pledge of specific City revenues. The special obligation debt of the City is debt, which may be secured
solely by a pledge of specific revenues derived from a revenue-producing facility of the City or for the
payment of which the City’s obligation is subject to annual appropriation.

General Obligation Debt

On June 30, 2009, the City had outstanding approximately $925.0 million of general obligation long-
term bonds, all of which bear fixed rates of interest. On March 1, 2010, the City had approximately $871.1
million of bonds outstanding.

The City is authorized to secure any of its general obligation indebtedness by a pledge of all or any
part of any revenues of the City including, without limitation, any tax, such as real property taxes, any fees
payable to or for the account of the City, and certain receipts, distributions and reimbursements held or to
be received by the City from the Commonwealth. The City currently has no general obligation bonds or
notes outstanding secured by such a pledge.

Debt Limits

All debt of the City requires the authorization of the City Council and approval of the Mayor. If the
Mayor vetoes a loan order passed by the City Council, the charter of the City provides that the loan order is
void and may not be passed over the Mayor’s veto. Authorization of bonds under a loan order of the City
Council includes, unless otherwise provided, the authorization to issue temporary notes in anticipation of
such bonds.

The statutory debt limit for the City consists of a debt limit and a double debt limit. The debt limit is
5%, and the double debt limit is 10%, of the valuation of taxable property in the City as last equalized by
the State Department of Revenue. Biannually, prior to January 31st, the Commissioner of Revenue
establishes a final equalized valuation which is the basis for determining the debt limit for the following
two-year period or until another equalization has been established. The equalized valuation of taxable
property in the City established by the Commissioner of Revenue in January 2009 equals $105.88 billion.
Based on the current equalized valuation, the City’s debt limit equals approximately $5.29 billion, and its
double debt limit equals $10.59 billion.

The City may authorize debt up to its debt limit without state approval. The City may authorize debt
over the debt limit up to the double debt limit with the approval of the Municipal Finance Oversight Board,
composed of the State Treasurer and Receiver General, the State Auditor, the Attorney General and the
Director of Accounts. As of June 30, 2009, the City had outstanding debt of $737.9 million subject to the
debt limit, and authorized but unissued debt subject to the debt limit of $538.1 million. As of March 1,
2010, the City had outstanding debt of $702.5 million subject to the debt limit, and authorized but unissued
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debt subject to the debt limit of $568.6 million. Based on the City’s current debt limit of $5.29 billion, the
City had the capacity to authorize an additional $4.02 billion of debt as of March 1, 2010.

Debt Incurring Capacity
As of March 1, 2010
($ in thousands)

Debt Limit
Normal Debt Limitas of JUne 30, 2009 .......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiccciee ettt $5,293,826
Debt Outstanding as of June 30, 2000 .........cocooireiriiire et ereane s (737,854)
Debt Authorized but Unissued as of June 30, 2009 .................. (538,091)
Available Capacity under Debt Limit as of June 30, 2009 .........ccccviiiiiineiece e 4,017,881
Debt Adjustments approved in fiscal year 2010..........ccovvierireiiriiieie e -
New Authorization approved through March 1, 2010..........ccccvieiiiiniiiinii e (48,430)
Principal Paid through March 1, 2010 ........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 55,317
Available Capacity under Debt Limit as of March 1, 2010..........ccccvviniiiiiieiiieneieeeeece $4,024,768

Source:  City of Boston Auditing Department.

There are many categories of general obligation debt which are not subject to the debt limit and are
therefore not included in the Debt Incurring Capacity table above. Some such debt is, however, subject to
other debt limits, dollar limitations or state approval. As of March 1, 2010, the City had a total of $871.1
million in long term debt outstanding, of which $168.5 million was exempt from the debt limit. As of that
date the City also had $82.0 million of long-term debt that was authorized but unissued and exempt from
the debt limit.

Summary of Authorized but Unissued Within and Outside Debt
As of June 30, 2009 and March 1, 2010 @

Authorized / New Authorizations Authorized /
Unissued And Adjustments Issuance Unissued
6/30/09 7/1/09 - 3/1/10 11/4/09 3/1/10
“Within” Debt Limit= $538,091,326 $48,430,000 $(17,911,200) $568,610,126
“Outside™ Debt Limit= 81,978,324 - - 81,978,324
TOTAL: $620,069,650 $48,430,000 $(17,911,200) $650,588,450

(1) Some columns may not add due to rounding.
Source:  City of Boston Auditing Department and Office of Budget Management.
Debt Statement
The following table sets forth the City’s general obligation debt as of March 1, 2010.

Debt Statement as of March 1, 2010
General Obligation Debt @

Principal Retired in Principal Deemed Payable
Outstanding Fiscal 2010 Outstanding from Net Principal

Purpose for Which Issued as of 6/30/09 as of 3/1/10 as of 3/1/10 Related Revenues @ Amount

General Purpose $629,334,255  $(41,600,115) $607,734,140  $(4,907,299)  $602,826,842
MWPAT 8,218,669 (627,660) 7,591,009 (1,040,522) 6,550,487
Economic Development 2,576,028 (344,179) 2,231,850 - 2,231,850
State Urban Development Relocation 18,097,655 (1,466,848) 16,630,817 - 16,630,817
Schools 83,207,961 (8,648,319) 74,559,642  (44,735,785) 29,823,857
Public Buildings 70,772,003 (7,503,147) 63,268,856  (21,800,995) 41,467,861
Public Works 112,326,319 (13,626,823) 98,699,495 - 98,699,495
Cemeteries 505,770 (151,578) 354,192 - 354,192
Totals $925,038,670 $(73,968,670) $871,070,001 $(72,484,600) $798,585,400

(1) Columns may not add due to rounding.
(2) Includes revenues related to, or derived from facilities for which the debt was incurred. Such revenues include:

a.  Receipts from the Boston Public Health Commission for debt attributable to projects undertaken on behalf of the former
Department of Health and Hospitals, and from the Fund for Parks and Recreation and rental income from a City-owned
building at 1010 Massachusetts Avenue;

b.  Debt service subsidies on City debt issued to the MWPAT; and

c.  Grants from the MSBA for school construction projects.

Source: City of Boston Auditing Department.
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Debt Service Requirements

The following table sets forth the City’s debt service requirements for general obligation debt for
each year from June 30, 2005 through 2009. The debt service requirements table shows the gross Debt
Service Requirements, offset by revenues received from related sources.

Debt Service Requirements—Fiscal 2005-2009 @

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Gross Debt Service Requirements®
Bonded Debt:

Principal $ 85,425,487 $ 77,146,592 $ 82,875,539 $ 84,072,086 $ 88,327,660
Interest.. . 37,935,112 38,004,782 38,676,232 39,010,910 41,606,075
TOtal o $123,360,599 $115,151,374 $121,551,771 $ 123,082,996 $ 129,933,735
Less Revenue Deemed Available
From Related Sources: @
Boston Public Health
Commission Payments ............... $ 2,923,781 $ 1,650,625 $ 1,482,942 $ 1,185,666 $ 1,433,847
Fund for Parks & Recreation....... 278,102 273,154 267,875 262,125 253,959
1010 Massachusetts Ave.............. 1,486,053 1,532,227 1,622,576 1,652,301 1,707,465
MWPAT Loan Subsidy Amounts 554,594 542,030 524,894 516,522 492,351
School Construction Assistance .. 16,144,882 15,463,685 15,134,146 13,711,961 13,198,866
Pension/Administration System - - - - 1,432,247
Total Net Debt Service
Requirements..........cooeeeeerrinnnnnnn. $101,973,187 $95,689,653 $102,519,339 $ 105,754,421 $ 112,847,247

(1) Columns may not add due to rounding.

(2) Derived from the debt service requirements table in the City of Boston tax rate budget, and does not represent actual
expenditures.

(3) Includes revenues related to, or derived from facilities for which the debt was incurred. Such revenues include:

a.  Receipts from the Boston Public Health Commission for debt attributable to projects undertaken on behalf of the former
Department of Health and Hospitals, and from the Fund for Parks and Recreation, and rental income from a City-owned
building at 1010 Massachusetts Avenue;

b.  Debt service subsidies on City debt issued to the MWPAT; and

c.  Grants from the MSBA for school construction projects.

(4) Fiscal 2009 was the first year that the City recognized expenditures for Pension/Administration System.
Source:  City of Boston Auditing Department.

The related revenues shown in the foregoing Debt Statement and table of Debt Service Requirements
are not pledged to the payment of specific indebtedness. However, such revenues may substantially reduce
the amount of tax or other revenues of the City that must be raised to pay debt service on the related debt.

Certain Debt Ratios

The following table sets forth information as of March 1, 2010 with respect to the approximate ratio
of the City’s long-term general obligation debt to certain economic factors.

Debt Ratios

As of March 1, 2010
Debt Per Capita

as a % of
Ratio to Assessed Personal Income
Amount Per Capita ® Property Value @ Per Capita®
Gross General Obligation Debt $871,070,001 $1,403.74 1.00% 2.75%
Net General Obligation Debt 798,585,400 1,286.93 0.92 2.52

(1) U.S. Census Bureau as of December 2009—Boston’s Estimated 2008 Population equaled 620,535.

(2) Assessed Property Values equaled $87.26 billion as of January 1, 2010. State law requires that property be assessed at fair cash
value. See “City Revenues—Property Taxes—Revaluation.”

(3) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, December 2009, Revised Series-Suffolk County’s 2007 Per
Capita Personal Income = $51,038.

(4) Asrepresented in “Debt Statement as of March 1, 2010.”

Source:  City of Boston Auditing Department and Boston Redevelopment Authority.
Three-Year Debt Summary

The following table sets forth a three-year summary of the status of the City’s outstanding general
obligation debt as of June 30th of each respective fiscal year and certain information concerning the City’s
debt service requirements for such fiscal periods.
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Debt Summary, Fiscal 2007 - 2009 (GAAP Basis)
($ in thousands)

2007 2008 2009

Outstanding General Obligation Debt ..........ccceovvrieniniinenreeee e $870,373 $912,061 $925,039
Authorized But Unissued Debt...........c.cccviivieiiiiiieccricce et $540,908 $565,408 $620,070
[ =] 0] A= Y/ (oL $113,212 $115,771  $119,294
Debt Service as a % of Total General Fund Revenues, Transfers and

Other Available FUNS...........cceociiiiiecic e 5.3% 5.2% 5.3%
Debt Service as a % of Total General

Fund EXPENCItUrES ....cc.cveieieice e 5.5% 5.3% 5.3%
Debt Service as a % of Total Net

TAX LBVY ottt 9.1% 8.8% 8.6%
Bonds Issued

General Obligation - New MONEY .........cccovvrireirieieneneinieeneas $100,000 $126,185 $100,000

General Obligation — Refunding Bonds..............ccccoeeveverenrinne. $ 85,425 $ 28,155 $ 40,425

Total BoNds ISSUE.......ccecveeiiiiicieiiecie e $185,425 $154,340 $140,425

Source:  City of Boston Auditing Department.

Short-Term Borrowings

Although the City is authorized to borrow for operating purposes through the issuance of short-term
notes in anticipation of revenue receipts, it has not done so in several years. In addition, the City is
authorized to issue short-term debt obligations (“BANs”) in anticipation of the issuance of long-term
bonds. Currently, no BANs are outstanding.

Special Obligation Debt

In addition to general obligation indebtedness, the Bond Procedure Act of 1983 and various other
special acts authorize the City to incur indebtedness which is secured by and payable solely from certain
revenues of the City which are pledged for the payment of such indebtedness or which are subject to annual
appropriation by the City for such purpose. The only special obligation indebtedness of the City
outstanding as of March 1, 2010 was $80.6 million Special Obligation Refunding Bonds, Boston City
Hospital Issue (the “BCH Bonds™) and $97.1 Convention Center Loan, Act of 1997, Special Obligation
Bonds, Series A (the “Convention Center Bonds™).

The BCH Bonds were issued in 2002 in connection with the restructuring of debt originally incurred
by the City in 1990 (and refunded in 1993) to finance a major construction and renovation program for the
City’s former acute-care hospital then known as Boston City Hospital (“BCH”). On July 1, 1996, the
operations of BCH and Boston University Medical Center Hospital were consolidated into Boston Medical
Center, which is owned and operated by the Boston Medical Center Corporation (“BMCC”), a private
Massachusetts non-profit corporation. Simultaneously with the consolidation, all other public health
operations of the City’s Department of Health and Hospitals, as well as title to BCH, were transferred to the
Boston Public Health Commission (the “Commission™), and the BCH campus was leased to BMCC for an
initial term of 50 years.

The BCH Bonds are special obligations of the City payable from, and secured solely by a pledge and
assignment of amounts payable on a promissory note issued to the City by the Commission. The
promissory note is in turn a special obligation of the Commission secured by an assignment and pledge of
rents payable by BMCC to the Commission under the lease of the BCH campus and, upon any failure of
BMCC to pay all or any part of such rent, the proceeds of certain assistance grants payable by the City to
BMCC. The payment of assistance grants to BMCC is subject to annual appropriation by the City and the
payment of rent by BMCC is contingent upon the appropriation and payment of such assistance grants. The
rent payments and the assistance grants are each at least equal, in amount and terms of payment, to the
principal and interest payable on the BCH Bonds. The City has also covenanted and agreed, subject to
appropriation, to meet any deficiency in the amounts otherwise pledged for the payment of the BCH Bonds.
The BCH Bonds do not constitute general obligations of the City and the full faith and credit of the City are
not pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on the BCH Bonds.
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The Convention Center Bonds were issued by the City in April, 2002 pursuant to the Convention
Center Act to permanently finance certain costs incurred by the City in connection with the development of
the Boston Convention and Exhibition Center (the “BCEC Project”), a joint development of the City, acting
through the Boston Redevelopment Authority (the “BRA”), which was responsible for the acquisition,
preparation and remediation of the site for the BCEC Project, and the Commonwealth, acting through the
Massachusetts Convention Center Authority (the “MCCA”), which was responsible for the construction of
the project and which owns and operates the facility. As provided in the Convention Center Act, the City
has reimbursed the BRA for $181.3 million of site costs for the BCEC Project, funded in part from the
proceeds of the Convention Center Bonds and in part from special revenues accumulated by the City since
enactment of the Convention Center Act, including the proceeds from the sale of hackney (taxi) medallions
authorized by the Convention Center Act.

The Convention Center Bonds are special obligations of the City payable from, and secured solely by
a pledge of, certain “Pledged Receipts,” including all amounts received by the City from the 6.0% local
option room occupancy excise imposed in Boston and from a portion of a surcharge imposed by the
Commonwealth on vehicular rental transaction contracts in Boston. See “City Revenues-Excise Revenues.”
The Convention Center Bonds do not constitute general obligations of the City and the full faith and credit
of the City are not pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Convention Center Bonds.

The Convention Center Act authorizes the City to annually transfer to the City’s General Fund all
Pledged Receipts that are not required for the payment of the Convention Center Bonds. The City
anticipates that room occupancy excise receipts that are attributable to lodging establishments that were
first opened for business after July 1, 1997 (a measuring date provided in the Convention Center Act),
together with the other Pledged Receipts held under the Convention Center Trust Agreement, will be
sufficient to pay the future debt service on the Convention Center Bonds. Accordingly, the City anticipates
that excise tax receipts that were historically available to fund annual operating expenditures of the City
will be available for transfer to the General Fund. In fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009, excise tax receipts in
excess of the debt service requirements on the Convention Center Bonds were transferred to the General
Fund in the amount of $20.1 million, $23.0 million and $27.0 million, respectively. See “City Revenues-
Excise Revenues-Room Occupancy Excise,” above.

Debt of Agencies Related to the City

In addition to general obligation and special obligation indebtedness of the City, the City and certain
agencies related to the City are authorized to issue debt which is solely an obligation of the agency or
which, although issued by the City, are payable solely from revenues derived from projects financed by
such debt. Except as described below, such obligations do not constitute a debt of the City.

Boston Water and Sewer Commission

The Boston Water and Sewer Commission (the “Commission”) is an independent body politic and
corporate and a political subdivision of the Commonwealth created in July 1977. The Commission, among
its other powers, is authorized to operate and maintain the water and sewer systems of the City, construct
improvements to the systems, collect user charges for its services, and finance its activities and its
borrowing through its revenues. The City is not obligated on debt issued by the Commission. The
Commission’s user charges, as required by statute, are designed to produce revenues to the Commission
sufficient to pay all of its current operating expenses. These user charges are anticipated to increase
moderately. The City’s property tax base is not used to subsidize water and sewer services. Water and
sewer charges outstanding from certain of the Commission’s prior fiscal years have been committed to the
City for collection. The City uses its lien and foreclosure powers to collect those overdue water and sewer
charges for those years on the Commission’s behalf.

Economic Development and Industrial Corporation of Boston

The Economic Development and Industrial Corporation of Boston (“EDIC”) is a body politic and
corporate and an instrumentality of the Commonwealth with a board of five members, also appointed as the
members of the Boston Redevelopment Authority (“BRA™). EDIC has a variety of powers to assist
industrial development projects in the City including the power to issue special obligation revenue bonds to
finance economic development projects in the City, which are solely the obligation of EDIC, or the owner
or lessee of the financed project. The City is also authorized to appropriate or borrow monies in aid of
EDIC development projects within certain urban renewal debt limitations.
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Boston Redevelopment Authority

The BRA is a public body politic and corporate constituting the City’s redevelopment authority. It
acts as the City’s planning board and exercises certain powers of the state Department of Housing and
Community Development. The BRA board consists of four members appointed by the Mayor, subject to
confirmation by the City Council, and one appointed by the state Department of Housing and Community
Development. The staff includes architects, economists, engineers, lawyers and urban planners, as well as
management personnel and administrative support. The BRA provides the planning support for major
construction, development and redevelopment activity in the City. Although the BRA is authorized to issue
revenue bonds and notes which would not constitute indebtedness of the City, BRA projects have
traditionally been financed through a combination of federal and state grants, the proceeds of general
obligation bonds issued by the City and revenues from the lease or sale of land.

Boston Public Health Commission

The Boston Public Health Commission is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of
the Commonwealth created in June 1996 as the successor to the City’s Department of Health and Hospitals.
See “The City—Principal Government Services—Public Health.” The Commission is responsible for the
implementation of public health programs in the City and serves as the board of health of the City. In
addition to its other powers, the Commission is authorized by its enabling act, with the approval of the City
Council and the Mayor, to borrow money for any of its corporate purposes from the City or from the
Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority. Debt of the Commission is not a debt or other
obligation of the City. Other than the promissory note described below, no debt of the Commission is
currently outstanding.

Pursuant to agreements between the City, the Commission, BMCC and a trustee for the benefit of the
registered owners of the BCH Bonds, the Commission has agreed to apply rents received from BMCC to
the payment of a promissory note issued by the Commission to the City and assigned by the City as
security for the BCH Bonds. Payments made by the Commission on the note are applied by the City to pay
the principal of and interest on the BCH Refunding Bonds. See “City Indebtedness-Special Obligation
Debt.”

The Commission is also obligated to reimburse the City for debt service paid on all outstanding
general obligation bonds of the City issued for public health and hospital purposes. Such bonds were
outstanding on March 1, 2010 in the aggregate principal amount of $4.8 million. The Commission has
required, and can be expected to continue to require, substantial financial support from the City to maintain
its public health mission and programs, including satisfaction of its obligations described above.

Other Agencies and Corporations

Two other public bodies are empowered, either by themselves or through the City, to issue special
obligation revenue bonds. The BHA is responsible for the construction, financing and operation of
residential housing for low-income persons. While the City provides certain municipal services to BHA
developments, and capital expenditures for City infrastructure related to those developments, the City is not
directly or indirectly liable for operating or debt service expenses of the BHA. The City, acting by and
through the Boston Industrial Development Financing Authority, is authorized to issue revenue bonds to
finance the construction of industrial, commercial and pollution-control facilities. The City has also
traditionally provided financial assistance to a number of nonprofit corporations organized to provide and
conduct civic and charitable functions for residents and visitors to the City and to stimulate the economic
development of the City.

Major Contractual Obligations

In addition to its debt obligations, the City has substantial contractual obligations. Included in this
category are the City’s obligation for pension benefit payments to its contributory retirement system for
City employees and other post employment benefits which is included in the annual tax levy (see
“Employee Benefits”); agreements for the provision of sanitation, solid waste collection and disposal
services (see “The City—Principal Government Services—Public Works”); and agreements with BMCC
for the provision of operating assistance and capital grants (see “City Indebtedness—Special Obligation
Debt” and “Debt of Agencies Related to the City—Boston Public Health Commission” above) The City has
also executed several equipment lease agreements in order to finance the acquisition of departmental
equipment. As of March 1, 2010, the amount outstanding under the lease agreements equaled $31.3
million. Lease payments are subject to annual appropriation and are not included in the City’s debt limit.

A-32



Capital Planning and Borrowing Program

Capital Planning Process

The capital planning process is organized to coincide with the annual budget cycle. It begins when
City departments submit capital requests, and concludes when the City publishes an updated version of its
five-year capital plan. Capital appropriations are requested of the City Council each year for the cost of
projects included in the updated capital plan. This process allows for a continuing reassessment of capital
needs and projections. On April 8, 2009, the Mayor submitted his fiscal 2010 budget to the City Council,
which included approximately $53.3 million in new authorizations to support the fiscal 2010-2014 capital
plan. All authorizations were approved by the City Council in June, 2009.

The City awards construction contracts and incurs capital outlay costs based upon appropriations to
be funded from bond proceeds and grant receipts. In circumstances where project expenditures occur prior
to the receipt of bond proceeds or grant reimbursements, the City temporarily pays such costs from
available funds.

Capital Funding Plan

The City funds its capital plan primarily through the issuance of general obligation bonds. The size of
the City’s future bond issues will be consistent with the City’s financial management policies regarding its
level of debt and debt service. The timing and size of the capital plan will be actively managed within these
constraints.

Current Capital Investment Plans

The City’s fiscal 2010-2014 capital plan released in April 2009 proposes new long-term investments
over the next five to seven years as well as several studies to lay the groundwork for future growth. In all,
$1.4 billion from City and non-City sources are proposed to be spent on capital projects. These
expenditures will be used for improvements to schools, libraries, parks and recreation, roads and bridges. In
view of the proven economic and social benefits of consistent, long-range capital planning, the City
remains committed to moving forward with its capital program.

The fiscal 2010-2014 capital plan includes projects to improve the physical condition of the City’s
schools, including ongoing roof replacements, masonry repairs and fire alarm systems upgrades. Significant
investment in the City’s core technology infrastructure is also underway including data center
consolidation, fiber optic network build out, implementation of client relation management and work order
management systems, and the acquisition of a new public safety computer-aided dispatch system. A new
branch library opened in Mattapan in the spring of 2009 replacing an older facility and a LEED certifiable
renovation began on a branch library. Construction of a new LEED-silver police station in Dudley Square
began in 2009 on a former brownfield. The station is planned to open in 2011. Planning for energy
efficiency improvements at the central library is underway.

The maintenance of the City’s roadways and sidewalks is a significant part of the capital plan. In
fiscal 2009, 21.1 miles of roads were reconstructed or resurfaced and 461,133 square feet of sidewalks were
also repaired. Approximately 290 new street lights were installed to improve visibility and public safety.
Additionally the City will benefit from $43 million in road and signal improvements as a result of the
American Recovery and Reimbursement Act. In the coming months, construction will begin on the
resurfacing of 19 miles of Boston streets, the upgrading of traffic signal communications and major
reconstruction of Dorchester Avenue.

Since its inception, the capital plan has comprehensively examined the capital needs of the City and
has emphasized long-term planning and financial management. This planning process has enabled the City
to alter the pattern of decades of previous under investment and to respond to emerging program goals of
its departments.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Retirement Systems

The City’s employees are not participants in the federal social security system. The City participates
in a contributory defined benefit retirement system that is administered by the State-Boston Retirement
System (“SBRS”). The SBRS provides pension benefits to retired City employees under a state
contributory retirement statute, and is administered by a Retirement Board comprised of five members: the
City Auditor, who serves ex-officio; two individuals elected by members of the system; an individual
chosen by the Mayor; and an individual chosen by the other four members or appointed by the Mayor if the
other four members do not agree on a selection within 30 days of a vacancy. All retirement allowances are
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primarily paid by employer and employee contributions and the resulting investment earnings. Employee
contributions in the form of a mandatory deduction from regular compensation constitute an annuity fund
from which the annuity portion of the retirement allowance is paid.

The City is currently committed to a funding schedule approved by the SBRS and the state actuary,
which includes paying the current year’s estimated present value of benefits earned during the year
(“normal cost™) and an annual contribution toward reducing the unfunded liability to zero by the year 2023.
This schedule is calculated in accordance with the entry age actuarial cost method. The schedule is updated
by SBRS and subject to approval at least every three years by the state Public Employee Retirement
Administration Commission (“PERAC”), a state agency established to oversee all 106 Massachusetts
public retirement systems. The SBRS most recently received approval for a funding schedule for fiscal
2010, 2011, and 2012. The latest approved schedule targets full funding of the system seven years prior to
the legally required funding date of 2030. The annual appropriation, based on the funding schedule, is a
legal obligation of the City that must be included as part of the property tax rate certification by the
Commonwealth. The SBRS, in consultation with the City, reviews and periodically revises the funding
schedule with each new valuation. The next valuation shall incorporate asset and liability data as of January
1, 2010 and shall include the funding requirements for fiscal 2012-2014.

Beginning January 1, 2000, the Board adopted an asset valuation method that gradually incorporates
over time annual investment gains over and losses under the actuarial investment return assumption of 8%.
The actuarial value of assets is used in determining the funding schedule, thereby avoiding the direct and
immediate impact of dramatic upswings and downswings inherent in the investment markets.

A cost of living adjustment (“COLA”) is set each year at the CPI or an amount up to, but not greater
than, 3% on the first $12,000 of a retiree’s annual payment. COLAs are considered by the Board on an
annual basis. As part of the annual review process, the Board considers the fiscal conditions of the City and
whether the granting of a COLA would substantially impair the City’s funding schedule. COLAS were
approved for each year from fiscal 1999 through fiscal 2009. Recent SBRS actuarial valuations have
assumed a COLA will be approved in future years. The Commonwealth, meanwhile, has incorporated in its
pension funding schedule sufficient funds to fulfill its obligation for local COLAs it had awarded prior to
fiscal 1998.

Schedule of Funding Progress
(% in thousands)

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll ~ Covered Payroll
Date (@) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) ((b-a)/c)

January 1, 2009 $4,089,989 $6,900,229 $2,810,240 59.3% $1,357,573 206.0%
January 1, 2008 4,458,002 6,596,148 2,138,146  67.6 1,299,112 164.6
January 1, 2007 4,138,146 6,223,154 2,085,008 66.5 1,221,404 170.7
January 1, 2006 3,836,807 5,957,373 2,120,566  64.4 1,168,808 181.4
January 1, 2005 3,587,118 5,664,288 2,077,170  63.3 1,115,529 186.2

Source:  City of Boston Retirement Board.

Recent SBRS valuations assume a long-term rate of return of 8.0%. The long-term average
annualized return for the SBRS (measuring since January 1, 1985) is equal to 8.7%. The SBRS recorded a
five-year average annualized return (January 1, 2004 through December 31, 2008) equal to 3.2% due
largely to the rate of return for the SBRS of minus 24.2% in 2008 as a result of the lower interest rates and
substantial declines in assets market values suffered by all public pension systems. However, when
calendar year 2009 investment results are finalized they are expected to reflect the SBRS’s best rate of
return since 2003. The resulting increase during 2009 in asset value is expected to partially mitigate the
decrease in asset value experienced in 2008.

In accordance with Chapter 68 of the Act of 2007, PERAC annually reviews investment performance
and funded ratio of systems as of January 1st. If a system is: (i) less than 65% funded, and (ii) has trailed
the investment performance of the Pension Reserve Investment Trust (“PRIT”) fund by 2% or more on an
average annualized basis over the previous ten year period, PERAC will declare the system
underperforming and the system shall transfer its assets to the PRIT fund. Such transfer and control would
be permanent. As of December 31, 2008, the SBRS has trailed the PRIT fund by less than 1% on an
average annualized basis over the previous ten year period.

Currently, the City is the only municipality in the Commonwealth that is responsible for funding its
teachers’ pension liabilities. In accordance with current state law, the City must annually appropriate
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amounts for such purpose on an actuarial cost basis and investment of teachers’ pension assets is managed
by the SBRS. The Commonwealth annually reimburses the City for teachers’ pension liabilities on a cost of
benefits basis. Such amounts are deposited in the City’s General Fund. On December 4, 2008, the City, the
SBRS, the Commonwealth and PERAC entered into a Memorandum of Agreement which is intended to
transfer the direct responsibility for funding Boston teachers’ pension liabilities to the Commonwealth
effective as early as fiscal year 2010. Legislation mirroring this agreement has been filed in the Legislature.
If enacted, the legislation would eliminate the City’s role in the funding of teachers’ pension allowances
and would transfer pension fund assets held by the SBRS allocable to teachers’ pension liabilities to the
PRIT fund.

In addition to the SBRS, the Boston Retirement System, the predecessor system, is funded by the
City. This predecessor system has as its members only those active and retired employees whose
employment commenced prior to 1946 and who have not elected coverage under the SBRS program. This
system is funded on a “pay-as-you-go” basis. In addition to the SBRS and its predecessor system, the City
also provides noncontributory retirement benefits to certain employees whose employment predates the
SBRS and its predecessor system or who are veterans who meet certain state law requirements. The City is
currently providing such benefits to approximately 161 pensioners.

Amounts expended or estimated to be expended by the City for pension and annuities contributions to
SBRS and its predecessor system in the most recent fiscal periods (net of state reimbursements for teacher
retirement costs) are as set forth below.

City of Boston Pensions and Annuities Costs
(Budgetary Accounting Basis)
($ in millions)

SBRS Predecessor/ Teachers

Contributory ~ Noncontributory Pension Net
Fiscal Year Ending June 30 System System Reimbursement Pension Cost
2010 Budgeted ........ccovevvvvevreiieiienn, $234.8 $4.1 $(126.9) $112.1
2009 oo 213.2 4.1 (118.8) 98.5
2008......c i 202.9 41 (105.4) 101.6
2007 oo 192.9 4.6 (93.3) 104.2
2006 ...oooiiiiieiiee e 186.3 4.6 (85.2) 105.7

Source:  City of Boston Office of Budget Management.

Other Post Employment Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described above, the City provides post-employment health care
and life insurance benefits in accordance with state statute to approximately 13,900 participating retirees
and their beneficiaries on a pay-as-you-go basis. Expenditures for such purposes are projected to be
approximately $134.8 million in fiscal 2010.

For retirees and their beneficiaries, the City currently pays 75% of Blue Cross/Blue Shield of
Massachusetts premiums and 90% of HMO premiums. In 2007, the City successfully negotiated a decrease
in the employer contribution for HMO premiums with the majority of its active employees, gradually
adjusting to an 85% contribution by 2009. No contribution changes were adopted for Medicare products, in
which the majority of the City’s retirees are enrolled. The City also pays 50% of the premiums for $5,000
of life insurance for each eligible retiree.

GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension
Plans, and GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, became effective June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2008,
respectively. These statements require the City to account for and report the value of its future other post-
employment benefit (OPEB) obligations currently rather than on a pay-as-you-go basis.

In the absence of legal authority to establish a trust fund for the purpose of prefunding OPEB
liabilities in the same manner as traditional pension benefits, the City established an OPEB Stabilization
Fund in the fiscal 2008 Budget for the purpose of paying a portion of these future costs. An appropriation
of $20 million to the OPEB Stabilization Fund was included in the fiscal 2008 Budget. An additional
appropriation of $25 million was included in the fiscal 2009 Budget. In addition, in October 2008, the City
procured investment consulting services in order to optimize investment of the OPEB Stabilization Fund.

An independent actuarial valuation of the City’s OPEB obligations at June 30, 2009 estimates that the
City’s portion of the total OPEB actuarial accrued liability as of that date on account of then current
retirees, beneficiaries and dependents and current active members was between $5.80 hillion (partially
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funded) and $3.69 billion (fully funded), depending on the funding policy elected by the City. Based on the
estimates contained in the actuarial valuation, the City’s annual actuarially required contribution to OPEB
for fiscal year 2010 was projected to be approximately $354.4 million under a partially funded policy and
approximately $261.2 million under an actuarially fully funded policy.

In June 2009, the City accepted Chapter 479 of the Acts of 2008 (“Chapter 479”) authorizing the City
to establish a separate trust fund and to appropriate amounts to the fund in accordance with a schedule
developed by an actuary retained by the City and approved by the state actuary in order to reduce the City’s
unfunded actuarial OPEB liability and to meet the normal cost of future OPEB benefits. In accordance with
Chapter 479, on February 18, 2010 the City established an irrevocable Other Post Employment Benefits
Trust Fund under a Trust Agreement between the City and the City’s Collector-Treasurer as trustee and
custodian. An appropriation of $20 million included in the fiscal 2010 Budget for the purpose of prefunding
OPEB liabilities will be deposited in the Trust Fund.

AVAILABILITY OF OTHER INFORMATION

The City’s Auditing Department prepares a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) with
respect to each fiscal year ended June 30 which generally becomes available in December of the following
fiscal year. The CAFR is presented in three sections: (1) an Introductory Section which includes general
information about the City and summarizes financial activity for the fiscal year; (2) a Financial Section
which includes the Independent Auditors’ Report on the City’s Basic Financial Statements for the fiscal
year, Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements for the fiscal year and the
Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules for the various funds of the City,
including required supplemental information; and (3) a Statistical Section which includes financial data,
debt computations, and a variety of demographic, economic and supplemental statistical information
concerning the City. Specific reference is made to the City’s CAFR for the year ended June 30, 2008,
which is available from the City. A copy of the CAFR has been filed with each Nationally Recognized
Municipal Securities Information Repository currently recognized by the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is also posted at the City’s internet site at www.cityofboston.gov/auditing.

Questions regarding this Information Statement and requests for additional financial information
concerning the City of Boston should be directed to Sally D. Glora, City Auditor, Boston City Hall, Room
M-4, One City Hall Square, Boston, Massachusetts 02201-1020, telephone (617) 635-4671. Questions
regarding legal matters relating to this Information Statement should be directed to Robert H. Hale,
Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge, LLP, 111 Huntington Avenue, Boston, Massachusetts 02199, telephone
(617) 239-0407.
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KPMG LLP Telephone 617 988 1000
99 High Street Fax 617 988 0800
Boston, MA 02110-2371 Internet www. us.kpmg.com

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Boston, Massachusetts:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Boston (the City), Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of certain entities, which represent 2.9% of the assets of the aggregate remaining fund
information and 22.6% of the assets of the discretely presented component units. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion on the
financial statements, insofar as it relates to the aggregate remaining fund information and the discretely
presented component units and their effects on the governmental and fiduciary activities, is based solely on
the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. The financial statements of the permanent funds and private-purpose trust funds
were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Boston, Massachusetts, as of June 30,
2009, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As described in note 2(n), the City, in 2009, implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations.

KPMG LLP, a U.S. limited liability partnership, is the U.S.
member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 2,
2009 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages A — 3 through A — 15 and the schedules of funding
progress and employers’ contributions on page A — 70 are not required parts of the basic financial
statements, but are supplementary information required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
We have applied certain limited procedures which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

KPme LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 2, 2009
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The City of Boston (the City) provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis to present additional
information to the readers of the City’s basic financia statements. This narrative overview and analysis of
the financial activities of the City is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. Readers are encouraged to
consider this information in conjunction with the additional information that is furnished in the City’s
Comprehensive Annua Financial Report (CAFR).

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s financial statements. The
City's basic financial statements include three components: 1) Governmentwide Financial Statements,
2) Fund Financial Statements, and 3) Notes to the Financid Statements. This report aso contains required
supplementary information regarding historical pension information and other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) plan information. The components are described bel ow:

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include two types of financial statements that present different views of the
City — the Governmentwide Financial Statements and the Fund Financial Statements. These financia
statements also include the Notes to the Financial Statements that explain some of the information in the
financial statements and provide more detail.

Gover nmentwide Financial Statements

The Governmentwide Financial Statements provide a broad view of the City’s operations in a manner
similar to a private-sector business. The statements provide both short-term and long-term information
about the City’s financial position, which assists in assessing the City’s economic condition at the end of
the fiscal year. These are prepared using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. This basically means they follow methods that are similar to those used by
most businesses. They take into account all revenues and expenses connected with the fiscal year even if
cash involved has not been received or paid. The Governmentwide Financial Statements include two
statements:

The Statement of Net Assets presents all of the government’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as “net assets.” Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net assets may
serve as auseful indicator of whether the financial position of the City isimproving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changesin net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal
periods (such as uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). This statement also presents a
comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the City.
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Both the above financia statements have separate sections for the three different types of city programs or
activities. These three types of activities are:

Governmental Activities — The activities in this section are mostly supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (federal and state grants). Most services normally associated with city
government fall into this category, including general government, human services, public safety, public
works, property and development, parks and recreation, library, schools, county, public health programs,
state and district assessments, and debt service.

Business-type Activities — These functions normally are intended to recover al or a significant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges to externa users of goods and services. These business-type
activities of the City include the activities related to the City’s Convention Center Bond Fund and
Hospital Bond Fund.

Discretely Presented Component Units — These are operations for which the City has financia
accountability but function independent of the City. For the most part, these entities operate similar to
private-sector businesses and the business-type activities described above.

The City’sfour discretely presented major component units are:
Boston Public Health Commission
Boston Redevel opment Authority
Economic Development Industrial Corporation
Trustees of the Boston Public Library

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective
administrative offices. Additiona information about the City’s component units is presented in the Notes
to the Financial Statements.

The Governmentwide Financial Statements can be found immediately following this discussion and
analysis.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
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The Fund Financial Statements focus on individual parts of the city government, reporting the City’s
operations in more detail than the Governmentwide Financial Statements. All of the funds of the City can
be divided into three categories. It isimportant to note that these fund categories use different accounting
approaches and should be interpreted differently. The three categories of funds are:

1. Governmental Fund Financial Statements — Most of the basic services provided by the City are
financed through governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the
same functions reported as governmental activities in the Governmentwide Financial Statements.
However, unlike the Governmentwide Financia Statements, the Governmental Fund Financial
Statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources. They aso focus on the
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating the government’s near-term financing requirements. This approach is known as
using the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this approach, revenues are recorded when cash is received or when susceptible to
accrual. Expenditures are recorded when liabilities are incurred and due. These statements provide a
detailed short-term view of the City’ s finances to assist in determining whether there will be adequate
financial resources available to meet the current needs of the City.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the Governmentwide Financial
Statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the Governmentwide Financial Statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and the governmental activities. These reconciliations are
presented on the page immediately following each governmental fund financia statement.

The City presents four columns in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. The City's three magjor
governmental funds are — the General Fund, the Special Revenue Fund, and the Capital Projects
Fund. All nonmajor governmental funds are combined in the “ Other Governmental Funds’ column on
these statements. The Governmental Fund Financial Statements can be found immediately following
the Governmentwide Financial Statements.

Of the City’s governmental funds, the General Fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally
adopted. The Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis is presented on page A —
24. This statement provides a comparison of the original and final budget and the actual expenditures
for the current and prior year.

In accordance with state law and regulations, the City’s legaly adopted General Fund budget is
prepared on a “budgetary” basis instead of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
Among the key differences between these two sets of accounting principles are that “budgetary”
records property tax as it is levied, while GAAP records it as it becomes susceptible to accrual,
“budgetary” records certain activities and transactions in the General Fund that GAAP records in
separate funds, and “budgetary” records any amount raised that covers a prior year deficit as an
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expenditure and any available funds raised from prior year surpluses as a revenue, while GAAP
ignores these impacts from prior years. The difference in accounting principles inevitably leads to
varying results in excess or deficiency of revenues over expenditures. Additional information and a
reconciliation of “budgetary” to GAAP statementsis provided in note 4 to the financia statements.

2. Proprietary Funds Financial Statements — These funds are used to show activities that operate
more like those of commercial enterprises. Because these funds charge fees for services provided to
outside customers including local governments, they are known as enterprise funds. Proprietary
Funds provide the same type of information as the Governmentwide Financial Statements, only in
more detail. Like the Governmentwide Financial Statements, Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
use the accrual basis of accounting. No reconciliation is needed between the Governmentwide
Financial Statements for business-type activities and the Proprietary Fund Financial Statements.

The basic Proprietary Funds Financial Statements can be found immediately following the
Governmental Fund Financial Statements.

3. Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements — These funds are used to account for resources held for the
benefit of parties outside the City government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
Governmentwide Financial Statements because the resources of these funds are not available to
support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds. They use the accrual basis of accounting.

The City’s fiduciary funds are the Employee Retirement Fund (the State-Boston Retirement System),
which accounts for the transactions, assets, liabilities, and net assets of the City employees pension
plan, and the Private Purpose Trust Funds, which includes money held and administered by the City
on behalf of third parties.

The Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements can be found immediately following the Proprietary Fund
Financial Statements.
Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the Governmentwide and the Fund Financial Statements. The Notes to the Financial Statements can be
found immediately following the Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements.

Required Supplementary I nformation

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information, which
includes a schedule of funding progress and a schedule of employer contributions for the State-Boston
Retirement System as well as the schedule of funding progress for the City’ s OPEB plan.

Governmentwide Financial Analysis

This analysis is based on the Statement of Net Assets found on page A — 17 and the Statement of
Activities found on pages A — 18 and A — 19 of thefinancial statements.
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Governmentwide Highlights

Net Assets — Primary Government — The total assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009 by $780.1 million (presented as net assets). Of this amount, $178.6 million was reported as
“unrestricted net assets.” Unrestricted net assets represent the amount available to be used to meet the
City’ s ongoing obligationsto citizens and creditors.

Changes in Net Assets — Primary Government — The City’ s total net assets decreased by $140.7 millionin
fiscal year 2009. Net assets of governmental activities decreased by $148.9 million, while net assets of the
business-type activities increased by $8.2 million.

Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
The City’s combined net assets (governmental and business-type activities) totaled $780.1 million at the
end of 2009, compared to $924.3 million at the end of the previous year.

The components of net assets comprise the following: the investment in capital assets such as land,
buildings, equipment, and infrastructure (road, bridges, and other immovable assets), less any related
debt used to acquire that asset that is still outstanding — this amount is $384.4 million indicating that the
net book value of the City’s capital assets exceeds the amount of capital debt outstanding. The City uses
these capital assets to provide servicesto citizens, consequentially, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themsel ves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A portion of the City’s governmental activities net assets (26%) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets may be
used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Internally imposed designations of
resources are not presented as restricted net assets. Part of the unrestricted net assets (approximately
$87.8 million) represents the receivable from the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) for
the reimbursement of bonded school construction costs. The payments to be received from the MSBA
coincide with the City’s future debt service payments. In fiscal year 2010, the amount to be received by
the City to pay debt service is approximately $13.0 million. Although this receivable increases
unrestricted net assets, it will not affect the City’ s free cash position.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is reporting a positive balance for the government as a
whole. The negative balance reported for business-type activities is offset by the positive balance reported
for governmental activities. The negative balance in business-type activities is a result of specia
obligation bonds outstanding at year-end. These costs are intended to be covered by user charges, grants,
and lease receipts from third parties.
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Net Assets— Primary Gover nment
(In thousands)

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Current assets $ 1,472,556 1,445,085 64,289 59,398 1,536,845 1,504,483
Capital assets 1,285,270 1,221,717 0 0 1,285,270 1,221,717
Other assets 130,984 146,682 82,298 89,725 213,282 236,407
Total assets $ 2,888,810 2,813,484 146,587 149,123 3,035,397 2,962,607
Noncurrent liabilities $ 1,520,738 1,291,528 176,126 187,165 1,696,864 1,478,693
Current liabilities 545,195 546,709 13,264 12,955 558,459 559,664
Total liabilities $ 2,065,933 1,838,237 189,390 200,120 2,255,323 2,038,357

Invested in capital assets
net of related debt $ 384,389 334,467 0 0 384,389 334,467
Restricted 217,070 234,902 0 0 217,070 234,902
Unrestricted 221,418 405,878 (42,803) (50,997) 178,615 354,881
Total net assets $ 822,877 975,247 (42,803) (50,997) 780,074 924,250
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Changesin Net Assets— Primary Gover nment
(In thousands)

City of Boston, Massachusetts A—9

Gover nmental Business-type
activities activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 169,826 180,069 0 0 169,826 180,069
Operating grants and contributions 594,914 593,767 1,116 1,196 596,030 594,963
Capita grants and contributions 56,517 18,267 0 0 56,517 18,267
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for
genera purposes 1,389,218 1,316,165 0 0 1,389,218 1,316,165
Excises 115,237 97,262 36,605 40,342 151,842 137,604
Payment in lieu of taxes 56,686 56,668 0 0 56,686 56,668
Grants and contributions not restricted 230,475 259,931 0 0 230,475 259,931
Investment income 22,584 47,072 6,299 9,796 28,883 56,868
Miscellaneous 12,107 1,531 0 0 12,107 1,531
Total revenues 2,647,564 2,570,732 44,020 51,334 2,691,584 2,622,066
Program expenses:
General government 103,420 109,121 0 0 103,420 109,121
Human services 48,896 50,827 0 0 48,896 50,827
Public safety 920,790 908,353 0 0 920,790 908,353
Public works 145,867 148,497 0 0 145,867 148,497
Property and development 105,581 110,272 0 0 105,581 110,272
Parks and recreation 30,026 30,134 0 0 30,026 30,134
Library 52,881 47,340 0 0 52,881 47,340
Schools 1,316,314 1,272,997 0 0 1,316,314 1,272,997
Public health programs 71,618 68,718 0 0 71,618 68,718
Interest on long-term debt 28,041 31,058 0 0 28,041 31,058
Convention center 0 0 4,902 5,122 4,902 5,122
Hospital 0 0 3,924 4,201 3,924 4,201
Total program expenses 2,823,434 2,777,317 8,826 9,323 2,832,260 2,786,640
Excess (deficiency) before special items
and transfers (175,870) (206,585) 35,194 42,011 (140,676) (164,574)
Loss on disposal 0 (298) 0 0 0 (298)
Transfers 27,000 23,000 (27,000) (23,000) 0 0
Change in net assets (148,870) (183,883) 8,194 19,011 (140,676) (164,872)
Net assets (deficit) — beginning of year 975,247 1,159,130 (50,997) (70,008) 924,250 1,089,122
Prior year adjustment — implementation of GASB49 (3,500) (3,500)
Net assets (deficit) — end of year $ 822,877 975,247 (42,803) (50,997) 780,074 924,250
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Governmental Activities

The City’s governmental activities net assets decreased by $148.9 million over the prior fiscal year. The
following net changes occurred during the course of operationsin fiscal year 2009: In the assets accounts,
cash and investments increased by $132.4 million, receivables increased by $25.1 million, and capital
assets increased by $63.6 million. In the liability accounts, there were decreases in warrants and accounts
payable of $6.3 million and unearned revenue of $37.0 million; and increases in current long-term debt of
$5.3 million and accrued liabilities of $36.4 million. Additionally, an increase of $218.0 million was
recorded relative to the City’s other postemployment obligation in 2009.

During fiscal year 2009, the City’s revenues increased by 3.0%. The City’s largest sources of revenues
were property taxes, excise taxes, and payment in lieu of taxes of $1.56 billion (59.0% of total revenue)
and $821.3 million of program revenues (31.0% of total revenue). The primary factors for the increase in
tax revenue were an increase in property tax, aircraft fuel excise, and hotel room occupancy excise. The
increase in program revenue is attributed to increase in Chapter 90 and MSBA reimbursements.
Investment income and other miscellaneous revenues totaled $34.7 million down $13.9 million from
fiscal year 2008. The primary factor for the decrease in investment income was lower investment returns.

Theincrease in revenues allowed for an increase in expense categories. The City’s expenses cover arange
of services. The largest expenses were for schools ($1.32 hillion), public safety ($920.8 million), public
works  ($145.9 million), property and development ($105.6 million), general government
($103.4 million), public health programs ($71.6 million), and human services ($48.9 million). Expenses
increased only dightly ($46.1 million) from 2008. The City was aggressive in containing costs in 2009
with the news of a decrease in state funding. All categories of government continue to experience an
increase in expenses due to the recognition of the City’s OPEB expense, which increased $218.0 million
in 2009.

In 2009, governmental activities expenses exceeded program revenues (i.e., user charges, operating
grants, and capital grants) by $2.0 billion. This shortfall was covered primarily through taxes
($1.56 billion) and unrestricted grants and contributions ($230.5 million).

Comparative data on these revenues and expenses is itemized in the reporting of the Changes in Net
Assets — Primary Government on page A — 9.

Business-type Activities

Net assets from business-type activities increased $8.2 million during fiscal year 2009. This change in net
assets resulted primarily from hotel/motel excise tax collections exceeding program expenses.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Fund Statements

This analysis is based on the Governmental and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements on pages A — 20
through A — 27.

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.
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Fund Highlights

Governmental Funds — Fund Balances — As of the close of fiscal year 2009, the City’s governmental
funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $1.08 billion, an increase of $39.9 million from the
prior year. Of this total amount, $614.8 million represents the “unreserved and undesignated fund
balances’ with $550.3 million of this amount in the General Fund. The increase in fund balance is largely
dueto anincreasein tax receipts.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds isto provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in ng the City’ sfinancia requirements.
In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s financial position
at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund — Fund Balance — The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. The City’s
Genera Fund — Fund Balance Policy states in part to maintain a GAAP undesignated fund balance in the
Genera Fund that is 10%, or higher, of GAAP General Fund operating expenditures for the fiscal year.
The GAAP undesignated fund balance at the end of fiscal year 2009 was $550.3 million, which represents
approximately 24.5% of GAAP General Fund operating expenditures.

However, because the City is required to follow the statutory basis of accounting rather than GAAP for
determining the amount of undesignated fund balance that can be appropriated, it is the statutory (not the
GAAP) fund balance that is used to calculate “free cash.” Free cash is the amount of statutory fund
balance in the Genera Fund, as certified by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of
Revenue, that is available for appropriation and is generated when actual revenues, on a cash basis,
exceed budgeted amounts and encumbrances are less than appropriations, or bath.

The City has established the Generd Fund-Fund Balance Policy to ensure that the City maintains
adequate levels of fund balance to mitigate current and future risks (i.e., revenue shortfalls and
unanticipated expenditures). The policy in full states that the City shall maintain a GAAP undesignated
fund balance in the General Fund that is 10% or higher than the current fiscal year's GAAP General Fund
operating expenditures; and that the City shall only consider the certification of free cash (as defined by
the Commonweslth of Massachusetts Department of Revenue) in years where the appropriation of free
cash shall not cause the fiscal year's GAAP undesignated fund baance to go below 10% of the fisca
year's GAAP General Fund expenditures while maintaining a budgetary undesignated fund balance
between 5% and 10% of budgetary operating expenditures.

The City shall only consider the appropriation of certified free cash to offset: (1) certain fixed costs such
as pension contributions and related postemployment health benefits and/or (2) to fund extraordinary and
nonrecurring events as determined and certified by the City Auditor.

Special Revenue Fund — Fund Balance — The Specia Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for predefined purposes. The fiscal year 2009
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Special Revenue Fund baance is reported at $180.8 million, a $9.3 million decrease from fiscal year
2008. Thisdecreaseisdueto areduction in federal aid.

Capital Projects Fund — Fund Balance — The Capita Projects Fund accounts for financial resourcesto be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary
funds and trust funds. The fiscal year 2009 Capita Projects Fund balance is $30.1 million, a $31.0 million
increase from fisca year 2008. The increase in fund balance is attributed to the City receiving
reimbursement from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts for construction costs associated with the
Burke School and the Mattapan Library, as well as the issuance of genera obligation bonds to fund
capital projects.

Other Governmental Funds — Fund Balance — Other Governmental Funds account for assets held by the
City in permanent trust funds. The fisca year 2009 Other Governmental Funds fund balance is
$36.3 million, an $8.6 million decrease from fiscal year 2008. The trust funds experienced the same lower
investment rates as the rest of the nation in fiscal year 09.

Proprietary Funds

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the Governmentwide
Financial Statements for business-type activities. This information is presented on the same basis of
accounting, but in more detail.

The City’s proprietary funds net deficit for fiscal year 2009 was $42.8 million. The net deficit in the
proprietary fundsis aresult of the convention center specia obligation bonds outstanding at year-end.

Budgetary Highlights

General Fund budgetary highlights include ending fiscal year 2009 with a $4.1 million surplus. This
represents the City’s 24™ consecutive year with a balanced budget. Although the budgetary estimates for
revenue exceeded actual receiptsin fiscal year 2009, the revenue deficit is due to alarge decrease in state
aid, with the City receiving $25.5 million or 4.25% less than in fiscal year 2008. This number is skewed
by an increase in Boston Public School teachers pension reimbursement. When the increase in pension
reimbursement is taken into account, the City actually experienced a $38.9 million net decrease in aid
from the Commonwealth. However, it should be noted that the mgjority of the decrease in state aid is the
result of a decision by the Commonwealth to reduce the General Fund education aid by $23.3 million and
replace it with a Special Revenue grant of the same amount. The source of the funding for the grant was
the Commonwealth’s ARRA Stabilization Fund. These funds are reported as Special Revenue Funds.

Favorable results were reported for other General Fund revenue sources. Excise taxes posted a favorable
variance of $17.8 million, primarily due to an increase in aircraft fuel excise and hotel room receipts. In
addition, departmental and other revenue saw a favorable variance of $11.6 million, due to an increasein
Medicare Part D reimbursements and Affirmative Recovery revenue.

The overal expenditure surplus of $21.7 million is aso the result of the Commonwealth’s decision to
decrease General Fund education aid and replace it with a Special Revenue grant of the same amount.
Fisca year 2009 shows expenditures for schools are $23.3 million lower than expected due to this
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Generd Fund state aid change. Expenditures of $23.3 million which were budgeted as General Fund
were funded with the state aid and were reported as Specid Revenue expenditures. There was
overspending in public safety, public works and judgments and claims. Public safety deficits of $4.6
million are generally due to overtime spending. A severe winter in the region increased the demand for
snow removal creating the unfavorable variance of $7.4 million for public works. Judgments and claims
saw a slight increase in settled claims creating a $1.3 million deficit. As aresult of the decrease in state
aid, actions were taken early in the second quarter of fiscal year 2009 to control spending. This resulted
in favorable variancesin all other expenditure categories.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City’ sinvestment in capital assets for its governmental activities, as of June 30, 2009, has a net book
value of $1.29 hillion, made up of costs totaling $2.56 billion less accumulated depreciation of
$1.28 billion. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment,
infrastructure, and construction in progress. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable
and have value only to the City, such as roads, bridges, streets, sidewaks, drainage systems, lighting
systems, and similar items.

The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was approximately
5.2% in terms of net book value. However, actual expenditures to purchase or construct capital assets
were $135.3 million for the year. Most of this amount was used for the purpose of constructing or
reconstructing buildings and building improvements. Depreciation charges for the year totaled
$71.6 million. Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 8 of the Notes to
the Financial Statements.

Long-Term Obligations

Debt Administration — The authority of the City to incur debt is governed by federa and state laws that
restrict the amounts and purposes for which a municipality can incur debt. At year-end, the City had
$916.8 million in General Obligations Bonds principal outstanding — an increase of $13.6 million over
last year.

The key factor in this increase was the issuance of the March 1, 2009 Series A general obligation bonds
totaling $100.0 million exceeding principal repayments and the net effect of refundings. Further,
$40.4 million (Series B and Series C) was issued for the purpose of refunding certain outstanding general
obligations of the City. The Series A and B bonds were given a bond rating of Aal and AA+ by Moody’s
and Fitch, respectively.

Genera Obligation Bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City, including the City’s power to
levy additional taxes to ensure repayment of the debt. Accordingly, all general obligation debt currently
outstanding has been approved by a vote of the City Council.
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Notes and Leases Payable and Other Long-Term Obligations — The City’s general long-term notes and
leases and other long-term obligations increased by $219.0 million, or 39.6%, during the current fiscal
year. Asin 2008, the key factor for thisincrease is the recognition of additional OPEB of $218.0 million.

Additional information on the City’ s long-term debt obligations can be found in note 10 of the Notes to
the Financia Statements.

New Accounting Standards

In 2009, the City implemented the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 49 (GASB
49), Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations. This standard requires
the City to report a liability in its financial statements related to cleaning up pollution or contamination.
The statement also requires restatement of beginning net assets in fiscal year 2009 if an obligation exists
and establishes a probability-weighted method that a government would be required to use to determine
the established amount of pollution obligation liabilities to be reported in its financial statements.

In fiscal year 2009, beginning net assets were restated by $3.5 million due to the implementation of
GASB 49. The magjority of this pollution remediation liability is the result of existing pollution on
property the City acquired through atax taking. The City is remediating the property to build a new police
station on the site. The remaining liability is estimated to be $2 million and will be expended by fiscal
year 2012.

Future Accounting Pronouncements

GASB has issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.
The objective of this pronouncement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information and provide
clearer fund balance classifications. Currently, fund balance is reported as restricted and unrestricted.
Effective for fiscal year 2011 reporting, fund balance will be reported as restricted, committed, assigned,
and unassigned based on the relative strength of the constraints that control how specific amounts can be
spent.

Requestsfor I nformation

This financia report is designed to provide a genera overview of the City’s finances for all of the City’s
citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to: City of
Boston, Auditing Department, Boston City Hall, Room M-4, Boston, MA 02201. Alternatively, these
requests may aso be made through email, by contacting the Auditing Department at
CityAuditor@cityofboston.gov.
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Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009
(In thousands)

Primary gover nment

Gover nmental Business-type Component
activities activities Total units
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 1,125,829 180 1,126,009 106,841
Cash and investments held by trustees 41,297 88,869 130,166 41,460
Receivables, net:
Property taxes 22,541 0 22,541 0
Intergovernmental 180,843 0 180,843 0
Other 61,948 0 61,948 26,045
Other assets 6,445 2,240 8,685 11,880
Internal balances 27,000 (27,000) 0 0
Due from primary government 0 0 0 292
Due from component units 6,653 0 6,653 0
Total current assets 1,472,556 64,289 1,536,845 186,518
Noncurrent assets:
Intergovernmental receivables 74,842 0 74,842 0
Notes and other receivables 56,142 0 56,142 90,678
Other assets 0 0 0 109,666
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 60,627 0 60,627 31,982
Depreciable, net 1,224,643 0 1,224,643 52,670
Due from component units 0 82,298 82,298 0
Total noncurrent assets 1,416,254 82,298 1,498,552 284,996
Total assets 2,888,810 146,587 3,035,397 471,514
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Warrants and accounts payable 95,491 0 95,491 22,521
Accrued liabilities— current:
Tax abatement liability 28,200 0 28,200 0
Compensated absences 46,625 0 46,625 0
Judgments and claims 7,307 0 7,307 0
Payroll and related costs 129,687 0 129,687 0
Deposits and other 111,377 2,449 113,826 2,306
Current portion of long-term debt and leases 106,973 10,815 117,788 1,201
Due to component units 292 0 292 0
DuetoBMC 0 0 0 6,464
Due to primary government 0 0 0 9,535
Unearned revenue 19,243 0 19,243 5,336
Total current liabilities 545,195 13,264 558,459 47,363
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds due in more than one year 859,171 176,126 1,035,297 17,966
Notes and |eases payable due in more than one year 56,324 0 56,324 0
Other noncurrent liabilities 174,449 0 174,449 158,391
Other postemployment benefits obligation 430,794 0 430,794 34,250
Unearned revenue 0 0 0 39,819
Due to primary government 0 0 0 79,416
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,520,738 176,126 1,696,864 329,842
Total liabilities 2,065,933 189,390 2,255,323 377,205
Net assets:
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 384,389 0 384,389 55,392
Restricted for:
Capital projects 0 0 0 0
Expendable trust 36,270 0 36,270 49,794
Federal and state grants 180,800 0 180,800 0
Unrestricted 221,418 (42,803) 178,615 (10,877)
Total net assets (deficit) $ 822,877 (42,803) 780,074 94,309

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2009
(In thousands)

Program revenues

Operating Capital
Chargesfor grantsand grantsand
Functions/programs Expenses services contributions contributions
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government 103,420 22,368 4,515 656
Human services 48,896 44 9,970 0
Public safety 920,790 115,013 154,133 681
Public works 145,867 10,174 51 14,053
Property and devel opment 105,581 5,561 58,268 10
Parks and recreation 30,026 353 410 0
Library 52,881 236 5,380 9,513
Schools 1,316,314 16,077 362,187 31,604
Public health programs 71,618 0 0 0
Interest on long-term debt 28,041 0 0 0
Total governmental activities 2,823,434 169,826 594,914 56,517

Business-type activities:
Convention Center 4,902 0 1,116 0
Hospital Bonds 3,924 0 0 0
Total business-type activities 8,826 0 1,116 0
Total primary government 2,832,260 169,826 596,030 56,517

Component units:

Boston Public Health Commission 144,954 8,834 47,381 5,776
Boston Redevelopment Authority 29,108 7,616 10,303 0
Trustees of the Public Library of the City of Boston 16,421 1,032 11,813 0
Economic Development and Industrial Corporation of Boston 37,125 14,710 15,906 0
Total component units 227,608 32,242 85,403 5,776

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Excises
Paymentsin lieu of taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted
Investment income
City appropriation
Miscellaneous
Gain on disposal
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets (deficit) — beginning of year

Prior period adjustment

Net assets (deficit) — end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.




Net (expense) revenue and
changesin net assets

Primary gover nment

Governmental Business-type Component
activities activities Total units

(75,881) 0 (75,881) 0
(38,882) 0 (38,882) 0
(650,963) 0 (650,963) 0
(121,589) 0 (121,589) 0
(41,742) 0 (41,742) 0
(29,263) 0 (29,263) 0
(37,752) 0 (37,752) 0
(906,446) 0 (906,446) 0
(71,618) 0 (71,618) 0
(28,041) 0 (28,041) 0
(2,002,177) 0 (2,002,177) 0
0 (3,786) (3,786) 0
0 (3,924) (3,924) 0
0 (7,710) (7,710 0
0 0 (2,009,887) 0
0 0 0 (82,913)
0 0 0 (11,189)
0 0 0 (3,576)
0 0 0 (6,509)
0 0 0 (104,187)
1,389,218 0 1,389,218 0
115,237 36,605 151,842 0
56,686 0 56,686 0
230,475 0 230,475 0
22,584 6,299 28,883 (4,893)
0 0 0 69,446
12,107 0 12,107 6,398
0 0 0 6,905
27,000 (27,000) 0 0
1,853,307 15,904 1,869,211 77,856
(148,870) 8,194 (140,676) (26,331)
975,247 (50,997) 924,250 120,684
(3,500) 0 (3,500) (44)
822,877 (42,803) 780,074 94,309

City of Boston, Massachusetts A —19
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Assets

Cash and investments
Cash and investments held by trustees

Receivables, net:
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Departmental and other

Total receivables

Due from other funds
Due from component units

Tota assets
Liabilitiesand Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Warrants and accounts payable
Accrued liabilities:
Payroll and related costs
Deposits and other
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds
Due to component unit
Tota liabilities
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Future appropriations
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures
Undesignated
Reported in permanent funds

Total fund balances
Tota liabilities and fund balances

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

June 30, 2009
(In thousands)

Other Total
Special Capital governmental governmental

General revenue projects funds funds
863,606 168,216 38,017 229 1,070,068
4,914 36,383 41,297
7,396 0 0 0 7,396
231,096 67,976 12,755 0 311,827
15,256 61,528 0 140 76,924
253,748 129,504 12,755 140 396,147
27,000 1,181 2,031 0 30,212
6,653 0 0 0 6,653
1,151,007 298,901 57,717 36,752 1,544,377
57,124 24,679 13,206 482 95,491
125,527 4,160 0 0 129,687
23,655 33,120 1,693 0 58,468
112,047 56,142 12,754 0 180,943
3,675 0 0 0 3,675
292 0 0 0 292
322,320 118,101 27,653 482 468,556
37,534 42,206 74,145 527 154,412
0 0 30,087 0 30,087
240,824 0 0 0 240,824
550,329 138,594 (74,168) 0 614,755
0 0 0 35,743 35,743
828,687 180,800 30,064 36,270 1,075,821
1,151,007 298,901 57,717 36,752 1,544,377
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Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheset to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2009
(In thousands)

Total fund balance — governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the statement of net assets are
different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of:
Land
Construction in progress
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Infrastructure
L ess accumulated depreciation

Adjust deferred revenues and receivables to record revenues on an accrua basis
Internal service funds are included in the governmentwide statements
Bond issuance costs are capitalized in the governmentwide statements

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:
General obligation bonds and notes
Capital leases
Bond issue premiums
Deferred bond gains (losses)
Accrued interest on bonds
Compensated absences
Landfill
Judgments and claims
Other postemployment benefits
Tax abatements
Pollution Remediation

Net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

$

$

1,075,821

25,064
35,563
151,266
1,679,952
236,152
435,111

(1,277,838)
1,285,270

160,195
51,390
6,445

(949,431)
(39,545)
(43,447)

9,956
(11,992)
(172,804)
(8,919)
(79,068)

(430,794)
(28,200)

(2,000)

(1,756,244)
822,877
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changesin Fund Balances—
Governmental Funds
Y ear ended June 30, 2009
(In thousands)
Other Total
Special Capital governmental governmental
General revenue proj ects funds funds
Revenues:
Real and personal property taxes $ 1,393,371 0 0 0 1,393,371
Excises 115,454 0 0 0 115,454
Paymentsin lieu of taxes 56,686 0 0 0 56,686
Fines 69,711 12 0 0 69,723
Investment income 18,289 194 0 (3,208) 15,275
Licenses and permits 40,822 308 0 0 41,130
Departmental and other 82,087 21,931 0 190 104,208
Intergovernmental 454,252 365,102 56,558 0 875,912
Total revenues 2,230,672 387,547 56,558 (3,018) 2,671,759
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 69,524 9,021 0 3,360 81,905
Human services 29,722 7,585 0 0 37,307
Public safety 521,898 7,527 0 0 529,425
Public works 112,168 9,254 0 0 121,422
Property and development 28,959 64,449 0 0 93,408
Parks and recreation 17,571 624 0 0 18,195
Library 31,268 5,366 0 0 36,634
Schools 818,338 154,989 0 0 973,327
Public health programs 69,985 1,408 0 0 71,393
County 0 129,603 0 0 129,603
Judgments and claims 9,946 0 0 0 9,946
Retirement costs 82,332 0 0 0 82,332
Other employee benefits 191,597 0 0 0 191,597
State and district assessments 142,055 0 0 0 142,055
Capita outlays 566 1,151 139,592 0 141,309
Debt service 119,294 0 0 0 119,294
Total expenditures 2,245,223 390,977 139,592 3,360 2,779,152
Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (14,551) (3,430 (83,034) (6,378) (107,393)
Other financing sources (uses):
Long-term debt and capital leases issued 0 0 113,962 0 113,962
Refunding bonds issued 0 0 40,425 0 40,425
Payments to escrow agent 0 (1,922) (40,308) 0 (42,230)
Premiums on long-term debt issued 0 8,087 0 0 8,087
Transfersin (out) 41,189 (12,000) 0 (2,189) 27,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 41,189 (5,835) 114,079 (2,189) 147,244
Net change in fund balances 26,638 (9,265) 31,045 (8,567) 39,851
Fund balance (deficit) — beginning of year 802,049 190,065 (981) 44,837 1,035,970
Fund balance — end of year $ 828,687 180,800 30,064 36,270 1,075,821

See accompanying notes to basic financia statements.



City of Boston, Massachusetts

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changesin Fund Balance of Governmental Fundsto the Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Net change in fund balances — total governmental funds $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement
of activities, the cost of those assetsis depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. Capital outlays ($135,260) exceeded depreciation expense ($71,647)
and disposals ($60).

Tax revenuesin the statement of activities that are not reported as revenues in the
governmental funds

Proceeds of long-term debt ($154,387) increase long-term liahilities in the
statement of net assets, but are included in the operating statement of the
governmental funds. Repayment of bond, note, and lease principal ($101,699) and
payment to the escrow agent ($42,230) are expenditures in the governmental
funds, but reduce long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Thisisthe
amount by which proceeds exceed repayments and escrow payments.

Bond premiums net ($4,505) increase the long-term liabilities in the statement of
net assets, but are included in the operating statement of the governmental
funds. Deferred losses on refunding ($2,090) decrease long-term liabilitiesin the
statement of net assets, but are included in the operating statement of the
governmental funds. Bond issuance costs, net ($1,164) are expendituresin the
governmental funds, but are deferred assets in the statement of assets. Thisis
the amount by which premiums and deferred losses on refundings exceeded
issuance costs.

Intergovernmental revenues decrease receivables on the statement of net assets,
but are included in the operating statement of governmental funds

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financia resources and therefore are not reported as expendituresin the
governmental funds. This amount represents the increasein liabilities for
compensated absences ($4,488) and other postemployment benefits ($217,971)
offset by adecrease in liabilities for judgements and claims ($788), pollution
remediation ($1,500), interest payable ($2,356), and the landfill liability ($200).

Net income from the internal service fund, which is presented in the statement
of activities, but not in the governmental funds

A-23

39,851

63,553

(4,371)

(10,458)

(5,431)

(15,941)

(217,615)

1,542

Change in net assets of governmental activities $

(148,870)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Statement of Revenues and Expenditures— Budgetary Basis
General Fund — Budget and Actual

Year ended June 30, 2009
(with compar ative actual amounts for 2008)

(In thousands)

2009 Variance
Original Final over 2008
budget budget Actual (under) Actual
Revenues and other available funds:
Real and personal property
taxes, net $ 1,364,580 1,364,580 1,365,272 692 1,295,460
Excises 131,995 131,995 149,776 17,781 131,558
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 610,018 610,018 573,278 (36,740) 598,747
Departmental and other revenue 64,051 64,051 75,661 11,610 67,379
Fines 75,075 75,075 70,053 (5,022) 67,391
Paymentsin lieu of taxes 56,100 56,100 56,493 393 56,667
Investment income 18,500 18,500 17,835 (665) 39,512
Licenses and permits 40,585 40,585 41,008 423 47,577
Other available funds 59,219 59,219 53,219 (6,000) 38,818
Total revenues and
other available funds 2,420,123 2,420,123 2,402,595 (17,528) 2,343,109
Expenditures:
General government 117,798 115,628 113,114 2,514 102,837
Human services 29,524 29,888 29,734 154 29,116
Public safety 497,089 500,058 504,717 (4,659) 495,425
Public works 104,943 105,027 112,420 (7,393) 107,629
Property and devel opment 30,121 31,178 31,178 0 31,453
Parks and recreation 17,446 17,693 17,490 203 17,374
Library 31,230 31,230 31,211 19 29,601
Schools 833,105 833,299 810,006 23,293 795,488
Boston Public Health Commission 69,446 69,446 69,446 0 68,195
Judgments and claims 3,500 3,500 4,806 (1,306) 3,500
Other employee benefits 195,128 195,666 195,612 54 191,032
Retirement costs 217,430 217,430 217,378 52 207,049
Debt requirements 125,905 122,622 119,294 3,328 115,771
State and district assessments 147,458 147,458 142,055 5,403 132,792
Total expenditures 2,420,123 2,420,123 2,398,461 21,662 2,327,262
Excess of revenues and
other available funds
over expenditures $ 0 0 4,134 4,134 15,847

See accompanying notesto basic financial statements.
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Statement of Net Assets— Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2009
(In thousands)

Enterprise funds

Convention Hospital
center revenue Internal
bonds bonds Total service
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 180 0 180 55,761
Cash and investments held by trustees 65,795 23,074 88,869 0
Receivables, net 0 0 0 170
Tota current assets 65,975 23,074 89,049 55,931
Noncurrent assets:
Due from other funds 0 0 0 463
Due from component units 0 82,298 82,298 0
Other assets 1,120 1,120 2,240 1,503
Total noncurrent assets 1,120 83,418 84,538 1,966
Total assets 67,095 106,492 173,587 57,897
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accrued liabilities 0 0 0 6,507
Due to other funds 27,000 0 27,000 0
Accrued interest payable 782 1,667 2,449 0
Current portion of long-term debt 3,580 7,235 10,815 0
Tota current liabilities 31,362 8,902 40,264 6,507
Noncurrent liabilities:
Special obligation bonds 93,505 0 93,505 0
Revenue bonds 0 82,621 82,621 0
Total noncurrent liabilities 93,505 82,621 176,126 0
Total liabilities 124,867 91,523 216,390 6,507
Net assets:
Unrestricted (57,772) 14,969 (42,803) 51,390
Tota net assets $ (57,772) 14,969 (42,803) 51,390

See accompanying notes to basic financia statements.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changesin Net Assets— Proprietary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2009
(In thousands)

Enterprise funds

Convention Hospital
center revenue Internal
bonds bonds Total service
Operating revenues:
Contributions $ 0 0 0 88,822
State aid — pledged for debt service 36,605 0 36,605 0
Total operating revenues 36,605 0 36,605 88,822
Operating expenses:
Health benefits 0 0 0 87,280
Total operating expenses 0 0 0 87,280
Operating income 36,605 0 36,605 1,542
Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Intergovernmental — state grants 1,116 0 1,116 0
Investment earnings — pledged for debt service 0 5,910 5,910 0
Investment earnings — other 389 389 0
Interest expense (4,902) (3,924) (8,826) 0
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) (3,397) 1,986 (1,4112) 0
Income before transfers 33,208 1,986 35,194 1,542
Transfer to general fund (27,000) 0 (27,000) 0
Change in net assets 6,208 1,986 8,194 1,542
Total net assets (deficit) — beginning of year (63,980) 12,983 (50,997) 49,848
Total net assets (deficit) —end of year $ (57,772) 14,969 (42,803) 51,390

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



Statement of Cash Flows— Proprietary Fund Types
Year ended June 30, 2009
(In thousands)

Enterprise funds

City of Boston, Massachusetts A —27

Convention Hospital
center revenue Internal
bonds bonds Total service
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from other governments $ 36,815 0 36,815 0
Cash received from employees and employer 0 0 0 88,999
Cash paid to vendors 0 0 0 (84,878)
Net cash provided by operations 36,815 0 36,815 4,121
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Grants received from state 1,116 0 1,116 0
Interest paid on debt (4,870) (4,139) (9,009) 0
Transfersto other funds (23,000) 0 (23,000) 0
Repayment of long-term debt (3,400) (6,960) (10,360) 0
Net cash used in noncapital
financing activities (30,154) (11,099) (41,253) 0
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income 389 2,587 2,976 0
Principal received on note 0 7,427 7,427 0
Interest received on note 0 3,323 3,323 0
Net cash provided by investing activities 389 13,337 13,726 0
Increase in cash and cash
equivalents 7,050 2,238 9,288 4,121
Cash and cash equival ents, beginning of year 58,925 20,836 79,761 51,640
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 65,975 23,074 89,049 55,761
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 36,605 0 36,605 1,542
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 210 0 210 147
Other assets 0 0 0 3,353
Due from component units 0 0 0 30
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 0 0 0 (951)
Net cash provided by operating
activities $ 36,815 0 36,815 4,121

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets— Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2009
(Except for Employee Retirement Plan, which is as of December 31, 2008)
(In thousands)

Employee Private
retirement purpose Agency
plan trusts funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,309 80,765 5,700
Receivables:
Interest and dividends 17,222 0 0
Securities sold 158,961 0 0
Employer contributions 106,540 0 0
Other 17,100 1,138 0
Total receivables 299,823 1,138 0
Investments, at fair value:
Short-term:
Domestic 31,333 0 0
International 8,500 0 0
Equity:
Domestic 1,139,541 0 0
International 519,489 0 0
Fixed-income:
Domestic 645,301 0 0
International 221,438 0 0
Real estate 364,262 0 0
Venture capital funds 395,883 0 0
Total investments 3,325,747 0 0
Securities lending short-term collateral
investment pool 268,064 0 0
Total assets 3,921,943 81,903 5,700
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 13,093 2,703 0
Securities purchased 223,647 0 0
Collateral held on securities lending 268,064 0 0
Refunds payable and other 250 0 5,700
Total liabilities 505,054 2,703 $ 5,700
Net assets— held in trust for pension
benefits and other purposes $ 3,416,889 79,200

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Statement of Changesin Fiduciary Net A